AGENDA
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REGULAR MEETING
January 11, 2016
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
CALL TO ORDER 5:00 p.m., Board Room, District Office
15600 Sand Canyon Avenue, Irvine, California
ROLL CALL Directors LaMar, Reinhart, Swan, Withers and President Matheis
NOTICE

If you wish to address the Board on any item, including Consent Calendar items, please file your
name with the Secretary. Forms are provided on the lobby table. Remarks are limited to five
minutes per speaker on each subject. Consent Calendar items will be acted upon by one motion,
without discussion, unless a request is made for specific items to be removed from the Calendar
for separate action.

COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD

1 A. Written:
B. Oral:
2. ITEMS RECEIVED TOO TE TO BE AGENDIZED

Recommendation: Determine the need to discuss and/or take immediate action
on item(s).

PRESENTATION
3. STATE LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITIES UPDATE

Ms. Maureen O’Haren, the District’s state advocate, will provide an update on
2016 legislative activities.

CONSENT CALENDAR Resolution No. 2016-1 Items 4-7

4 MINUTES OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING

Recommendation: That the minutes of the December 14, 2015 Regular
Board meeting be approved as presented.



IRWD Board of Directors’ Meeting
January 11, 2016

Page 2

CONSENT CALENDAR - Continued

5.

NOVEMBER 2015 TREASURY REPORTS

Recommendation: That the Board receive and file the Treasurer’s Investment
Summary Report, the Monthly Interest Rate Swap Summary for November
2015, and Disclosure Report of Reimbursements to Board members and staff;
approve the November 2015 Summary of Payroll ACH payments in the total
amount of $1,743,254 and approve the November 2015 Accounts Payable
Disbursement Summary of warrants 362729 through 363366, Workers’
Compensation distributions, wire transfers, payroll withholding distributions
and voided checks in the total amount of $15,935,844.

Recommendation: That the Board adopt an “OPPOSE” position on SB 163
(Hertzberg, D-Van Nuys) related to wastewater treatment and recycled water,
and authorize the District to submit a letter of concern on the bill as requested
by Senator Hertzberg’s office.

RATTLESNAKE RESERVOIR CHLORINE GAS SYTEM REMOVAL
AL

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to accept
construction of Rattlesnake Reservoir Chlorine Gas System Removal Project,
project 30435 (4959); authorize the General Manager to file a Notice of
Completion; and authorize the release of retention 35 days after filing of the
Notice of Completion.

ACTION CALENDAR

8.

AL NEGATIVE D
IRVINE LAKE PIPELINE NORTH CONVERSION PROJECT

Recommendation: That the Board find on the basis of the whole record before
it, including the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and the
comments received, that there is no substantial evidence that the Irvine Lake
Pipeline North Conversion Project will have a significant effect on the
environment and that the Mitigated Negative Declaration reflects IRWD’s
independent judgment and analysis; adopt the proposed Mitigated Negative
Declaration for the Irvine Lake Pipeline North Conversion Project and the
associated Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program; approve the project;
and authorize staff to post and file a Notice of Determination, and submit
payment for the California Department of Fish and Wildlife Service filing fee.

Items 4-7



IRWD Board of Directors’ Meeting
January 11, 2016

Page 3

ACTION CALENDAR - Continued

9.

10

EATON PROPERTY PURCHASE

Recommendation: That the Board, subject to Bardeen Partners, Inc. approval
of the Assignment of the Purchase Agreement to IRWD, authorize the General
Manager to execute the Assignment and Assumption of Real Property
Purchase Agreement accepting the assignment of the purchase and sale
agreement from Bardeen Partners, Inc.; find that all matters currently identified
with regard to the condition of title, physical condition and suitability of the
property for the uses contemplated are acceptable; approve the addition of
project 11914 (6956) to the FY 2015-16 Capital Budget in the amount of
$10,240,000 for the purchase of the Eaton property; find that the property
acquisition only is exempt from CEQA; approve the project and authorize staff
to post and file the Notices of Exemption in Orange and Riverside Counties;
and authorize the General Manager and Treasurer and each other officer of the
District, each acting singly, to execute and deliver any and all documents,
program assignments, certificates, instructions and instruments necessary or
proper for carrying out and closing the real estate purchase transaction for the
acquisition of property.

RATIFICATION OF MEMORANDUM RELATIVE TO THE OFFICERS OF
EES AND OTHER ASSIGNMENTS

Recommendation: That the Board ratify the Memorandum dated

January 8, 2016 entitled Officers of the Board, Committees and Other

Assignments; approve attendance for meetings and events for the Board’s

representation for calendar year 2016, as delineated, rescind Resolution No.

2015-1 and adopt a resolution revising the Assignment Directors to Committees Reso. No. 2016-1
of the Board and rescind Resolution No. 2006-14 and adopt a resolution revising Reso. No. 2016-2
the designated representatives of the Board of Directors of the National Water

Research Institute.

OTHER BUSINESS

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2, members of the Board of Directors or staff may ask
questions for clarification, make brief announcements, make brief reports on his/her own activities.
The Board or a Board member may provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual
information, request staff to report back at a subsequent meeting concerning any matter, or direct
staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda. Such matters may be brought up under the
General Manager’s Report or Directors’ Comments.



IRWD Board of Directors’ Meeting
January 11, 2016
Page 4

OTHER BUSINESS - Continued

11.  A. General Manager’s Report

B. Directors’ Comments

C. CLOSED SESSION CONFERENCE with Real Property Negotiator relative to Government
Code Section 54956.8
Property: OCSD Service Area 7 Sewer Infrastructure
Agency Negotiator: Paul Cook, General Manager
Purpose of Negotiations: Proposed Acquisition of Property — Price and Terms

D. Open Session

E. Adjourn

* % k% k¥ E I N T T T D T T N D S N S . S T T . S S T S

: Agenda exhibits and other writings that are disclosable public records distributed to all
or a majority of the members of the Irvine Ranch Water District Board of Directors in connection with a matter subject
to discussion or consideration at an open meeting of the Board of Directors are available for public inspection in the
District’s office, 15600 Sand Canyon Avenue, Irvine, California (“District Office”). If such writings are distributed to
members of the Board less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, they will be available from the District Secretary of the
District Office at the same time as they are distributed to Board Members, except that if such writings are distributed one
hour prior to, or during, the meeting, they will be available at the entrance to the Board of Directors Room of the District
Office. The Irvine Ranch Water District Board Room is wheelchair accessible. If you require any special disability-
related accommodations (e.g., access to an amplified sound system, etc.), please contact the District Secretary at (949)
453-5300 during business hours at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the scheduled meeting. This agenda can be
obtained in alternative format upon written request to the District Secretary at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the
scheduled meeting.



January 11, 2016
Prepared and ({ é}
Submitted by: L. Bonkowski
Approved by: P. Cook

CONSENT CALENDAR

MINUTES OF BOARD MEETING

SUMMARY:
Provided are the minutes of the December 14, 2015 Regular Board Meeting for approval.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

None.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

Not applicable.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

Not applicable.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE MINUTES OF THE DECEMBER 14, 2015 REGULAR BOARD MEETING BE
APPROVED AS PRESENTED.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit “A” — December 14, 2015 Minutes

ns-Minutes of Board Meeting



EXHIBIT “A”
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING - DECEMBER 14, 2015

The regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD) was
called to order at 5:00 p.m. by President LaMar on December 14, 2015 in the District office, 15600
Sand Canyon Avenue, Irvine, California.

Directors Present: Reinhart, LaMar, Swan, Matheis and Withers (arrived at 5:11 p.m.)
Directors Absent: None.

Also Present: General Manager Cook, Executive Director of Finance and Administration Clary,
Executive Director of Engineering and Water Quality Burton, Executive Director of Operations
Sheilds, Executive Director of Water Policy Weghorst, Director of Treasury and Risk Management
Jacobson, Director of Public Affairs Beeman, Director of Water Resources Sanchez, Director of
Human Resources Roney, Principle Engineer Akiyoshi, Legal Counsel Arneson, Secretary
Bonkowski, Government Relations Officer Compton, Mr. Bruce Newell, Mr. Jim Reed, Ms. Kellie
Welch, Ms. Cheryl Kelly, and Ms. Eileen Lin.

WRITTEN AND ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: None.
CONSENT CALENDAR

Director Swan thanked staff for their efforts on the 2015-16 Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report which is being received and filed tonight on the Consent Calendar. There being no further
comments, on MOTION by Swan, seconded and carried (4-1) Reinhart, LaMar, Swan and Matheis
voting aye and Withers absent, CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 3 THROUGH 8 WERE
APPROVED AS FOLLOWS:

3 MINUTES OF BOARD MEETING

Recommendation: That the minutes of the November 23, 2015 Regular Board Meeting
be approved as presented.

4 BOARD AT
AND EVENTS

Recommendation: That the Board ratify/approve the meetings and events for Steven
LaMar, Mary Aileen Matheis, Douglas Reinhart, Peer Swan, and John Withers as
described.

5 REVISED PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDU
NO. 45)

Recommendation: That the Board approve revisions to personnel policies and adopt the
following resolutions by title: 1) Rescinding Resolution No. 2011-7, adopting revised
Appendix “A-1"to its Conflict of Interest code and readopting Conflict of Interest code

A-1



and Appendix “A-2”; and 2) Rescinding Resolution No. 2015-28 and establishing revised

Personnel Policy No. 45.
NO. 2015-3

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT, RESCINDING
RESOLUTION NO. 2011-7, ADOPTING REVISED APPENDIX “A-1”
TO ITS CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE AND READOPTING
CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE AND APPENDIX “A-2”

RESOLUTION NO. 2015 -31

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT, RESCINDING
RESOLUTION NO. 2015-28 AND ESTABLISHING
REVISED PERSONNEL POLICIES
(FOR POLICY NO. 45)

IRVINE BUSINESS COMPLEX SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENTS BUDGET
ADDITION

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the addition of projects 11899 (6489) and
21899 (6850) to the FY 2015-16 Capital Budget in the amounts of $442,900 and $49,700,
respectively, for the Irvine Business Complex Sidewalk Improvements, projects 11899
(6849) and 21899 (6850).

PROPOSED 2016 TMENT POLICY

Recommendation: That the Board approve the Proposed 2016 Investment Policy and
adopt the following resolution by title:

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-32

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT APPROVING INVESTMENT
POLICY AND AUTHORIZING THE TREASURER AND ASSISTANT
TREASURERS TO INVEST AND REINVEST FUNDS OF THE
DISTRICT AND OF EACH OF ITS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS
AND TO SELL AND EXCHANGE SECURITIES

FY 2014-15 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

Recommendation: Receive and file.

A-2



ACTION CALENDAR

AMENDMENT AND REST EY PURCHASE PENSION
PLAN

General Manager Cook reported that in September 2015, the Board approved an additional
contribution to the 401(a) Money Purchase Pension Plan (401(a) Plan) equal to 1% of base salary
for District managers, supervisors, and confidential employees who have completed two years of
regular, full-time service. This change requires a modification to “Schedule A of the Adoption
Agreement, and the Plan is required to be amended and restated. On MOTION by Swan, seconded and
carried, (4-1) Reinhart, LaMar, Swan and Matheis voting aye and Withers absent, THE BOARD
APPROVED AMENDING THE DISTRICT’S 401(A) MONEY PURCHASE PLAN TO
INCLUDE THE REQUIRED LANGUAGE RELATED TO THE ADDITIONAL
CONTRIBUTION EQUAL TO 1% OF THE EMPLOYEE’S BASE SALARY FOR MANAGERS,
SUPERVISORS, AND CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES WHO HAVE COMPLETED TWO YEARS
OF REGULAR, FULL-TIME SERVICE WITH THE DISTRICT.

IR

Executive Director of Engineering and Water Quality Burton reported that the existing 36-inch
East Irvine Zone 1 to 3 turbine flow meter at the Zone 1 Reservoir needs to be replaced due to
several issues including: 1) it provides inaccurate flow readings; 2) it is located in a vault below
grade, which makes maintenance activities difficult; and 3) the upstream and downstream pipe
segments adjacent to the existing meter are severely corroded. Director Withers arrived at 5:11
p.m.

Mr. Burton said that the project was advertised to a select list of 17 pipeline contractors with
three contractors attending the pre-bid meeting on October 26, 2015. The bid opening was held
with bids received from RC Foster Corporation, GCI Construction, TE Roberts, and Paulus
Engineering. He said that Paulus is the apparent low bidder with a bid in the amount of
$379,744; the engineer’s estimate was $217,000. Mr. Burton said that the engineer
underestimated costs for the pipeline installation, meters, valves, retaining wall, electrical and
controls. He said that with the two lowest bids separated by less than $13,000, staff believes the
low bid represents the true cost of the project.

On MOTION by Reinhart, seconded and unanimously carried, THE BOARD AUTHORIZED A
BUDGET INCREASE FOR PROJECT 11801 (5519) IN THE AMOUNT OF $401,500, FROM
$198,600 TO $600,100; AND AUTHORIZED THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH PAULUS ENGINEERING, INC. IN THE AMOUNT
OF $379,744 FOR THE EAST IRVINE ZONE 1 TO 3 METER REPLACEMENT, PROJECT
11801 (5519).

RT

Using a PowerPoint presentation, Ms. Kellie Welch provided an overview of the Stockdale
Integrated Banking project. Ms. Welch reviewed the project objectives to: 1) provide IRWD

A-3



customers with increased water supply reliability through redundancy and diversification during
periods when other supply sources may be reduced or interrupted; 2) allow both Rosedale and
IRWD to utilize available storage in the local San Joaquin Valley Groundwater Basin by
developing groundwater banking facilities; 3) provide additional groundwater recharge, storage
and recovery capacity in the Kern River Fan region; 4) develop recharge and recovery capacities
at each of IRWD’s and Rosedale’s respective properties; 5) integrate the project facilities and
coordinate operations with Rosedale’s Conjunctive Use Program, including the Strand Ranch
Integrated Banking Project; and 6) provide maximum operational flexibility between IRWD’s and
Rosedale’s various programs and facilities.

Ms. Welch provided capacities noting that there is approximately 26,000 acre-feet (AF) of
available storage under the Stockdale West Ranch and approximately 18,400 AF of available
storage under the Stockdale East Property. Recharge capacities are estimated to be approximately
27,100 acre-feet per year (AFY) for Stockdale West and approximately 19,000 AFY for
Stockdale East. Recovery facilities would be designed to extract approximately 11,250 AFY at
Stockdale West and approximately 7,500 AFY at Stockdale East. Once the third Stockdale
project site has been identified, the associated storage, recharge and recovery capacities will be
determined.

Ms. Welch said that pursuant to the requirements of California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) Guidelines, a Notice of Preparation was publicly circulated for 30 days on September 24,
2013. In addition, IRWD held a public scoping meeting on October 15, 2013, and Rosedale held
a second public scoping meeting on October 16, 2013. The purpose of the meetings was to
provide the public and governmental agencies information on the CEQA process and to give
further opportunities to identify environmental issues and alternatives for consideration in the
Environmental Impact Report (EIR). Additionally, she said that on April 28, 2015, Rosedale
filed a Notice of Completion of the Draft Environmental Impact Report (EIR) with the
Governor’s Office of Planning and Research. Pursuant to Section 21091 of the Public Resources
Code, the filing initiated a 45-day public review period (April 28, 2015 through June 12, 2015).
A Notice of Availability of the Draft EIR was posted on April 28, 2015, with the County Clerks
in Kern County and Orange County. Public meetings were held at Rosedale’s office in
Bakersfield on May 12, 2015, and at IRWD’s office in Irvine on May 13, 2015. No comments
were offered from the audience at either public meeting.

Ms. Welch said that for the preparation of the Final EIR, five letters providing comments on the
Draft EIR were received during the public review period. The agencies that provided comments
are the California Department of Conservation, the Kern County Water Agency, the Kern Water
Bank Authority, the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District and the City of
Bakersfield. Rosedale, in consultation with IRWD, reviewed all of the written comments
received and prepared detailed responses to comments directed to any significant environmental
issues. The comments, responses and revisions to the Draft EIR text are included in separate
document comprised of additional chapters (8, 9 and 10) which, together with the Draft EIR,
comprise the Final EIR (FEIR).

Ms. Welch said that on December 8, 2015, Rosedale’s Board of Directors certified the FEIR,
adopted the findings and MMRP and approved the project without any changes. The FEIR,
findings and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) adopted by Rosedale are the
same as those provided in the exhibits to the write-up. As a responsible agency, IRWD must

A-4



comply with CEQA by considering the FEIR, findings and MMRP that were prepared and
certified by Rosedale.

Ms. Welch said that IRWD’s consideration must be given to the environmental effects of the
Proposed Project prior to reaching a decision on the project. In addition, IRWD must approve
findings related to the Proposed Project and file a Notice of Determination. IRWD has the
responsibility for mitigating or avoiding only the direct or indirect environmental effects of those
portions of the Proposed Project it decides to approve and/or carry out. Because the Proposed
Project will be undertaken jointly by Rosedale and IRWD, it is proposed that IRWD adopt
Rosedale’s findings which are included in the exhibit and that the MMRP reflect the two districts’
joint responsibility as presented.

Director Swan reported that the Draft EIR has been reviewed at multiple meetings of the Water
Banking Committee. On MOTION by Swan, seconded and unanimously carried, THE BOARD
DIRECTED THAT THE FINDINGS (AS PREPARED BY THE ROSEDALE-RIO BRAVO
WATER STORAGE DISTRICT AS THE LEAD AGENCY, IN CONSULTATION WITH
IRWD AS A RESPONSIBLE AGENCY) BE ATTACHED TO THE RESOLUTION, AND
ADOPTED THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION BY TITLE:

RESOLUTION NO. 2015 -33

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE IRVINE
RANCH WATER DISTRICT RELATIVE TO ITS CONSIDERATION OF
THE FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR THE
STOCKDALE INTEGRATED BANKING PROJECT ADOPTING
WRITTEN FINDINGS PURSUANT TO THE CALIFORNIA
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT; ADOPTING A MITIGATION,
MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM; APPROVING THE
PROJECT; AND AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF A NOTICE OF
DETERMINATION TO PROCEED WITH THE PROJECT

BANKING PROJECT O

Using a PowerPoint presentation, Assistant Director of Water Policy Sanchez provided an
overview of the Stockdale Integrated Banking Project Operating Agreement. Ms. Sanchez
reported that in January 2012, the Water Banking Ad Hoc Committee approved draft terms for a
water banking and exchange program with Rosedale that would utilize IRWD’s Stockdale West
Ranch and Rosedale’s Stockdale East property. These terms were incorporated into a
Development Agreement that called for IRWD and Rosedale to share in the cost of the
preparation of the EIR for the Project and to cooperate in the development of a comprehensive
long-term Agreement for a Water Banking, Recovery and Exchange Program for the Stockdale
West and Stockdale East Properties. She said that on March 26, 2012, the Board approved the
Development Agreement which was executed in June 2012.

Ms. Sanchez provided a summary of the general terms of the agreement which includes: 1)
coordinated use and operation of IRWD’s Stockdale West and Rosedale’s Stockdale East
properties; 2) terms consistent with the Strand Banking Agreement to January 12, 2039 and
extendable; 3) each party pays to construct its own facilities and retains ownership: and 4) each

A-5



party has first priority to its own facilities and capacities with the second priority to any unused
capacities from the other party’s facilities. She further reviewed capacity rights, the acquired
storage account; Kern River flows, design and construction of facilities, recharge and recovery
schedule, and IRWD program costs.

On MOTION by Swan, seconded and unanimously carried, THE BOARD AUTHORIZED THE
GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT FOR A WATER BANKING,
RECOVERY AND EXCHANGE PROGRAM AT THE STOCKDALE WEST AND
STOCKDALE EAST PROPERTIES SUBJECT TO NON-SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES
CONTINGENT ON THE BOARD’S ADOPTION OF WRITTEN FINDINGS RELATED TO
THE FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR THE STOCKDALE INTEGRATED
BANKING PROJECT, ADOPTION OF A MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING
PROGRAM, APPROVAL OF THE PROJECT, AND THE SUCCESSFUL CONCLUSION OF
THE STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS UPON FILING A NOTICE OF DETERMINATION FOR
THE PROJECT.

ANNUAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ FEES

General Manager Cook reported that the Finance and Personnel Committee annually reviews the
Board of Directors’ compensation and recommends to the Board to either accept or deny a fee
increase for the new calendar year. Mr. Cook said that the last Board of Directors’ compensation
increase was effective in January 2015. The current compensation for the Board of Directors is
$248 per meeting, not to exceed 10 meetings per month. In accordance with Section 20202 et
seq. of the California Water Code, the Board’s meeting compensation increases on January 1 of
each year by five (5%) percent. If the Board accepts the increase, the resulting per meeting fee
will be $260 (rounded to the nearest dollar).

Director Swan said that this item was reviewed by the Finance and Personnel Committee meeting
on December 9, 2015 and the members recommended that the proposed increase be discussed by
the full Board. Following discussion, on MOTION by Swan, seconded and unanimously carried,
THE BOARD ACCEPTED THE FIVE (5%) PERCENT SCHEDULED COMPENSATION
INCREASE FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2016 FOR A TOTAL OF $260 PER MEETING NOT TO
EXCEED 10 MEETINGS PER MONTH.

ELECTION OF OFFICERS FOR 2016

General Manager Cook acted as temporary Chair and called for nominations. Director LaMar
nominated Director Matheis as President and Director Reinhart as Vice President. There being no
further nominations, Director Swan made a motion for nominations to be closed. On a unanimous
vote MARY AILEEN MATHEIS WAS ELECTED PRESIDENT AND DOUGLAS REINHART
WAS ELECTED VICE PRESIDENT.

OTHER BUSINESS

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

General Manager Cook reported that the Board recently approved a Professional Services
Agreement with GHD with Dr. Iday Syachrani as the consultant performing the District’s

A-6



Enterprise Asset Management services. Mr. Cook said that Dr. Syachrani left his employment
with GHD and is now working at Kayuga Solutions. He further said that GHD agreed to assign
the agreement with all of the terms and conditions to Kayuga and that he recently executed the
assignment.

Mr. Cook provided an update on the planned power outage at the MWRP in order to replace the
electrical conductors. He said that staff worked last week and over the weekend to complete the
project and recognized staff for its efforts.

Mr. Cook reported on the conservation efforts for residential customers in November which
equaled an 18% savings. He said that the cumulative reduction is at 17.8% and that the District
is in good shape with the current regulations. He said that in the coming months that staff will
be targeting the commercial and industrial users.

DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS

Director Swan reported that he attended an Explore Oceans event and that on behalf of the
District he accepted the District a plaque for the District’s donation. He said that he attended the
usual meetings along with Mr. Richard Bell’s retirement event today at MWDOC.

Director Reinhart said that he attended a MWDOC Finance and Administration Committee
meeting where using reserve funds for various projects was discussed. He also said that Mr. Matt
Stone is Castaic Lake Water Agency’s new General Manager.

Director Matheis reported that she attended an ACWA conference, an Urban Water Institute
Planning Committee meeting, and a Global Village presentation. She further said that she is

honored to be elected President for 2016 and is delighted to have Director Reinhart as a co-leader

Director LaMar reported that he was asked to be Chair of the ACWA Federal Affairs Committee
for 2016 and said that he would be conferring with Director Swan for his insight on issues.

IRWD’s consultant Reed reported on meetings he attended on behalf of the District.
ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business, President Matheis adjourned the meeting at 6:10 p.m.

APPROVED and SIGNED this 11" day of January, 2016.

President, IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

Secretary IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

A-7



APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Legal Counsel - Bowie, Arneson,
Wiles & Giannone

A-8



January 11, 2016

Prepared by: Jennifer Davis/Tanja Fournier
Submitted by: Robert Jacobson/Cheryl
Approved by: Paul Cook

CONSENT CALENDAR

NOVEMBER 2015 TREASURY REPORTS
SUMMARY:
The following is submitted for the Board’s information and approval:

A. The Investment Summary Report for November 2015. This Investment
Summary Report is in conformity with the 2015 Investment Policy and provides
sufficient liquidity to meet estimated expenditures during the next six months, as
outlined in Exhibit “A”.

B. The Monthly Interest Rate Swap Summary as of November 30, 2015, as outlined
in Exhibit “B”.

C. The Summary of Payroll ACH payments in the total amount of $1,743,254, as
outlined in Exhibit “C”.

D. The November 30, 2015 Disbursement Summary of warrants 362729 through
363366, wire transfers, Workers’ Compensation distributions, payroll
withholding distributions, and voided checks in the total amount of $15,935,844
as outlined in Exhibit “D”.

E. The Disclosure Report of Reimbursements to Board Members and Staff for
November 2015, detailing payments or reimbursements for individual charges of
$100.00 or more per transaction, as outlined in Exhibit “E”.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

As of November 30, 2015, the book value of the investment portfolio was $239,635,675, with a
0.55% rate of return and a market value of $239,519,411. Based on the District’s September 30,
2015 quarterly real estate investment rate of return of 12.84%, the weighted average return for
the fixed income and real estate investments was 3.40%.

As of November 30, 2015, the total notional amount of the interest rate swap portfolio was
$130 million of fixed payer swaps. Cash accrual in November from all swaps was negative
$622,801.

Payroll ACH payments totaled $1,743,254, and wire transfers, all other ACH payments, and
checks issued for debt service, accounts payable, payroll, and water purchases for November
totaled $15,935,844.

BOARD-Monthly Treasury Reports 11-2015.docx



Consent Calendar — November 2015 Treasury Reports
January 11, 2016
Page 2

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

This item is not a project as defined in the California Environmental Quality Act Code of
Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3 Section 15378.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was not submitted to a Committee; however, the investment and interest rate swap
reports are submitted to the Finance and Personnel Committee on a monthly basis.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD RECEIVE AND FILE THE TREASURER’S INVESTMENT
SUMMARY REPORT, THE MONTHLY INTEREST RATE SWAP SUMMARY FOR
NOVEMBER 2015, AND DISCLOSURE REPORT OF REIMBURSEMENTS TO BOARD
MEMBERS AND STAFF; APPROVE THE NOVEMBER 2015 SUMMARY OF PAYROLL
ACH PAYMENTS IN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF $1,743,254 AND APPROVE THE
NOVEMBER 2015 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE DISBURSEMENT SUMMARY OF
WARRANTS 362729 THROUGH 363366, WORKERS’ COMPENSATION
DISTRIBUTIONS, WIRE TRANSFERS, PAYROLL WITHHOLDING DISTRIBUTIONS
AND VOIDED CHECKS IN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF $15,935,844.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit “A” — Investment Summary Report

Exhibit “B” — Monthly Interest Rate Swap Summary

Exhibit “C” — Monthly Payroll ACH Summary

Exhibit “D”” — Monthly Summary of District Disbursements

Exhibit “E” — Disclosure of Reimbursements to Board Members and Staff



Exhibit "A"
Irvine Ranch Water District
Investment Portfolio Summary
November 2015

Monthly Fixed Income Yield Portfolio Distribution Investment Summary
Rise% Agency Type PAR Book Value  Market Value
0.56% + A LA Discount Note Agency Note 138,000,000  138361.276  138.216380
' o~/ \ —— 13.79% LAF 50000000 50000000 50029732
R - Direct Muni \Agency Discount Note 33,000,000 32985261 32,983.960
0.52% / \/ 3.41% Collateral Deposit 10,131,249 10,131,249 10,131,249)
/f Direct Muni 8.157.889 8.157,889 8,157,889
0.50% it {Grand Total _239.289,138 239,633,675 239519411
0.48% Collateral
" Deposit
0.46% - - ™ - T - - v 4.23%
2 O O \J ] S O S O >
NI PP YOY PPN
& K Qe*d “9‘ & ‘b's\ \°o W v”" ‘_},Q' & ‘\s‘ Agency Note
57.67%
. . Top Issuers
Weighted Average Return Including Maturity Distribution P
Real Estate Portfolio e % Portfolio
56.89% g
£.00% |Fed Home Loan Bank 71,000,000 29.66%
in ) 5 Fed Home Loan Mortgage Corp 50,000,000 20.90%
' /___._..—o_.-—o—.-—-o-—*_ State of California Treasury - LAIF 50,000,000 20.90%,
3.00% T Fed Natl Mongage Assoc 40,000,000 16.72%
2.50% [ETWD 8,157,889 341%
2.00% |Citi-Group Collateral 7,921,249 3.31%)
1.50% 20.50% Fed Ag Mongage Corp 51000.000 2.00%
o Fed Farm Credit Bank 5,000,000 2.0%
0.50% 8.36% 10.44% |Merrill Lynch Collateral 2,210,000 0.92%
il -
X T 7 T - - T T y T T V 0.00%
A BN R
Oé‘ \,,o ‘(,,*o’ “q} Yﬁ “:5\ \o(‘ » Y"Q "f‘q oé edl 0-6 Months 6-12 Months 12-18 18-24 24-36 36+ Months

Months Months Months



SETTLMT *

10/26/15

10/09/14
10/29/14
05/27/14
01/15/13
06/30/15
07/29/15
04/28/15
11/23/15
10/16/15
05/20/15
10/14/15
05/20/15
05/20/15
06/04/15
07/01/15
11/20/14
05/08/14
06/09/15
10/19/15
06/15/15
11/28/14
09/2115
10/08/15
09/21/15
06/15/15
08/27/15
11/05/15
09/16/15
09/29/15
07/29/15

05/30/15

SUB-TOTAL

Call
Schedule

NiA
One Tume
Continuons after

Contnuous afer

Call

NA
NiA
NA

07/15/13

05/15/15
NiA
WA
N/A
06/13/14
NiA
NiA
03/15/16
03/28/16
01/16/13

Maturity
Date

12/01/15

12/01/15
12/18/15
12/21/15
01/15/16
01/25/16
02/24/16
02/26/16
03/16/16
04/07/16
05/04/16
05/13/16
05/18/16
05/27/16
06/20/16
06/24/16
06/27/16
07/05/16
08/25/16
09/28/16
10/13/16
11/15/16
12/09/16
01/30/17
02/22/17
03/30/17
05/30/17
08/28/17
09/15/17
09/28/17
10/16/17

04/30/36

RESTRICTED CASH (Swap Collateral Deposits)®

11/02/15
05/29/15

SUB-TOTAL

TOTAL INVESTMENTS

Aaa/AA+/NR
Aaa/AA+/NR
Aaa/ AAHAAA
NA/AAHAAA
NR
NR
NR
NR
NR
Aaa/AA+/NR
Aaa/AA+HAAA
Aaa/AA+/NR
Aaa/AAHAAA
Aaa/AA+/NR
Aaa/AA+/NR
Aaa/AA+HAAA
Aaa/AA+HAAA
Aaa/AA+HAAA
Aaa/AA+HAAA

Aaa/AA+/NR
Aaa/ AA+HAAA
Aaa/AAHAAA
Aaa/AAHAAA

Aaa/AA+/NR

Aaa/AA+/NR
Aaa/AA+AAA
Aaa/AA+/NR
Aaa/AA+/NR

October

as of the most recent quarter-end as reported by LAIF
market values are determined using Bank of New York ("Trading Prices”). Bloomberg
dealer pricing

(loss) calculated against carry value using the trading value provided by Bank of New York/or Brokers

Real estate rate of retum is based on most recent quarter end return
Direct Muni - ETWD
Swap Collateral Deposits assumes 6 month maturity, dependent on interest rate changes

y Report is in

with the 2015

Policy

provides sufficient liquidity to meet the next six months estimated expenditures

INVESTMENT
TYPE

LAIF

FHLB - Note
FHLB - Discount Note
FHLMC - Discount Note
FNMA - Discount Note
FHLB - Discount Notc
FHLB - Note
FHLB - Note
FHLMC - Note
FHLB - Note
FHLMC - Note
FHLB - Note
FHLB - Note
FHLMC - Note
FNMA - Note
FHLMC - Note
FNMA - Note
FAMCA - Note
FHLMC - Note
FHLB - Note
FNMA - Note
FHLMC - Note
FHLB - Note
FHLB - Note
FHLB - Note
FHLMC - Note
FFCB - Note
FHLB - Note

Direct Muni

Collateral Deposit
Collateral Deposit

Petty Cash
Ck Balance

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
INVESTMENT SUMMARY REPORT

11/30/15

INSTITUTION /
ISSUER

State of California Tsy

Fed Natt Mortgage Assoc
Fed Home Loan Bank
Fed Natl Mortgage Assoc

Fed Home Loan Bank Discount Note
Fed Home Loan Mortgage Corp -Discount Note
Fed Natl Mortgage Discount Note
Fed Home Loan Bank Discount Note
Fed Home Loan Bank
Fed Home Loan Bank
Fed Home Loan Mortgage Corp
Fed Home Loan Bank
Fed Home Loan Mortgage Corp
Fed Home Loan Bank
Fed Homc Loan Bank
Fed Home Loan Mortgage Corp
Fed Nat! Mortgage Assoc
Fed Home Loan Mortgage Corp
Fed Natl Mortgage Assoc
Fed Ag Mortgage Corp
Fed Home Loan Mortgage Corp
Fed Home Loan Bank
Fed Natl Mortgage Assoc
Fed Home Loan Mortgage Corp
Fed Home Loan Bank
Fed Home Loan Bank
Fed Home Loan Bank
Fed Home Loan Mortgage Corp
Fed Farm Credit Bank
Fed Home Loan Bank

ETWD

Cit-Group
Merrill Lynch

Bank of America

PAR
Amount

$50.000.000

5.000.000
5,000,000
5,000.000
5.000.000
5,000,000
10,000,000
10 000,000
8,000.000
5,000.000
3,000.000
5,000.000
5.000.000
5.000.000
5.000.000
5.000,000
5.000.000
5.000.000
10,000.000
10.000 000
5.000,000
5,000,000
5,000.000
5.000,000
5,000.000
5,000,000
5.000.000
5.000.000
5,000,000
5.000.000
5.000,000

8,157.889

£279 157 ’R9

$7,921,249
$2,210,000

£10131 249

$239289 138

COUPON ORIGINAL ~ CARRY VALUE  MARKET VALUE"
DISCOUNT YIELD YTFC COST 11/30/2015
0360% $50 000,00000  $50,000.000 00 50,029,732 30
0270%  0233% 0233% 5,002,100 00 5,000.000 00 5,000,000 00
0300%  0200% 0200% 5,005,670 00 5,000,232 27 5,000,400 00
0375%  0241% 5,010,450 00 5.000,364 75 5,000,550 00
0375%  0390% 4,997,750 00 4,999 751 37 5,001,050 00
0150%  0152% 4,995,645 83 4,998,854 21 4,999.100 00
0175%  0178% 9,.989.791 67 9,995.868 06 9.995.300 00
0190%  0193% 9983.797 22 9995250 00 9.995.000 00
0200%  0203% 7994,933 33 7.995,288 89 7.994,560 00
0220%  0220% 5000000 00 5000.000 00 4.997.200 00
0300%  0315% 2999.565 00 2,999.807 36 2999.430 00
0500%  0238% 5,007.600 00 5005879 25 5,001 350 00
0250%  0305% 4.997 285 00 4,998.739 46 4995 050 00
2500%  0304% 5.111650 00 5053.280 70 5.049 850 00
0340%  0355% 4.999 200 00 4,999,576 96 4.996 450 00
0375%  0345% 5,001,450 00 5,000 832 03 4997,050 00
0375%  0424% 4,996,091 65 4,998 603 68 4.996,950 00
0375%  0484% 4,988,300 00 4,996.782 13 4,995,100 00
2000%  0467% 10.18490000  10,111.858 24 10,100,700 00
1250%  0342% 10.08528000  10.074,742 53 10,045.500 00
0970%  0578% 5,025,900 00 5.016,893 62 5.020.400 00
0600%  0600% 0600% 5,000,000 00 5,000,000 00 5.002.100 00
1625%  0532% 5,066.150 00 5055,595 73 5.045.300 00
1250%  0492% 5049.445 00 5.043882 44 5,028,850 00
0875%  0570% 5,021.500 00 5.018,564 42 5,006,350 00
0625% 0727% 4.990.950 00 4,993.288 61 4.988 050 00
0625%  0642% 4,998 500 00 4.998.724 30 4,982,550 00
0750%  0800% 4,995,500 00 4,995,676 74 4985 400 00
0900%  0915% 0960% 4.998 500 00 4.998.656 16 5,004,300 00
0810%  0815% 4,999,500 00 4,999.543 15 4,983,450 00
1000%  0997% 5.000,000 00 5,000,000 00 4,993.000 00
4570%  4570% 4570% 8,157.889 19 8.157.889 19 8.157.889 19
£229 655293 89 $229 504 42 24 £229388 161 49
0080% $7.921,24913  $7.921.249 13 7921.249 13
0080% $2210,00000  $2.210,000 00 2.210 000 00
£10 13124913 $10131.249 13 $10.131.249 13

$239.786.543 02 $239,635.675 37 $239 519 410 62

3,400 00
201281997
$241.802 762 99

Outstanding Variable Rate Debt

Net Qutstanding Variable Rate Debt (Less $130 million fixed-payer swaps)
Investment Balance:

Investment to Variable Rate Debt Ratio:

Portfolio - Average Number of Days To

Investment Real
Portfolio Portfolio
November 055% 12.84%
October 055% 12.84%

Change

UNREALIZED®
GAINALOSS)

29.73230

16773
18525
1.298 63
24579
(568 06)
(250 00)
(72889)
(2.800 00)
(37736)
(4,329 25)
(3.689 46)
(3430 70)
(3.126 96)
(3.782 03)
(1.653 68)
(1.682 13)
(11.158 24)
(29.24253)
3,506 38
2,100 00
(10295 73)
(15 032 44)
(12,214 42)
(5.23861)
(16,174 30)
(10,276 74)
5.64384
(16.093 15)
(7.000 00)

($116.264 75)

$319.800.000
$189 800.000
$241,802,763

196
Weighted Avg,
Return

3.40%
332%



DATE

11/15
12/15
01/16
02/16
03/16
04/16
05/16
06/16
07/16
08/16
09/16
10/16

SUB-TOTAL

13 Months - 3 YEARS
11/01/16 - 12/31/2016
1/1/2017 - 3/31/2017
04/01/17-06/30/17
07/01/17 - 9/30/2017
10/30/17 - 12/31/2017

04/30/2036

TOTALS

% OF PORTFOLIO

TOTAL

$50,000,000
15,000,000
10,000,000
20,000,000
18,131,249
5,000,000
18,000,000
15,000,000
5,000,000
10,000,000
10,000,000
5,000,000

$181,131,249

10,000,000
15,000,000
5,000,000
15,000,000
5,000,000

8,157,889

$239,289,138

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

SUMMARY OF MATURITIES
11/30/15

% LAIF Agency Notes

20.90%  $50,000,000
6.27% 15,000,000
4.18% 5,000,000
8.36%
7.58%
2.09% 5,000,000
7.52% 18,000,000
6.27% 15,000,000
2.09% 5,000,000
4.18% 10,000,000
4.18% 10,000,000
2.09% 5,000,000

75.70%  $50,000,000 $88,000,000
4.18% 10,000,000
6.27% 15,000,000
2.09% 5,000,000
6.27% 15,000,000
2.09% 5,000,000
3.41%

100.00%  $50,000,000  $138,000,000
20.90% 57.67%

Agency Discount Collateral Deposit

Notes

5,000,000
20,000,000
8,000,000

$33,000,000

$33,000,000

13.79%

Direct Muni
$10,131,249
$10,131,249
8,157,889
$10,131,249 $8,157.889
4.23% 3.41%



Sycamore Canyon

Wood Canyon Villas
ITC (230 Commerce)
Waterworks Business Pk.

Sand Canyon Professional Center

ACQUISITION
DATE

Dec-92
Jun-91
Jul-03

Nov-08

Jul-12

Irvine Ranch Water District

Summary of Real Estate
9/30/2015
PROPERTY OWNERSHIP

TYPE INTEREST
Apartments Fee Simple

Apartments Limited Partner
Office Building Fee Simple
Research & Dev Fee Simple
Medical Office Fee Simple

$

ORIGINAL
COST

43,550,810
6,000,000
5,739,845
8,630,577

8.648.594
72,569,826

RATE OF RETURN
QUARTER ENDED
Sep-15
16.97%
8.53%

4.68%

5.15%

8.12%
12.84%



IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT INVESTMENT SUMMARY REPORT

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY
November 2015
MATURITIES/SALES/CALLS PURCHASES
11/18/2015 FHLB - Note $5,000,000 0.19% 11/5/2015 8/28/2017 FHLB - Note $5,000,000 0.80%
11/23/2015 FHLB - Discount Note $8,000,000 0.10% 11/23/2015 3/16/2016 FHLB - Discount Note $8.000,000 0.20%

A-5



11/30/2015

Effective  Maturity Yearsto
Date Date Maturity
6/4/2006  6/4/2019 3.5
6/17/2006 6/17/2019 35
3/10/2007 3/10/2029 133
3/10/2007 3/10/2029  13.3
Totals/Weighted Avgs 8.0

Total Current Year
Active Swaps

Effective
Date

Maturity
Date

Total Current Year
Terminated Swaps

Counter
Party

Counter
Party

Notional Amt

20,000,000
20,000,000
30,000,000
30,000,000
30.000.000

$ 130,000,000

$ 130,000,000

2ar Terminated

Notional Amt

November
LIBOR Avg %
Base
Type Index Fixed Rate
FXP LIBOR 6.200%
FXP LIBOR 6.200%
FXP LIBOR 6.140%
FXP LIBOR 5.687%
FXP LIBOR 5.687%
5.949%
waps
Base
Type Index Fixed Rate

Current Fiscal Year - Total Swa

Total Current Year
Active & Terminated Swaps

(10,000)
(20,000)
(30,000)
(40,000)
(50,000)
(60,000)
(70,000)
(80,000)
(90,000)
(100,000)

Net receipts/(paymennts)
(000's)

$ 130,000,000

Interest Rate Swap Portfolio
Cash Flow Comparison

IRVINE RANCH WATER
INTEREST RATE SWAP MONTHLY SUMMARY REPORT - DETAIL

>

N A
& o &

'\’5

2015
12-Mo
0
(Since 6/06)
Current Cumulative
Prior Month Month Fiscal YTD Cash Flow
(100,085) (100,052) $ (500,244) $ (9,155,211)
(100,085) (100,052) (500,244) (9,155,211)
(148,441) (148,411) (742,545)  (13,580,448)
(137,232) (137,143) (686,141)  (12,195,949)
(137,232) (137,143) (686,141)  (12,195,949)
$ (623,075) $ (622,801) $ (3,115,315) $ (56,282,769)
$ 1623.075) $ (622,801 $ (3.115.315) $ (56,282,769)
Cash Flow
rrior Current Cumulative
Month Month Fiscal YTD Cash Flow
$ $ $ $
Cash Flow
rrior Current Cumulative
Month Month Fiscal YTD Cash Flow

$ (623,075) $

(622,801) $ (3,115,315) $ (56,262,769)

===« Swap/VRDO Cash Flow

= Fixed Debt Cash Flow

$ b O
S S
& oA &

Mark to Market
Current Mark to Notional
Market Difference

$ 16,569,517 $  (3,430,483)
16,564,639 (3,435,361)
24,864,445 (5,135,555)
17,465,807 (12,534,193)
17,430,666 (12,569,334)

$ 92,895,074 $ (37,104,926)

$ 92,895,074 § (37,104,926)

Mark to Market
Current Mark to Notional
Market Difference
$ $
Mark to Market
Current Mark to Notional
Market Difference

$ 92,895074 $ (37,104,926)

Cash Flow Comparison
Synthetic Fixed vs. Fixed Rate Debt

Cash Flow to Date

Synthelic Fixed=  $80,173,538

Fixed Rate=  $96,275,887

Assumptions:

- Fixed rate debt issued at 5 10% in
Jun-06, and 4 93% in Mar-07
(estimated TE rates - Bloomberg)

- ‘Synthetic' includes swap cash
flow + interest + fees to date

12/30/2015
10:44 AM



Exhibit "C"

MONTHLY SUMMARY OF PAYROLL ACH PAYMENTS

November
2015
AMOUNT VENDOR PURPQOSE
11/13/2015 966,592.17 BANK OF AMERICA ACH Payments for Payroll
11/27/12015 776,662.29 BANK OF AMERICA ACH Payments for Payroll

$1,743,254.46




Page 1 of 1
Exhibit "D"

>
IRWD Ledger Report Date: 07-DEC-2015 14:59
Void Payment Register Page: 1
Include Zero ARmount Payments: Yes Period From: 01-NOV-15 To: 30-NOV-15
Display Payee Address: No Date: Void Date
Bank: Bank of America N.A. Branch: Los Angeles Account: Checking AP and PR
Bank Account Currency: USD Payment Currency: USD ( US Dollar
Payment Number Date Payee Name Site Address Payment Amount Void Date
Payment Document: IRWD CHECK
360587 06-AUG-15 KYLMAMAA, MARKO PAY 23,59 30-NOV-15
360639 06-AUG-15 TRETO, DI-LEITHA PAY 14,50 30-NOV-15
360649 06-AUG-15 WAHI, RISHI PAY 76,84 30-NOV-15
360687 13-AUG-15 ALSEDDEEQI, YOUES PAY 11.04 30-NOV-15
360727 13-AUG-15 DUZGUNCINAR, DOGUKAN PAY 16,07 30-NOV-15
360973 20-AUG-15 MEJIA, FELIX PAY 4.20 30-NOV-15
360977 20-AUG-15 MONDOK, EDNAELINOR PAY 21.968 30-NOV-15
361086 27-AUG-15 CHU, YANG PAY 2.32 30-NOV-15
362604 29-0CT-15 COURTOIS, JULES PAY 20,30 13-NOV-15
Payment Document Subtotal 190.84
Bank Account Subtotal 190.84
Report Count: 9 Report Total 190.84

Total Voids

*+% End of Report ***

D-1

file:///C:/Users/Pan/AppData/Local/Temp/PMWWVIJA .htm 12/7/2015



>

IRWD Ledger
BANK: Bank of America N.A.
Bank Account Currency:
Payment Type: All

Payment Number

Branch
( US Dollar )

USD

Sequence Num Date

Payment Document : IRWD CHECK

362729 03-NOV-15
362730 04-NOV-15
362731 04-NOV-15
362732 04-NOV-15
362733 04-Nov-15
362734 04-NOV-15
362735 04-NOV-15
362736 04-NOV-15
362737 04-NOV-15
362738 04-NOV-15
362739 04-NOV-15
362740 04-NOV-15
362741 04-NOV-15
362742 04-NOV-15
362743 04-NOV-15
362744 04-NOV-15
362745 04-NOV-15
362746 04-NOV-15
362747 04-NOV-15
362748 04-NOV-15
362749 04-NOV-15
362750 04-NOV-15
362751 04-NOV-15
362752 04-NOV-15
362753 04-NOV-15
362754 04-NOV-15

IRWD Ledger

Payment Register For
Los Angeles

01-NOV-15 To 30-NOV-15
Account: Checking AP and PR
Payment Currency:

Display Supplier Address: No
Cleared
Supplier Name Site Payment Amount Date
JCI JONES CINCINNATI 5,505,50 09-NOV-15
CHEMICALS INC
CITY OF IRVINE FINANCE 6,053.23 10-NOV-15
DEPT
CITY OF IRVINE FINANCE 236.70 12-NOV-15
DEPT
CITY OF IRVINE FINANCE 6,053.23 10-NOV-15
DEPT
3 DAY BLINDS LLC 4,296,64 13-NOV-15
4IMPRINT, INC. 637.22 09-NOV-15
AIRGAS, INC. 869.62 09-NOV-15
ALPHA TRAFFIC 1,090.00 09-NOV-15
SERVICES, INC.
APPLIED INDUSTRIAL 222,38 039-NOV-15
TECHNOLOGIES - CA
LLC
ARCADIS U.S., INC. 6,752,40 09-NOV-15
ASSOCIATION OF 33,216.53 16-NOV-15
CALIFORNIA WATER
AGENCIES/JPIA
AT&T 51.59 10-NOV-15
AT&T 3,641.93 09-NOV-15
AUTOZONE PARTS, 132,47 09-NOV-15
INC.
AVISTA 8,313.01 09-NOV-15
TECHNOLOGIES, INC
BANK OF AMERICA 24,167 12-NOV-15
BATTERIES PLUS AND 655 09-NOV-15
BATTERIES PLUS
BULBS
BLAIRS TOWING INC 145,00 20-NOV-15
BRUCE NEWELL 1,316.00 18-NOV-15
C WELLS PIPELINE 5,090,81 13-NOV-15
MATERIALS INC
CALIFORNIA 1,105.00 12-NOV-15
BARRICADE INC
CBNON SOLUTIONS 760.34 09-NOV-15
AMERICA, INC.
CAPTIVE AUDIENCE 85.32 10-NOV-15
MARKETING INC.
CAROLLO ENGINEERS, 11,666.00 13-NOV-15
INC
CDW GOVERNMENT LLC 1,916,02 09-NOV-15
CHEM TECH 6,758.40 16-NOV-15
INTERNATIONAL INC
Payment Register For 01-NOV-15 To 30-NOV-15

BANK: Bank of America N.A. Branch : Los Angeles Account: Checking AP and PR
Bank Account Currency: USD ( US Dollar ) Payment Currency: USD
Payment Type: All Display Supplier Address: No
Cleared
Payment Number Sequence Num Date Supplier Name Site Payment Amount Date
Payment Document : IRWD CHECK
362755 04~-NOV-15 CITY CIRCUIT 3,024.00 09-NOV-15
BREAKERS
362756 04-NOV-15 CITY OF IRVINE 236.70 12-NOV-15
362757 04-NOV-15 CITY OF ORANGE 117.03 09-NOV-15
362758 04-NOV-15 CITY OF SANTA ANA 18,596.63 17-NOV-15
362759 04-NOV-15 CIVILSOURCE, INC. 15,288.00
362760 04-NOV-15 CLA-VAL COMPANY 5,571.78 09-NOV-15
362761 04-NOV-15 COMMERCIAL DOOR OF 348.80 10-NOV-15
ORANGE COUNTY,
INC.
362762 04-NOV-15 D & G SIGNS 4,561.40 10-NOV-15
362763 04-NOV-15 D & H WATER 8,371.66 12-NOvV-15
SYSTEMS INC.
362764 04-NOV-15 DATASITE INC 12,305.00 17-NOV-15
362765 04-NOV-15 DAVIS FARR LLP 44,379.00 16-NOV-15
362766 04-NOV-15 DE VAUL PAINT 974,81 10-NOV-15
COMPANY
362767 04-NOV-15 DELL MARKETING LP 24,230,69 16-NOV-15
362768 04-NOV-15 DIGITAL MAP 4,200.00 09-NOV-15
PRODUCTS, INC,
362769 04-NOV-15 DRAEGER SAFETY INC 447,98 10-NOV-15
362770 04-NOV-15 EAGLE PRINT 1,391.98 09-NOV-15
DYNAMICS
362771 04-NOV-15 ELITE EQUIPMENT, 33.63 10-NOV-15
INC.
362772 04-NOV-15 EMPLOYMENT 11,670.00 09-NOV-15

D-2

file:///C:/Users/Pan/AppData/Local/Temp/4KSJ2TFX.htm

Page 1 of 17

Report Date: 07-DEC-2015 14:59
Page: 1

USD ( US Dollar

Cleared Amount Status
5,505.50 Reconciled
6,053.23 Reconciled

236.70 Reconciled
6,053,23 Reconciled
4,296,64 Reconciled

637.22 Reconciled

869,62 Reconciled
1,090.00 Reconciled

222.38 Reconciled
6,752.,40 Reconciled

33,216.53 Reconciled
51.59 Reconciled
3,641.93 Reconciled

132.47 Reconciled

8,313.01 Reconciled
24,167.94 Reconciled

655,81 Reconciled

145.00 Reconciled
1,316.00 Reconciled
5,090.81 Reconciled
1,105.00 Reconciled

760,34 Reconciled

85.32 Reconciled
11, 666,00 Reconciled
1,916.02 Reconciled
6,758.40 Reconciled

Report Date: 07-DEC-2015 14:59
Page: 2

( US Dollar )

Cleared Amount Status
3,024.00 Reconciled
236.70 Reconciled
117.03 Reconciled
18,596.63 Reconciled
Negotiable
5, Reconciled
Reconciled
4,561.40 Reconciled
8,371.66 Reconciled
12,305.00 Reconciled
44,379.00 Reconciled
974,81 Reconciled
24,230.69 Reconciled
4,200,00 Reconciled
447 98 Receonciled
,391 98 Reconciled
33.63 Reconciled
11,670.00 Reconciled

12/7/2015



362773
362774

362775
362776

362777

362778

362779
362780

IRWD Ledger

04-NOV-15

04-NOV-15

04-NOV-15
04-NOV-15

04-NOV-15

04-NOV-15

04-NOV-15

04-NOV-15

BANK: Bank of America N.A.
Bank Account Currency: USD
Payment Type: All

Payment Number

Sequence Num Date

Payment Document : IRWD CHECK

362781
362782

362783
362784

362785
362786
362787
362788
362789

362790
362791

362792
362793
362794
362795
362796
362797
362798
362799
362800
362801
362802
362803
362804
362805
362806
362807

IRWD Ledger

04-NOvV-15

04-NOV-15

04-NOV-15
04-NOV-15

04-NOV-15
04-NOV-15
04-NOV-15
04-NOV-15
04-NOV-15

04~NOV-15
04-NOV-15

04-NOV-15
04-NOV-15
04-NOV-15
04-NOV-15
04-NOV-15
04-NOV-15
04-NOV-15
04-NOvV-15
04-NOV-15
04-NOV-15
04-NOV-15
04-NOV-15
04-NOV-15
04-NOV-15
04-NOV-15

04-NOV-15

BANK: Bank of America N.A.

Bank Account Currency:

Payment Type: Al}l

Payment Number

Payment Document

362808

362809

362810

362811

Sequence Num Date

IRWD CHECK

04-NOV-15

04-NOV-15

04-Nov-15

04-NOV-15

DEVELOPMENT
DEPARTMENT
ENTERPRISE
SECURITY, INC
EXECUTIVE LIGHTING
& ELECTRIC

FEDEX

FEDEX NATIONAL
LTL, INC
FICCADENTI
WAGGONER AND
CASTLE STRUCTURAL
ENGINEERS INC
FIDELITY SECURITY
LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY

FIRE EXTINGUISHING
SAFETY & SERVICE
FIRST CHOICE
SERVICES

Payment Register For
Branch : Los Angeles
( US Dollar )

Supplier Name

FISHER SCIENTIFIC
COMPANY LLC

FRANK LA PLACA
EXTERMINATING INC
GANAHL LUMBER CO.
GARZA INDUSTRIES,
INC

GHD INC.

GRAINGER

GREAT PACIFIC
EQUIPMENT INC

H20 INNOVATION USA
INC

HAAKER EQUIPMENT
COMPANY

HACH COMPANY
HELPMATES STAFFING
SERVICES

HILL BROTHERS
CHEMICAL COMPANY
HOME DEPOT USA INC
HUNG, MAO

IRVINE PIPE &
SUPPLY INC

IRVINE UNTFIED
SCHOOL DISTRICT
JACOBS PROJECT
MANAGEMENT CO.

JOE RHODES MAINT
SERVICE INC

JOHN MICHAEL COVAS
KABM GROUP INC
KENNY THE PRINTER
KERN COUNTY
TREASURER TAX
COLLECTOR

KHALESSI HOSSEINT,
BEHNAZ

KILL-N-BUGS
TERMITE AND PEST
CONTROL SERVICES
KIMBALL MIDWEST
KINGS COUNTY TAX
COLLECTOR

LU'S LIGHTHOUSE,
INC,

Payment Register For
Branch : Los Angeles
USD ( US Dollar )

Supplier Name

MARINA LANDSCAPE
MAINTENANCE, INC
MC FADDEN-DALE
INDUSTRIAL

MC MASTER CARR
SUPPLY CO
MECHANICAL SEAL

Site

Site

D-3

Account: Checking AP and PR

Payment Currency!

file:///C:/Users/Pan/AppData/Local/Temp/4KSJ2TFX.htm

460.00 03-NOV-15
552,13 10-NOV-15
209,08 12-NOV-15
455.86 10-NOV-15
1,169.00 10-NOV-15
6,217.39 09-NOV~15
509.77 09~NOV-15
207.01 10-NOV-15
01-NOV-15 To 30-NOV-15
Account: Checking AP and PR

Payment Currency: USD

Display Supplier Address: No

Cleared
Payment Amount Date

421,58 09-NOV-15
175.00 13-NOV-15
461,56 16-NOV-15
1,295,57 09-NOV-15
23,760.00 16-NOV-15
2,237.80 09-NOV-15
3,400.00 09-NOV-15
3,299.40 10-NOV-15
2,050.22 09-NOV-15
1,454,11 09-NOV-15
27,425.82 12-Nov-15
14,488,50 12-NOV-15
85,33 12-NOV-15
38.53 039-NOV-15
426.20 09-NOV-15
40,431.48 20-NOV-15
32,200.00 13-Nov-15
578 03 09-NOV-15
194 20 23-NOV-15
1,151 35 09-NOV-15
682 45 09-NOV-15
2,001 75 19-NOV-15
342,83 09-NOV-15
650.00 09-NOV-15
1,072,03 12-NOV-15
21,264.82 16-NOvV-15
372.43 09-NOV-15
01-NOV-15 To 30-NOV-15

460.00
552,13

209,08
455.86

1,169.00

6,217.39

508,77

207.01

Page 2 of 17

Reconciled
Reconciled

Reconciled
Reconciled

Reconciled
Reconciled

Reconciled

Reconciled

Report Date: 07-DEC-2015 14:59

Page:

( US Dollar

Cleared Amount

421.58
175.00

461.56
1,295.57

23,760.00
2,237,80
3,400.00
3,299.40
2,050,22

1,454 11
27,425 82

14,488 50
85,33
38.53

426.20
40,431.48
32,200,00

578,03

94 20

1, 51 35
82 45

2, 01 75
342.83
650,00
1,072,03
21,264.82

372.43

3

Status

Reconciled

Reconciled

Reconciled
Reconciled

Reconciled
Reconciled
Reconciled
Reconciled

Reconciled

Reconciled
Reconciled

Reconciled
Reconciled
Reconciled
Reconciled
Reconciled
Reconciled
Reconciled
Reconciled
Reconciled
Reconciled
Reconciled
Reconciled
Reconciled
Reconciled

Reconciled

Reconciled

Report Date: 07-DEC-2015 14:59

Page:

UsSD { US Dollar

Display Supplier Address: No
Cleared
Payment Amount Date
1,680,00 16-NOV-15
333.94 09-NOV-15
1,015.66 10-NOV-15
1,155.60 13-NOV-15

Cleared Amount

1,680,00
333,94
1,015.66

1,155.60

4

Status

Reconciled
Reconciled
Reconciled

Reconciled

12/7/2015



Page 3 of 17

REPATR INC
362812 04-NOV-15 MSC INDUSTRIAL 1,114.05 13-NOV-15 1,114.05 Reconciled
SUPPLY CO
362813 04-NOV-15 MUNICIPAL 18,031.98 16-NOV-15 18,031.98 Reconciled
MAINTENANCE
EQUIPMENT INC
362814 04-NOV-15 MYERS & SONS HI- 23,390.00 12-NOV-15 23,390.00 Reconciled
WAY SAFETY, INC.
362815 04-NOV-15 NAKAE & ASSOCIATES 3,925.00 10-NOV-15 925,00 Reconciled
362816 04-NOV-15 NATURALWELL, LLC 990.00 09-NOV-15 990.00 Reconciled
362817 04-NOV-15 NATURES IMAGE INC 515.25 10-NOV-15 515.25 Reconciled
362818 04-NOV-15 NAYYERI, SIVOUSH 2,618.00 12-NOV-15 618.00 Reconciled
362819 04-NOV-15 NGUYEN, THUTHUY 24.84 17-NOV-15 24.84 Reconciled
362820 04-NOV-15 NINYO & MOORE 9,774.00 09-NOV-15 774.00 Reconciled
362821 04-NOV-15 OC WELDING 528.20 12-NOV-15 528.20 Reconciled
SERVICES
362822 04-NOV-15 OLIN CORPORATION 20,063.37 16-NOV-15 20,063.37 Reconciled
362823 04-NOV-15 ON ASSIGNMENT LAB 1,141.20 09-NOV-15 1,141.20 Reconciled
SUPPORT
362824 04-NOV-15 ORANGE COUNTY RUTO 396.50 09-NOV-15 396.50 Reconciled
PARTS CO
362825 04-NOV-15 OUTFRONT MEDIA LLC 19,148,50 16-NOV-15 19,148 50 Reconciled
362826 04-NOV-15 PACIFIC HYDROTECH 6,961.14 09-NOV-15 6 961 14 Reconciled
CORPORATION
362827 04-NOV-15 PAI SYSTEMS INC 760,00 19-NOV-15 760.00 Reconciled
362828 04-NOV-15 PARK WEST 9,256,20 20-NOV-15 9,256,20 Reconciled
LANDSCAPE
362829 04-NOV-15 PARKHOUSE TIRE INC 31 05 10-NOV-15 317 Reconciled
362830 04-NOV-15 PARKWAY LAWNMOWER 94 68 10-NovV-15 494 Reconciled
SHOP
362831 04-NOV-15 PATEL, SONAL 58 11 09-NOV-15 583,11 Reconciled
362832 04-NOV-15 PERKINELMER HEALTH 7 32 09-NOV-15 1,775.32 Reconciled
SCIENCES INC
362833 04-NOV-15 PIVOT INTERIORS 2,628.53 09-NOV-15 2,628.53 Reconciled
INC
362834 04-NOV-15 PRAXAIR 559.89 10-NOV-15 559.89 Reconciled
DISTRIBUTION INC
362835 04-NOV-15 PUMPING SOLUTIONS, 1,532.54 12-Nov-15 1,532.54 Reconciled
INC
IRWD Ledger Payment Register For 01-NOV-15 To 30-NOV-15 Report Date: 07-DEC-2015 14:59
BANK: Bank of America N.A. Branch : Los Angeles Account: Checking AP and PR Page: 5
Bank Account Currency: USD ( US Dollar ) Payment Currency: USD ( US Dollar
Payment Type: All Display Supplier Address: No
Cleared
Payment Number Sequence Num Date Supplier Name Site Payment Amount Date Cleared Amount Status
Payment Document IRWD CHECK
362836 04-NOV-15 R&B AUTOMATION, 10,459.80 16-NOV-15 10,459.80 Reconciled
INC.
362837 04-NOV-15 RAM AIR 21,898.76 17-NOV-15 21,898.76 Reconciled
ENGINEERING INC
362838 04-NOV-15 REED, JAMES D 1,947.00 16-NOV-15 1,947.00 Reconciled
362839 04-NOV-15 REFRIGERATION 214.62 10-NOV-15 214.62 Reconciled
SUPPLIES
DISTRIBUTOR
362840 04-NOV-15 RESOURCE BUILDING 495,44 10-NOV-15 495,44 Reconciled
MATERIAL
362841 04-NOV-15 RINCON TRUCK 364.96 09-NOV-15 364,96 Reconciled
CENTER INC.
362842 04-NOV-15 ROBERT HALF 1,876.50 09-NOV-15 1,876.50 Reconciled
INTERNATIONAL,
INC.
362843 04-NOV-15 ROBERTS, JEFFREY B 241.25 13-NOV-15 241 25 Reconciled
362844 04-NOV-15 RYAN HERCO 830.20 09-NOV-15 830 20 Reconciled
PRODUCTS CORP
362845 04-NOV-15 SANNER, DAVID 2,603,00 10-NOV-15 2 60 00 Reconciled
362846 04-NOV-15 SANTA ANA BLUE 1,066.06 17-NOV-15 06 06 Reconciled
PRINT
362847 04-NOV-15 SANTA MARGARITA 570,64 038-NOV-15 570.64 Reconciled
FORD
362848 04-NOV-15 SCHINDLER ELEVATOR 360.28 09-NOV-15 360,28 Reconciled
CORPORATION
362849 04-NOV-15 SHAMROCK SUPPLY CO 727.06 09-NOV-15 727.06 Reconciled
INC
362850 04-NOV-15 SHERWIN WILLIAMS 1,024,19 10-NOV-15 1,024.19 Reconciled
COMPANY
362851 04-NOV-15 SIEMENS DEMAG 982,80 17-NOV-15 962.80 Reconciled
DELAVAL
TURBOMACHINERY,
INC.
362852 04-NOV-15 SOUTHERN 390,395.59 09-NOV-15 390,395.59 Reconciled
CALIFORNIA EDISON
COMPANY
362853 04-NOV-15 SOUTHERN 45.36 16-NOV-15 45.36 Reconciled
CALIFORNIA
SECURITY CENTER,
INC.
362854 04-NOV-15 STANDARD REGISTER 1,442.29 09-NOV-15 1,442,229 Reconciled
COMPANY
362855 04-NOV-15 SUSAN A, SIROTA 4,195,00 09-NOV-15 195 00 Reconciled
362856 04-NOV-15 THE SUMMIT AT 3,138.16 24-NOV-15 138 16 Reconciled

TURTLE RIDGE

D-4
file:///C:/Users/Pan/AppData/Local/Temp/4KSJ2TFX .htm 12/7/2015



IRWD Ledger
BANK: Bank of America N.A.
Bank Account Currency:
Payment Type: All

usD

Payment
Branch : Los Angeles
( US Dollar }

Payment Number Sequence Num Date Supplier Name
Payment Document ; IRWD CHECK
362857 04~-NOV-15 THOMPSON
INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY
362858 04-NOV-15 THYSSENKRUPP
ELEVATOR
CORPORATION
362859 04-NOV-15 TRI POINTE HOMES,
INC.
362860 04-NOV-15 TROPICAL PLAZA
NURSERY INC
362861 04-NOV-15 TRUCPARCO
362862 04-NOV-15 U.S. HEALTHWORKS
MEDICAL GROUP
P.C.
362863 04-NOV-15 ULINE INC
362864 04-NOV-15 ULTRA SCIENTIFIC
362865 04-NOV-15 UNION MARKET
362866 04-NOV-15 UNITED PARCEL
SERVICE INC
362867 04-NOV-15 UNITED STATES POST
OFFICE
362868 04-NOV-15 UNITED WATER
WORKS, INC.
362869 04-NOV-15 UNIVERSAL ACOUSTIC
& EMISSION
TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
362870 04-NOV-15 VERIZON CALIFORNIA
INC
362871 04-NOV-15 WALTERS WHOLESALE
ELECTRIC
362872 04-NOV-15 WASTE MANAGEMENT
OF ORANGE COUNTY
362873 04-NOV-15 WAXIE'S
ENTERPRISES, INC
362874 04-NOV-15 WECK LABORATORIES
INC
362875 04-NOV-15 WESTERN
EXTERMINATOR
COMPANY
362876 04-NOV-15 ZEBRON CONTRACTING
INC
362877 04-NOV-15 Spangenberg, Carl
W (Carl)
362878 04-NOV-15 Alberts, Dale L
(Dale)
362879 04-NOV-15 Bertsch, Frederick
J (Jeff)
IRWD Ledger Payment
BANK: Bank of America N.A, Branch : Los Angeles

Bank Account Currency: USD

Payment Type: All

{ US Dollar

Payment Number Sequence Num Date Supplier Name
Payment Document IRWD CHECK

362880 04-NOV-15 Ronin, Gretchen C
{Gretchen)

362881 04-NOV-15 Faulds, Jonathan

362882 04-NOV-15 Oldewage, Lars D
(Lars)

362883 04-NQV-15 Valencia, Reynaldo

362884 04-NOV-15 Lao, Richard §

362885 04-NOV-15 Fournier, Tanja L
(Tanja)

362886 04-NOV-15 BREITER, KENNETH
SCOTT

362887 04-NOV-15 CHRISTNAGEL,
KELLIE MARIE

362888 04-NOV-15 KORTE, LAURIE E

362889 04-NOV-15 CURTIS, ERIN HAY

362890 10-NOV-15 SIEMENS INDUSTRY
INC

362891 12-NOV-15 Coria, Alejandro
{Alex)

362892 12-NOV-15 WMcNulty, Amy K
(Amy)

362893 12-NQV-15 Compton, Christine
A

362094 12-NOV-15 Silva, Constantino
(Tino)

362895 12-NOV-15 Swift, Ian P (Ian)

01-NOV-15 To
Account:
Payment Currency:

Register For

30-NOV-15
Checking AP and PR

Report Date:
Page:
UsSD ( US Dollar })

Display Supplier Address: No
Cleared
Site Payment Amount Date Cleared Rmount
201.23 10-NOV-15 201.23
173.65 09-NOV-15 173.65
7,384.05 10-NOV-15 7,384.,05
682.81 09-NOvV-15 682.81
6,311,12 18-NOV-15 6,311.12
325,00 13-NOV-15 325.00
3,365.26 12-NovV-15 3,365 26
94,36 10-NOV-15 94 36
4,134,27 05-NOV-15 134 27
479.03 09-NOV-15 479 03
27,083.33 17-NOV-15 27,083,33
2,278.79 09-NOV-15 2,278.79
151,92 09-NOV-15 151,92
273 59 12-NovV-15 273.59
231 495 12-NOV-15 231.49
1,835 42 09-NOvV-15 1,835.42
991 29 10-NOV-15 991.29
2,125 00 12-NOV-15 2,125.00
10,106 50 18-NOV-15 10,106.50
18,610 00 13-NOV-15 18,610.00
272 00 17-NOV-15 272.00
80 00 19-NOV-15 80.00
B8 49 12-NOV-15 88.49
Register For 01-NOV-15 To 30-NOV-15 Report Date:
Account: Checking AP and PR Page:
Payment Currency: USD ( US Dollar
Display Supplier Address: No
Cleared
Site Payment Amount Date Cleared Amount
142,62 05-NOV-15 142.62
199.00 10-NOV-15 199.00
36.10 09-NOV-15 36.10
29.20
9.71 16-NOV-15 9.71
774,43 05-NOV-15 774,43
SEVIERVILL 1,727.48 10-NOV-15 1,727.48
E
HOLLYWOOD 1,727.48 10-NOV-15 1,727.48
DEARBORN 1,727.48 09-NOV-15 1,727.48
HEIGHT
GALLATIN 1,727.48 10-NOV-15 1,727.48
CAROL 10,938.24 16-NOV-15 10,938.24
STREAM 1
300.00
33.24 24-NOV-15 33.24
100.40
310.00
35.50 17-NOV-15 35.50

D-5

file:///C:/Users/Pan/AppData/Local/Temp/4KSJ2TFX .htm

Page 4 of 17

07-DEC-2015 14:59

6

Status

Reconciled

Reconciled

Reconciled
Reconciled
Reconclled

Reconciled

Reconciled
Reconciled
Reconciled
Reconciled
Reconciled

Reconciled

Reconciled

Reconciled

Reconciled

Reconciled

Reconciled

Reconciled

Reconciled

Reconciled

Reconciled

Reconciled

Reconciled

07-DEC-2015 14:59

1

Status

Reconciled

Reconciled
Reconciled

Negotiable
Reconciled
Reconciled
Reconciled
Reconciled

Reconciled

Reconciled
Reconciled

Negotiable
Reconciled
Negotiable
Negotiable

Reconciled

12/7/2015



Page 5 of 17

362896 12-NOV-15 Welch, Kelly A 415.50 13-NOV-15 415,50 Reconciled
(Kellie)
362897 12-NOV-15 Pfister, Ken D 40,51 30-NOV-15 40.51 Reconciled
(Ken)
362898 12-NOV-15 Lewis, Lyndy R 567.30 16-NOV-15 567.30 Reconciled
362899 12-NOV-15 Matheis, Mary 1,511.26 17-NOV-15 1,511,26 Reconciled
Aileen
362900 12-NOV-15 Bennett, Ray R 188.65 16-NOV-15 188.65 Reconciled
(Ray)
362901 12-NOV-15 Valencia, Reynaldo 250.00 18-NQV-15 250.00 Reconciled
362902 12-NOV-15 Tegel, Zackariah W 250,00 24-NOV-15 250.00 Reconciled
(zZack)
362903 12-NOV-15 A&A WIPING CLOTH 682.56 16-NOV-15 682,56 Reconciled
co
362904 12-NOV~-15 AAF INTERNATIONAL 3,141.75 16-NOV-15 3,141.75 Reconciled
362905 12-NOV-15 ADS LLC 1,936.50 16-NOV-15 1,936.50 Reconciled
362906 12-NOV-15 ADVANCED 3,870,00 19-NOV-15 3,870.00 Reconciled
ENVIRONMENTAL
COMPLIANCE, LLC
IRWD Ledger Payment Register For 01-NOV-15 To 30-NOV-15 Report Date:; 07-DEC-2015 14:58
BANK: Bank of America N.A, Branch : Los Angeles Account: Checking AP and PR Page: 8
Bank Account Currency: USD ( US Dollar ) Payment Currency: USD ( US Dollar
Payment Type: All Display Supplier Address: No
Cleared
Payment Number Sequence Num Date Supplier Name Site Payment Amount Date Cleared Amount Status
Payment Document : IRWD CHECK
362907 12-NOV-15 BAIRGAS, INC, 1,215.69 16-NOV-15 1,215,69 Reconciled
362908 12-NOV-15 ALEXANDER'S 109,796.59 18-NOV-15 109,796.59 Reconciled
CONTRACT SERVICES,
INC,
362909 12-NOV-15 ALTMAN SPECIALTY 236.39 16-NOV-15 236.39 Reconciled
PLANTS, INC
362910 12-NOV-15 ANTHEM BLUE CROSS 562.26 17-NOV-15 562 26 Reconciled
362911 12-NOV-15 ANTHONY SUFFREDINT 2,800,00 16-NOV-15 2,800 00 Reconciled
362912 12-NOV-15 APCO GRAPHICS INC 108.00 16-NOV-15 108 00 Reconciled
362913 12-NOV-15 APPLIED INDUSTRIAL 57.94 16-NOV-15 57 94 Reconciled
TECHNOLOGTIES - CA
LLC
362914 12-NOV-15 APPLIED TECHNOLOGY 1,897.72 16-NOV-15 1,897.72 Reconciled
GROUP INC
362915 12-NOV-15 ASHFORD, WALT 390.44 16-NOV-15 390.44 Reconciled
362916 12-NOV-15 AT&T 1,678.41 17-NOV-15 1,676.41 Reconciled
362917 12-NOV-15 BDC SPECIAL WASTE 207.20 16-NOV-15 207.20 Reconciled
362918 12-NOV-15 BELL TOWER FLORIST 200.00 01-DEC-15 200.00 Reconciled
& GIFTS
362919 12-NOV-15 BIGWIG MONSTER, 10,900.00 1B-NOV-15 10,900.00 Reconciled
LLC
362920 12-NOV-15 BIOMAGIC INC 9,157.70 16-NOV-15 157 70 Reconciled
362921 12-NOV-15 BORCHARD SURVEYING 4,570,00 16-NOV-15 570 00 Reconciled
& MAPPING, INC.
362922 12-NOV-15 BOYD & ASSOCIATES 180,00 16-NOV-15 180 00 Reconciled
362923 12-NOV-15 BROWN, CLAYTON 17.75 17-NOV-15 17 75 Reconciled
362924 12-NOV-15 BROWN, TIM E 18.24 23-NOV-15 18 24 Reconciled
362925 12-NOV-15 C WELLS PIPELINE 15,757.40 24-NovV-15 757 40 Reconciled
MATERIALS INC
362926 12-NOV-15 CABELA'S MARKETING 3,105.73 16-NOV-15 3,105.73 Reconciled
AND BRAND
MANAGEMENT INC
362927 12-NOV-15 CALIFORNIA 2,830.00 18-NOV-15 2,830.00 Reconciled
BARRICADE INC
362928 12-NOV-15 CANON FINANCIAL 1,315.46 16-NOV-15 1,315.46 Reconciled
SERVICES, INC
362929 12-NOV-15 CANON SOLUTIONS 9.93 13-NOV-15 9.93 Reconciled
AMERICA, INC.
362930 12-NOV-15 CAPTIVE AUDIENCE 37.80 17-NOV-15 37.80 Reconciled
MARKETING INC.
362931 12-NOV-15 CARL WARREN & CO 2,362.69 16-NOV-15 2,362.69 Reconciled
362932 12-NOV-15 CDW GOVERNMENT LLC 1,679.86 16-NOV-15 1,679.86 Reconciled
362933 12-NOV-15 CHEM TECH 20,275.20 02-DEC-15 20,275,20 Reconciled
INTERNATIONAL INC
362934 12-NOV-15 CITY OF IRVINE 80,623.50 18-NOV-15 80,623.50 Reconciled
362935 12-NOV-15 CITY OF IRVINE 174.64 Negotiable
IRWD Ledger Payment Register For 01-NOV-15 To 30-NOV-15 Report Date: 07-DEC-2015 14:59
BANK: Bank of America N.A. Branch : Los Angeles Account: Checking AP and PR Page: 9
Bank Account Currency USD ( US Dollar ) Payment Currency: USD ( US Dollar
Payment Type: All Display Supplier Address: No
Cleared
Payment Number Sequence Num Date Supplier Name Site Payment Amount Date Cleared Amount Status
Payment Document : IRWD CHECK
362936 12-NOV-15 CIVILSOURCE, INC. 16,366.00 Negotiable
362937 12-NOV-15 CLEAN ENERGY 1,424,.32 16-NOV-15 1,424.32 Reconciled
362938 12-NOV-15 CLEARINGHOUSE 477.67 18-NOV-15 477,67 Reconciled
362939 12-NOV-15 COASTAL IGNITION & 6,637,59 18-NOV-15 6,637.59 Reconciled
CONTROLS, INC
362940 12-NOV-15 CONDITION 4,414.94 16-NOV-15 4,414,94 Reconciled
MONITORING

SERVICES INC

D-6

file:///C:/Users/Pan/AppData/Local/Temp/4KSJ2TFX.htm

12/7/2015



Page 6 of 17

362941 12-NOV-15 CONTROLLED MOTION 432,02 16-NOV-15 432.02 Reconciled
SOLUTIONS, INC
362942 12-NOV-15 CR & R 12.95 17-NOV-15 12,95 Reconciled
INCORPORATED
362943 12-NOV-15 CUMMINS PACIFIC, 167.59 16-NOV-15 167.59 Reconciled
LLC
362944 12-NOV-15 D & G SIGNS 417.20 17-NOV-15 417.20 Reconciled
362945 12-NOV-15 DAIZEY FAMILY 78.75 Negotiable
TRUST
362946 12-NOvV-15 DATAZEQ, INC. 71.52 18-NOV-15 71.52 Reconciled
362947 12-NOV-15 DEX MEDIA INC. 75.75 19-NOV-15 75.75 Reconciled
362948 12-NOV-15 DUDEK 11,820.00 19-NOvV-15 11,620.00 Reconciled
362949 12-Nov-15 E.J. MEYER 70,111.97 19-NOV-15 70,111.97 Reconciled
COMPANY, INC.
362950 12-NOV-15 E.J. MEYER 1,332,127.43 18-NOV-15 1,332,127.43 Reconciled
COMPANY, INC.
362851 12-NOV-15 EAGLE PRINT 3,817.96 16-NOV-15 3,817.96 Reconciled
DYNRMICS
362952 12-NOV-15 EDEN EQUIPMENT 84,63 18-NOV-15 84.63 Reconciled
COMPANY
362953 12-NOvV-15 EI&C ENGINEERING 33,630.00 23-NOV-15 33,630.00 Reconciled
INC
362954 12-NOV-15 ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS 9,275.00 1B8-NovV-15 9,275.,00 Reconciled
ENGINEERING CO
362955 12-NOvV-15 EMERGENCY POWER 1,200.00 23-NOV-15 1,200.00 Reconciled
CONTROLS INC
362956 12-NOV-15 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT 1,030.00 17-NOV-15 1,030.00 Reconciled
SPECIALIST, INC
362957 12-NOV-15 ENVIRONMENTAL 122.64 18-NOV-15 122,64 Reconciled
RESOURCE
ASSOCIATES
362958 12-NOV-15 ENVIRONMENTAL 19,724,06 23-NOV-15 19,724 06 Reconciled
SCIENCE ASSOCIATES
362959 12-NOV-15 EVANS-HYDRO INC 630,00 23-NOV-15 630 00 Reconciled
362960 12-NOvV-15 EXECUTIVE LIGHTING 1,309.77 16-NOV-15 1,309 77 Reconciled
& ELECTRIC
362961 12-NOV-15 FARRELL & 87.18 16-NOV-15 87 18 Reconciled
ASSOCIATES
IRWD Ledger Payment Register For 01-NOV-15 To 30-NOV-15 Report Date 07-DEC-2015 14:59
BANK: Bank of America N.A, Branch : Los Angeles Account: Checking AP and PR Page: 10
Bank Account Currency: USD ( US Dollar ) Payment Currency: USD ( US Dollar
Payment Type: All Display Supplier Address: No
Cleared
Payment Number Sequence Num Date Supplier Name Site Payment Amount Date Cleared Amount Status
Payment Document : IRWD CHECK
362962 12-NOV-15 FIRST CHQICE 873.32 18-NOV-15 873.32 Reconciled
SERVICES
362963 12-NOV-15 FISHER SCIENTIFIC 1,167.63 16-NOV-15 1,167.63 Reconciled
COMPANY LLC
362964 12-NOV-15 FRANK LA PLACA 175,00 20-NOV-15 175.00 Reconciled
EXTERMINATING,
INC.
362965 12-NOV-15 GARCIA, TORY 39.42 16-NOV-15 39.42 Reconciled
362966 12-NOV-15 GEIGER BROS 2,975.80 16-NOV-15 2,975.80 Reconciled
362967 12-NOV-15 GOLDMAN, SACHS & 17,013.70 20-NOV-15 17,013.70 Reconciled
Cco
362968 12-NOV-15 GRAINGER 3,146.86 16-NOV-15 3,146.86 Reconciled
362969 12-NOV-15 HABITAT 3,603.00 18-NOV-15 3,603,00 Reconciled
RESTORATION
SCIENCES, INC.
362970 12-NOV-15 HARRINGTON 1,155.65 16-NOV-15 1,155.65 Reconciled
INDUSTRIAL
PLASTICS LLC
362971 12-NOV-15 HARTFORD LIFE 25,321.25 20-NOV-15 25,321.25 Reconciled
INSURBNCE COMPANY
362972 12-NOV-15 HDR ENGINEERING 21,897.98 19-NOV-15 21,897.98 Reconciled
INC
362973 12-NOV-15 HELPMATES STAFFING 20,862,56 18-NOV-15 20,862.56 Reconciled
SERVICES
362974 12-NOV-15 HILL BROTHERS 3,388.95 17-NQV-15 3,388.95 Reconciled
CHEMICAL COMPANY
362975 12-NOV-15 HOME DEPOT USA INC 325.981 19-NOV-15 32 81 Reconciled
362976 12-NOV-15 HOME DEPOT USA INC 500,31 19-NOV-15 50 31 Reconciled
362977 12-NOV-15 HUNSAKER & B,575.00 16-NOV~-15 57 00 Reconciled
ASSOCIATES IRVINE
362978 12-NOV-15 1IBM CORPORATION 1,179.00 16-NOV-15 1,179.00 Reconciled
362979 12-NOV-15 IDEXX 1,020.17 16-NOV-15 1,020.17 Reconciled
DISTRIBUTION, INC
362980 12-NOV-15 INTERNATIONAL 783.00 18-NOV-15 783.00 Reconciled
PUBLIC MANAGEMENT
ASSOCIATION-HR
362981 12-NOV-15 IRVINE PIPE & 3,011.81 16-NOV-15 3,011.81 Reconciled
SUPPLY INC
362982 12-NOV-15 IRWD EMPLOYEE 870,00 13-NOV-15 870.00 Reconciled
ASSOCTIATION
362983 12-NOV-15 IRWD-PETTY CASH 1,102.10 13-Nov-15 1,102.10 Reconciled
CUSTODIAN
362984 12-NOV-15 JCI JONES 2,981.16 16-NOvV-15 2,9681.16 Reconciled
CHEMICALS INC
362985 12-NOV-15 JRH CONSTRUCTION 1,103.01 19-NOV-15 1,103.01 Reconciled

D-7

file:///C:/Users/Pan/AppData/Local/Temp/4KSJ2TFX.htm

12/7/2015



Page 7 of 17

362996 12-NOV-15 JU, SANGHA 27.14 Negotiable
IRWD Ledger Payment Register For 01-NOV-15 To 30-NOV-15 Report Date: 07-DEC-2015 14:59
BANK: Bank of America N.A. Branch : Los Angeles Account: Checking AP and PR Page: 11
Bank Account Currency: USD ( US Dollar ) Payment Currency: USD ( US Dollar
Payment Type: All isplay Supplier Address: No
Cleared
Payment Number Sequence Num Date Supplier Name Site Payment Amount Date Cleared Amount Status
Payment Document : IRWD CHECK
362987 12-NOV-15 KANTEX SUBSURFACE 119,059.00 19-NOV-15 119,05%.00 Reconciled
INC.
362998 12-NOV-15 KHOSHNEVISSAN, 93.35 24-NOV-15 93.35 Reconciled
VIDA
362989 12-NOV-15 KLEINFELDER, INC. 51,680,71 18-NOV-15 51,680 71 Reconciled
362990 12-NOV-15 LALIM, CARISA 50.00 16-NOV-15 50 00 Reconciled
362991 12-NOV-15 LANDCARE HOLDINGS, 57,364.15 19-NOV-15 57,364 15 Reconciled
INC.
362992 12-NOV~15 LEIGHTON 1,660.50 30-NOV-15 1,660.50 Reconciled
CONSULTING, INC.
362993 12-NOV-15 MANNEH, JOHNNY 70.15 19-NOV-15 70.15 Reconciled
362994 12-NOV-15 MARINA LANDSCAPE 6,152.82 18-NOV-15 6,152.82 Reconciled
MAINTENANCE, INC.
362995 12-NOV-15 MBC APPLIED 1,300.00 16-NOV~-15 1,300.00 Reconciled
ENVIRONMENTAL
SCIENCES
362996 12-NOV-15 MC FADDEN-DALE 1,386.53 17-NovV-15 1,386.53 Reconciled
INDUSTRIAL
362997 12-NOV-15 MC MASTER CARR 2,715.21 16-NOV-15 2,715.21 Reconciled
SUPPLY CO
362998 12-NOV-15 MUTUAL PROPANE 24,15 17-NOV-15 24,15 Reconciled
362999 12-NOV-15 MYERS & SONS HI- 2,587.68 16-NOV-15 2,587.68 Reconciled
WAY SAFETY, INC.
363000 12-NOV-15 NATURALWELL, LLC 860.00 16-NOV~-15 880.00 Reconciled
363001 12-NOV-15 NATURES IMAGE INC 1,834.05 17-NOV-15 1,834.,05 Reconciled
363002 12-NOV-15 NEW PIG 1,372.74 18-NOV-15 1,372.74 Reconciled
CORPORATION
363003 12-NOV-15 NINYO & MOORE 15,818.50 18-NOV-15 15,818.,50 Reconciled
363004 12-NOV-15 NMG GEQTECHNICAL 29,577.00 25-NOV-15 29,577.00 Reconciled
INC
363005 12-NOV-15 NOREX, INC, 3,610.00 16-NOV-15 3,610.00 Reconciled
363006 12-NOV-15 NORTHWOOD PLACE 17.40 24-NOV-15 17.40 Reconciled
APTS
363007 12-NOV-15 O'HAREN GOVERNMENT 6,500.00 17-NOV-15 6,500.00 Reconciled
RELATIONS
363008 12-NOV-15 OCEAN BLUE 1,782.50 18-NOV-15 1,782.50 Reconciled
ENVIRONMENTAL
SERVICES INC
363009 12-NOV-15 OLAVARRIA, JOSE 64,71 17-NOV-15 64.71 Reconciled
363010 12-NOV-15 OLIN CORPORATION 2,839.33 17-NOV-15 2,839.33 Reconciled
363011 12-NOV-15 ON ASSIGNMENT LAB 1,141.20 16-NOV-15 1,141.20 Reconciled
SUPPORT
363012 12-NOV-15 ONESOURCE 15,162.97 18-NOV-15 15,162.97 Reconciled
DISTRIBUTORS LLC
363013 12-NOV-15 ORANGE COUNTY 1,001.15 18-NOV-15 1,001.15 Reconciled
ASPHALT INC
IRWD Ledger Payment Register For 01-NOvV-15 To 30-NOV-15 Report Date: 07-DEC-2015 14:59

BANK: Bank of Bmerica N.A.
Bank Account Currency:
Payment Type: All

usD

Payment Number Sequence Num Date Supplier Name
Payment Document : IRWD CHECK

363014 12-NOV-15 ORANGE COUNTY HOSE

363015 12-NOV-15 ORANGE COUNTY
SHERIFF'S OFFICE

363016 12-NOV-15 OUTFRONT MEDIA LLC

363017 12-NOV-15 OQUTSOURCE
TECHNICAL LILC

363018 12~-NOV-15 OVIVO USA, LLC

363019 12-NOV-15 PACIFIC GAS AND
ELECTRIC COMPANY

363020 12-NOV-15 PERKINELMER HEALTH
SCIENCES INC

363021 12-NOV-15 PERS LONG TERM
CARE

363022 12-NOV-15 PLUMBERS DEPOT
INC.

363023 12-NOV-15 PRIME CONTROLS
COMPANY INC

363024 12-NOV-15 PRUDENTIAL OVERALL
SUPPLY

363025 12-Nov-15 QASYMPHONY, INC,

363026 12-NOV-15 R & R INDUSTRIAL
SERVICES, INC.

363027 12-NOV-15 RAINBOW DISPOSAL
CO INC

363028 12-NOV-15 RAM AIR

Branch : Los Angeles
( US Dollar )

ENGINEERING INC

Site

Account:
Payment Currency:

Checking AP and PR

Display Supplier Address: No
Cleared
Payment Amount Date

132.04 16-NOV-15
372.07 19-NOV-15
19,148.50 19-NOV-15
32,240.00 18-NOV-15
36,977.00 18-NOV-15
23,42 18-NOV-15
103.04 16-NOV-15
851.14 17-NOvV-15
3,451.68 23-NOV-15
2,451.47 17-NOV~-15
4,999,09 17-NQV-15
2,223.00 17-NOV-15
287.28 17-NOV-15
325.21 16-NOV-15
1,585.28 17-NOV-15

D-8
file:///C:/Users/Pan/AppData/Local/Temp/4KSJ2TFX.htm

Page: 12

USD ( US Dollar )

Cleared Amount Status
132.04 Reconciled
372.07 Reconciled

19,148.50 Reconciled
32,240,00 Reconciled
36,977.00 Reconciled
23.42 Reconciled
103.04 Reconciled
851,14 Reconciled
3,451.68 Reconciled
2,451.47 Reconciled
4,999.09 Reconciled
2,223.00 Reconciled
287.28 Reconciled
325.21 Reconciled
1,585.28 Reconciled

12/7/2015



Page 17 of 17

DISTRICT OF ORANGEVALLEY

COUNTY
11275 30-NOV-15 YORK INSURANCE PAY 11,881.20 Negotiable
SERVICES GROUP INC
- CA
11276 30-NOV-15 BANK OF NEW YORK NEWARK 6,979.17 Negotiable
MELLON TROUST
COMPANY NA
11277 30-NOV-15 INTERNAL REVENUE FRESNO 164,855.10 Negotiable
SERVICE
11278 30-NOV-15 FRANCHISE TAX SACRBMENTO 45,655.22 Negotiable
BOARD
IRWD Ledger Payment Register For 01-NOV-15 To 30-NOV-15 Report Date: 07-DEC-2015 14:59
BANK: Bank of America N.A. Branch : Los Angeles Account: Checking AP and PR Page: 28
Bank Account Currency: USD ( US Dollar } Payment Currency: USD ( US Dollar
Payment Type: All Display Supplier Address: No
Cleared
Payment Number Sequence Num Date Supplier Name Site Payment Amount Date Cleared Amount Status
Payment Document : IRWD Wire
11279 30-NOV-15 EMPLOYMENT w 7,145,.96 Negotiable
DEVELOPMENT SACRAMENTO
DEPARTMENT
11280 30-NOV~15 ORDONEZ, CYNTHIA DESERT HOT 500.77 Negotiable
MARIE SPR
11281 30-NOV-15 CALIFORNIA SACRAMENTO 2,074.26 Negotiable
DEPARTMENT OF
CHILD SUPPORT
SERVICES
11282 30~-NOV-15 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PAY 10,580.84 Negotiable
SPECIALIST, INC
11283 30-NOV-15 GREAT-WEST LIFE & DENVER 85,054.85 Negotiable
ANNUITY INSURANCE
COMPANY
Payment Document Subtotal: 8,789,362,86
B
Bank Account Subtotal : 15,936,035,27 6,097,436.21
sssssssssssssnnEEEEEEES = =
Report Count : 676 Report Total: 15,936,035,27 6,097,436,21

mmm =sms—sssceasssmanoonn

Total Disbursement

**% End of Report ***

$ 15,936,035.27 Disbursements
<190.84> Voids
$ 15,935,844.43 Total Disbursement and Voids

D-18
file:///C:/Users/Pan/AppData/Local/Temp/4KSJ2TFX.htm 12/7/2015



IRWD Gov Code 53065.5 Disclosure Report

Exhibit “E”

Payment or Reimbursements for Individual charges of $100 or more per transaction for services or product received.

01-0CT-15 to 31-0CT-15

NAME CHECK NO.

Amezcua. Joshua 361862
Rennett. Rav 362183
Bennett. Rav 362183
Bennett. Rav 362183
Bonkowski. Leslie 362377
Cariker. Codv 362555
Cariker. Codv 362555
Clinton. Brvan 362553
Colvin. Todd 362188
Coria_ Alex 36185¢
Coria. Alex 36185¢
Fournier. Tania 361991
Fournier. Tania 2A7563
GRuzman. luan 361863
La. Jason 362177
Leal. Eliberto 261861
Lee. Randv 362380
Moore. Rorv 361990
Murphv. Alex 362552
Navarro. Hector 362557
Norman. Tammv 362186
Oldewase. Lars 361988
Dldewage. | ars 361988
Oldewaege. Lars 361988
Oldewage. Lars 361988
Oldewarpe_ | ars 361988
Oldewaee. Lars 361988
Oldewaee. Lars 362559
Oldewaee. Lars 367559
Pizanie. Nicholas 362182
Roberts. Tom 362187
Roberts. Tom 362187
Savedra. Nancv 361989
Tran_ lason 3A2558

CHECK DATE
1-Oct-15
15-Oct-15
15-Oct-15
15-Oct-15
22-0ct-15
29-Oct-15
29-Oct-15
29-Oct-15
15-Oct-15
1-Oct-15
1-Oct-15
8-Oct-15
29-0ct-15
1-Oct-15
15-Oct-15
1-Oct-15
22-Oct-15
8-Oct-15
29-0Oct-15
29-Oct-15
15-Oct-15
8-Oct-15
8-Oct-15
8-Oct-15
8-Oct-15
R-Oct-15
8-Oct-15
29-Oct-15
29-0Oct-15
15-Oct-15
15-Oct-15
15-Oct-15
8-Oct-15
29-Oct-15

Total Amount:

TRANSACTION
865.00
176.30
176.30
176.30
141.02
130.00
105.00
105.00
130.00
230.00
156.00
154.81
600.00
162.00
249.00
156.00
115.00
164.00
225.00
625.00
102.92
256.00
252.59
252.59
252.59
252.59
100.00
218.00
185.00
190.00
105.00
155.00
102.31
135.00

$7,401.32

ITEM DESCRIPTION
Membershin/Certification
Mileage

Mileage

Mileaece

Other{Misc)
Membershio/Certification
Membershio/Certification
Membershin/Certification
Membershin/Certification
Membershin/Certification
Membershio/Certification
Other(Muisc)

Other{Misc)

Other{Misc)
Membhershin/Certification
Membershin/Certification
Membershio/Certification
Membershin/Certification
Membershin/Certification
Other{Misc)

Other{Misc)

Airfare

Lodeing

Lodeging

1 odeing

Lodeing

Parkine Fee
Membhershin/Certification
Membershin/Certification
Membership/Certification
Membershin/Certification
Membershin/Certification
Other(Misc}
Membershin/Certification

EXPENSE JUSTIFICATION

Grades IV & V Wastewater Math & Operator Certification

Julv oroeress meeting and well inspection for Rosedale Drought Proiect
Aneust nrngress meetine and well inspection for Rosedale Drought Proiect
Sentember proeress meeting and well inspection for Rosedale Drought Proiect
Meeting supblies

Water Distribution Grade IV exam fee

Water Distribution Grade IV certification fee

Water Treatment Operator Grade IV certification fee

Grade IV Treatment Operator exam fee

Wastewater Grade |l certification fee

CWFA membershin & Collections Grade Il Renewal fee

National Save for Retirement meeting supplies

National Save for Retirement meeting supbplies

Safetv shoes allowance

AWWA Annual Membershio

CWEA Membership & Collections Grade |l fees

Civil Fneineer certificate renewal fee

CWEA Membershio renewal fee

ASCE Membershio renewal fee

Membership fee

Meetine sunnlies

WEFTEC 88th Annual Conference. Chicaeo IL - Sept. 26-30. 2015
WEFTEC 88th Annual Conference. Chicago IL - Sept. 26-30, 2015
WFFTFC 88th Annual Conference. Chicago IL - Sent. 26-30. 2015
WEFTEC 88th Annual Conference. Chicago IL - Seot. 26-30. 2015
WEFTEC 88th Annual Conference. Chicago IL - Sept. 26-30. 2015
WEFTEC 88th Annual Conference, Chicago IL - Sept. 26-30, 2015
WEF membershio renewal

ACS membership renewal

Distribution Grade 1l Test R Certification fees

TS certification fee

T5 renewal fee

Meeting sunblies

MLT-1 certification renewal



January 11, 2016

Prepared and

Submitted by C. Compton &=
Approved by: Paul Cook

CONSENT CALENDAR

SUMMARY:

This report provides an update on the 2015-2016 legislative session and IRWD priorities. As
legislation develops, staff will provide updates and recommendations to the Water Resources
Policy and Communications Committee and the Board, as appropriate. Staff recommends that
the Board consider the following actions/positions:

o SB 163 (Hertzberg, D-Van Nuys) - Wastewater Treatment: Recycled Water: “OPPOSE”
and authorize the District to submit a letter of concern on SB 163 as requested by Senator
Hertzberg’s Office.

BACKGROUND:

The 2015-16 Legislature reconvened on January 4, 2016, for the second year of the two-year
session. As with the second year of any session, pending legislative business left over from 2015
will be taken up quickly in order to meet looming legislative deadlines. The bills remaining at
the close of the 2015 legislative year will need to meet the January 15 policy committee deadline
if they are still in their house of origin. Other upcoming legislative deadlines of note are:

January 10 — Last day for the Governor to submit a budget proposal to the Legislature

January 22 — Last day to submit bill requests to the Office of Legislative Counsel

January 31 — Last day for bills introduced in 2015 to be passed out of their house of
origin

February 19 — Last day for bills to be introduced

A copy of the Legislative Matrix is attached as Exhibit “A”.

November State Revenue Numbers Released

Given the political implications that State revenues and the State’s fiscal outlook can have on
local government, staff continues to monitor the State’s revenue and budget situation. On
December 10, 2015, State Controller Betty Yee released her monthly report on the State’s
finances. She announced that the State took in $7.2 billion in revenue during the month of
November. This amount was $39.8 million lower than budgeted. The discrepancy between the
budget and actual amount was due to the fact that a $300 million payment the State expected in
November had been received three months early. The payment was a settlement between the
California Public Utilities Commission and the Pacific Gas & Electric Co. for the 2010 San
Bruno explosion.

cc 2016 Legislative Update- BOARD- January.docx



Consent Calendar: 2016 Legislative Update
January 11,2016
Page 2

Despite November’s revenue numbers, for the first five months of Fiscal Year 2015-16 total
General Fund revenues were still ahead of budget estimates. Fiscal year revenues from July
through November came in at $37.1 billion, which is $502.9 million or 1.4 percent higher than
expected.

According to Controller Yee’s report,

“The State ended the month of November with $12.2 billion in outstanding loans —
$752.5 million, or 5.8 percent, less than expected. For the first year in 15 years, the
[S]tate is covering month-to-month shortfalls exclusively through internal borrowing
from special funds rather than external loans, such as revenue anticipation notes. The
improved fiscal condition of the General Fund, the source of most [S]tate spending, has
saved the state tens of millions of dollars in interest costs.”

In November 2015, the Legislative Analyst Office (LAO) issued “The 2016-17 Budget:
California’s Fiscal Outlook.” The outlook forecasts that Fiscal Year 2015-2016 revenues will
exceed budget estimates by $3.5 billion, the majority of which will be deposited into the
Proposition 2 Rainy Day Fund. The LAO also forecasted that Fiscal Year 2016-2017 revenues
would remain strong, and assuming no new budget commitments are made, the State could end
the 2016-2017 Fiscal Year with reserves of $11.5 billion. Despite this positive outlook, the LAO
cautioned the Legislature that:

“The more new budget commitments are made in 2016—17, however, the more likely it is
that the [S]tate would face difficult choices—such as spending cuts and tax increases—
later. As such, the Legislature faces the fundamental trade—off between the benefits of
new commitments now versus fewer difficult budget decisions later. A sizable reserve is
the key to making it through the next economic downturn with minimal disruption to
public programs.”

As a result of the LAQ’s forecast and the recent months of higher than anticipated revenues,
there will undoubtedly be some legislative pressure to increase spending. Governor Jerry Brown
is scheduled to release his annual budget on January 10, 2015. He will likely caution the
Legislature to exercise fiscal restraint with the Fiscal Year 2016-17 budget as he has done over
the last several years.

2016 Ballot Initiatives:

As of the writing of this report, eight statewide ballot measures have qualified for a 2016 ballot
and 117 proposed ballot initiatives have been submitted to the Attorney General’s Office for
placement on the ballot. Of the 116 measures submitted 17 have failed to qualify for the ballot,
73 have been cleared for circulation, and 27 are pending title and summary by the Attorney
General’s Office.

Of the eight statewide ballot measures qualified for a 2016 ballot, one statewide ballot measure,
which would allow the Legislature to suspend a member upon a two-thirds vote and would
authorize that the salary and benefits of any suspended member be forfeited, has qualified for the
June ballot. Three statewide ballot measures have qualified and four have become eligible for



Consent Calendar: 2016 Legislative Update
January 11, 2016
Page 3

the November ballot. The three qualified measures deal with single-use plastic bags, English
language education, and use of State fees on hospitals for the purpose of obtaining federal
Medi-Cal matching funds. The four eligible proposals deal with State prescription drug
purchases; adult films; a $9 billion school bond; and a proposal to require statewide voter
approval before any revenue bonds can be issued or sold by the State for projects that are
financed, owned, operated, or managed by the state or any joint agency created by or including
the state, if the bond amount exceeds $2 billion.

Of the measures still trying to qualify for the 2016 ballot, there are several that related to water
or water infrastructure. These include proposals to:

Impose a five-cent on each ounce of bottled water containing any surface, underground,
or municipal water collected in California for water infrastructure projects;

Enact a new water bond entitled “The Water Supply Reliability and Drought Protection
Act 0f 2016 (Versions 1-8);

Enact “The Water Priorities Public Interest and Public Trust Constitutional Amendment
and the New Surface Water and Groundwater Storage Facilities Bond Act of 2016,”
which would redistribute bond funds from high speed rail and Proposition 1’s storage
funds to the State Water Storage and Groundwater Storage Facilities Authority for the
development of new water storage and groundwater storage facilities in California; and

Enact “The California Water Conservation, Flood Control and Stormwater Management
Act of 2016,” which is discussed in more detail below.

While the majority of the non-qualified proposals will not qualify for the November ballot, even
if a handful of them qualify the November 2016 ballot could be very full. If 20 or more
initiatives qualify, it would be the most initiatives California has had on the ballot since March
2000.

The California Water Conservation, Flood Control and Stormwater Management Act of 2016:

Since staff’s April 27 presentation to the Board on the Capistrano Taxpayers Association, Inc. v
City of San Juan Capistrano and the Board’s discussion regarding the need for legislative
clarification on tiered water rates, staff has been working with the District’s industry and
association partners on seeking clarification. The California League of Cities, the California
Association of Counties and the Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) have
continued work to develop a constitutional amendment to address tiered water rate structures,
stormwater funding, and voluntary low-income rate subsidization. “The California Water
Conservation, Flood Control and Stormwater Management Act of 2016,” also known as the
Article X proposal, was submitted by this coalition to the Attorney General’s Office on
December 14, 2015.

As submitted, the proposal would create an alternative funding mechanism, separate and apart
from Proposition 218 and Proposition 26, through which water and sewer services rates, fees and



Consent Calendar: 2016 Legislative Update
January 11, 2016
Page 4

charges could be developed. The proposal is designed to allow local agencies to levy fees for
flood control and stormwater management without going to the voters for approval.
Additionally, the proposal authorizes low-income rates and attempts to provide greater flexibility
for tiered water rate structures. Staff has engaged with ACWA regarding the tiered water rate
provisions and the need for amendments to the proposal consistent with IRWD’s legislative
priorities to “engage in discussions surrounding water and wastewater infrastructure financing
including engaging in discussions related to Proposition 218 reforms to protect IRWD’s
interests” and to protect “the District’s ability to use its allocation-based tiered rate structures to
respond to the drought and water supply shortages.” Staff has received word from ACWA that
the proposal submitted to the Attorney General’s Office will be amended to reflect a change in
the tiered water rate provision. A copy of the proposal, as proposed to be amended is attached as
Exhibit “B”.

In addition to the Article X proposal submitted to the Attorney General’s Office, many of the
discussions staff has engaged in regarding tiered water rate reforms and Proposition 218 have
included discussions with various Proposition 218 attorneys engaged in water rate challenges.
These attorneys along with others have suggested several procedural reforms, which are aimed at
bringing more certainty to the legal process for challenging water rates, providing clarity to the
amount of exposure an agency is open to, and seeking to limit costs for parties involved in rate
challenges. Staff will discuss the suggested procedural reforms with the Board and possible next
steps that could be taken to engage stakeholders regarding these suggested changes.

Public Goods Charge for Water:

As has been previously reported, Senator Fran Pavley (D-Calabasas) gutted and amended SB 20
on August 26, 2015, to begin a policy conversation on a public goods charge for water. As
amended, the bill does not contain a funding mechanism but would create the California Water
Resiliency Investment Fund. Amendments to SB 20 that would seek to establish a public goods
charge for water are expected to be released in early January. Staff has continued to engage with
[RWD’s industry and association partners to oppose a public goods charge for water consistent
with the Board-adopted policy principle. Staff will provide an update on any new developments,
including any proposed amendments released prior to the meeting.

State Water Resources Control Board Emergency Regulations:

On December 21, 2015, the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) released a
“Proposed Regulatory Framework for Extended Emergency Regulation for Urban Water
Conservation.” A copy of the proposed framework is attached as Exhibit “C”.

The proposed framework recognizes that at the time the SWRCB adopted the current emergency
regulations a number of urban water suppliers had put forth refinements to the conservation tiers
to reflect factors such as climate, growth, use of indirect potable reuse, and demand hardening.
SWRCB staff were directed to work with stakeholders to further develop and consider those
factors in any update to the emergency regulations. In the proposed framework, SWRCB staff
has put forth their recommendations for modifications to the emergency regulations. The



Consent Calendar: 2016 Legislative Update
January 11, 2016
Page 5

recommendations include adoption of a climate adjustment, growth adjustment, and a credit for
drought resilient sources of supply. SWRCB staff did not recommend any credit for
groundwater supplies, demand hardening, or a regional compliance approach. The proposed
framework invited public comment on SWRCB staff recommendations by January 6, 2016.

Since the release of the proposed framework, staff has continued conversations with SWRCB
staff regarding the emergency regulations and submitted a comment letter prior to the January 6
deadline. Staff will provide the Board with an update on its discussion with the SWRCB.

SB 163 (Hertzberg, D-Van Nuys) — Wastewater Treatment: Recycled Water:

On September 3, 2015, Senator Bob Hertzberg (D, Van Nuys) amended SB 163, which had
previously dealt with elections, in order to propose a 100 percent ban on ocean discharge of
treated wastewater. Specifically, the bill would:

Declare that the discharge of treated wastewater from ocean outfalls, except in
compliance with the bill’s provisions, is a waste and unreasonable use of water in light
of the cost-effective opportunities to recycle this water for further beneficial use;

Require by January 1, 2026, a wastewater treatment facility discharging through an
ocean outfall to achieve at least 50 percent reuse of the facility’s actual annual flow,
defined as the annual average flow of treated wastewater discharging through a facility’s
ocean outfall as determined by the SWRCB using monitoring data available for calendar
years 2009 to 2014;

Require by January 1, 2036, a wastewater treatment facility discharging through an
ocean outfall to achieve at least 100 percent reuse of the facility’s actual annual flow for
beneficial purposes;

Prohibit the discharge of treated wastewater from ocean outfalls after January 1, 2036,
unless it is a backup discharge which many only occur during periods of reduced
demand for reclaimed water (e.g. during a period of wet weather);

e Require a holder of a NPDES permit authorizing the discharge of wastewater through an
ocean outfall to submit a plan on or before July 1, 2020, outlining how it will comply
with the discharge prohibition;

o Allow an NPDES permit holder to seek a partial exemption from the discharge
prohibition from the SWRCB; and

Prohibit the NPDES permit holder who is granted a partial exemption from obtaining
state grants or loans unless the state grant or loan is solely for complying with the
discharge prohibition.

A copy of SB 163 is attached as Exhibit “D”



Consent Calendar: 2016 Legislative Update
January 11, 2016
Page 6

Senator Hertzberg has requested that parties concerned about SB 163 submit letters outlining
their concerns to his office. Given that SB 163, if enacted as currently drafted, would affect
IRWD’s ability to discharge brine and treated wastewater from its plants when necessary, staff
recommends that the Board adopt an “Oppose” position on SB 163 and authorize the District to
submit a letter of concern on SB 163.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

This item was reviewed by the Water Resources Policy and Communications Committee on
January 7, 2016.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD ADOPT AN “OPPOSE” POSITION ON SB 163 (HERTZBERG, D-VAN
NUYS) RELATED TO WASTEWATER TREATMENT AND RECYCLED WATER, AND
AUTHORIZE THE DISTRICT TO SUBMIT A LETTER OF CONCERN ON THE BILL AS
REQUESTED BY SENATOR HERTZBERG’S OFFICE.

LIST OF ITS:

Exhibit “A” — IRWD Legislative Matrix

Exhibit “B” — “The California Water Conservation, Flood Control and Stormwater Management
Act of 2016, as proposed to be amended

Exhibit “C” — SWRCB “Proposed Regulatory Framework for Extended Emergency Regulation
for Urban Water Conservation”

Exhibit “D” — SB 163 (Hertzberg), as amended



Bill No.
Author

AB 12
Cooley (D)

AB 14
Waldron (R)

AB 21
Perea (D)

AB 23
Patterson (R)

AB 33
Quirk (D)

AB 45
Mullin (D)

Title

State Government:
Administrative Regulations:
Review

Unmanned Aircraft Systems:
Task Force

Global Warming Solutions
Act of 2006: Scoping Plan

Global Warming Solutions
Act of 2006: Compliance

Electrical Corporations:
Procurement Plans

Household Hazardous Waste

IRWD
Position

EXHIBIT A
IRWD 2016 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated: 1/4/2016

Summary/Effects

Requires each state agency after a noticed public hearing, to review
the agency's regulations, identify any regulations that are
duplicative, overlapping, inconsistent, or out of date, to revise those
identified regulations, and report to the Legislature and Governor.

Creates the Unmanned Aircraft Systems Task Force to research,
develop, and formulate a comprehensive policy for unmanned
aircraft systems. Requires the task force to submit a policy draft and
suggested legislation pertaining to unmanned aircraft systems.

Requires the State Air Resources Board in preparing its scoping plan
for achieving the maximum technologically feasible and cost-
effective reductions in greenhouse gas reduction, to consult with
specified State agencies regarding matters involving energy
efficiency and the facilitation of the electrification of the
transportation sector.

Exempts categories of persons or entities that did not have a
compliance obligation under a market-based compliance mechanism
from being subject to that market-based compliance mechanism.

Requires the Public Utilities Commission to determine what role
large scale energy storage could play as part of the state's overall
strategy for procuring a diverse portfolio of resources and to
consider specified factors in making that determination.

Requires each jurisdiction providing for the residential collection
and disposal of solid waste to increase the collection and diversion

A-1

Status

08/27/2015 - In SENATE Committee on
APPROPRIATIONS: Held in
committee.

04/13/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on TRANSPORTATION:
Failed passage.;04/13/2015 - In
ASSEMBLY Committee on
TRANSPORTATION: Reconsideration
granted.

09/18/2015 - In SENATE. Ordered to
Inactive File due to inaction prior to Fall
Recess.

03/23/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on NATURAL
RESOURCES: Failed
passage.;03/23/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on NATURAL
RESOURCES: Reconsideration
granted.

09/08/2015 - In SENATE. Read second
time. To third reading.;09/08/2015 - Re-
referred to SENATE Committee on
RULES.

05/20/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS: To



Bill No.
Author

AB 56
Quirk (D)

AB 78

Mathis (R)

AB 156
Perea (D)

AB 259
Dababneh (D)

Title

Unmanned Aircraft Systems

Groundwater Basins

Global Warming Solutions
Act: Disadvantaged
Communities

Personal Information
Privacy

IRWD 2016 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated: 1/4/2016

Summary/Effects

of household hazardous waste in its service area over the baseline.
Provides the increase is to be determined in accordance with
Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery regulations.
Authorizes the adoption of a model ordinance for a comprehensive
program for the collection of waste. Requires an annual report to the
Department on progress in achieving compliance.

Prohibits law enforcement agencies from using unmanned aircraft
systems, obtaining an unmanned aircraft system from another public
agency by contract, loan, or other arrangement, or using information
obtained from an unmanned aircraft system used by another public
agency, except as provided. Provides for the protection of data
gathered through the use of such systems. Prohibits a person from
arming such a system with a weapon. Provides for civil actions.

Makes technical nonsubstantive changes to existing law that requires
the Department of Water Resources to categorize each basin or
subbasin as high-, medium-, low-, or very low priority and to
establish ground water the initial priority for each basin.

Requires the State Air Resources Board, pursuant to the Global
Warming Solutions Act of 2006, to post on its Internet Web site a
specified report on the projects funded to benefit disadvantaged
communities. Requires the Board to establish and accomplish a
comprehensive technical assistance program, upon appropriation
from the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund, for eligible applicants
assisting defined eligible communities. Requires an allocation to the
Board for the program.

Requires an agency, if the agency was the source of the breach and
the breach compromised a person's social security number, driver's
license number, or California identification card number, to offer to
provide the person with identity theft prevention and mitigation
services at no cost for not less than 12 months.

A-2

Status

Suspense File.

09/08/2015 - In SENATE. Read second
time. To third reading.;09/08/2015 - In
SENATE. From third reading. To
Inactive File.

01/05/2015 - INTRODUCED.

08/27/2015 - In SENATE Committee on
APPROPRIATIONS: Held in
committee.

08/27/2015 - In SENATE Committee on
APPROPRIATIONS: Held in
committee.



IRWD 2016 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated: 1/4/2016

Bill No. Title IRWD Summary/Effects Status

Author Position

AB 291 Environmental Quality Act: Authorizes a local agency, for certain water projects, to file a 06/10/2015 - From SENATE Committee

Medina (D) Local Agencies: Water specified notice with the county clerk of the county in which the on ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
local agency's principal office is located, along with any required with author's amendments.;06/10/2015 -

payment to the Department of Fish and Wildlife, and with the Office  In SENATE. Read second time and
of Plarming and Research and to transmit a copy of the notice to the ~ amended. Re-referred to Committee on
county clerk of the counties in which the project is located. Requires ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY.

the notice and the copies of the notice to be available to for public

inspection. Relates to challenges.

AB 307 Graywater: Groundwater States the intent of the Legislature to enact legislation to explicitly 02/12/2015 - INTRODUCED
Mathis (R) Recharge permit the usage of residential, commercial, and industrial graywater
for the recharge of a groundwater basin or aquifer.

AB 308 Graywater: Agricultural Use States the intent of the Legislature to enact legislation to explicitly 02/12/2015 - INTRODUCED.
Mathis (R) permit incorporated and unincorporated communities to sell

graywater for agricultural purposes and agriculture to use graywater

for agricultural purposes.
AB 311 Environmental Quality: Requires the public agency, in certifying the environmental impact 04/29/2015 - From ASSEMBLY
Gallagher (R) Water Quality and Supply report and in granting approvals for specified water storage projects ~ Committee on NATURAL

funded, in whole or in part, by Proposition 1, to comply with RESOURCES without further action

specified procedures. Requires the Judicial Council to adopt a rule of ~ pursuant to JR 62(a).
court to establish procedures applicable to actions or proceedings

seeking judicial review of an agency's action in certifying the

environmental impact report and in granting project approval.

Relates to court staying of the projects.

AB 335 Air Quality: Minor Requires the State Air Resources Board and air pollution control and ~ 05/19/2015 - From ASSEMBLY
Patterson (R)  Violations air quality management districts to adopt regulations classifying Committee on NATURAL
minor violations. Requires a representative of those agencies to issue  RESOURCES without further action
a notice to comply. Requires the State Air Resources Board to report  pursuant to JR 62(a).
to the Legislature regarding implementation of these provisions.
Exempts such districts from these provisions if the districts have a



Bill No.
Author

AB 356
Williams (D)

AB 452
Bigelow (R)

AB 453
Bigelow (R)

AB 454
Bigelow (R)

AB 455

Title

Oil and Gas: Groundwater
Monitoring

Water Rights Fund:
Groundwater Regulation

Groundwater Management

Sustainable Groundwater
Management

Groundwater Sustainability

IRWD
Position

IRWD 2016 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX

Updated: 1/4/2016

Summary/Effects

similar program in effect as of a specified date.

Authorizes the State Oil and Gas Supervisor to require a well
operator to implement a monitoring program for below ground oil
production tanks and facilities, and disposal and injection wells.
Requires the annual review of underground injection or disposal

pr use wells es d
er mo plan. ss

for the State's geotracker database. Provides procedures for an
aquifer exemption. Relates to plan modification.

Amends existing law that establishes groundwater reporting
requirements for a person extracting groundwater in an area within a
basin that is not within the management area of a groundwater
sustainability agency or that is a probationary basin. Prohibits water
rights fees from being available for expenditure by the Water
Resources Control Board for the purposes of Board enforcement of
the provisions of the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act and
the groundwater reporting requirements.

Authorizes, until a groundwater sustainability plan is adopted, a
local agency that has adopted a groundwater management plan to
impose fees on the extraction of groundwater from a groundwater
basin to fund costs of groundwater management and to collect
groundwater extraction information, as long as a groundwater
management plan adopted before a specified date, is in effect.

Relates to groundwater basins. Requires a high- or medium-priority
basin that is not subject to critical conditions of overdraft to be
managed under a groundwater sustainability plan or coordinated
groundwater sustainability plan. Provides for the designation of
basins as probationary basins.

Amends the California Environmental Quality Act. Requires the

A-4

Status

06/11/2015 - In ASSEMBLY.
Reconsideration granted.;06/11/2015 -
In ASSEMBLY. From third reading.
To Inactive File.

04/28/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on WATER, PARKS AND
WILDLIFE: Not heard.

12/10/2015 - Re-referred to SENATE
Committee on RULES.

04/14/2015 - From ASSEMBLY
Committee on WATER, PARKS AND
WILDLIFE: Do pass to Committee on
APPROPRIATIONS.

04/14/2015 - In ASSEMBLY



Bill No.
Author

Bigelow (R)

AB 472
Harper (R)

AB 478
Harper (R)

AB 501
Levine (D)

AB 537
Allen T (R)

Title

Plans

Public Works: Prevailing
Wage: Volunteers

Desalination

Resources: Delta Research

Public Employees' Benefits

IRWD
Position

IRWD 2016 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated: 1/4/2016

Summary/Effects

Judicial Council to adopt a rule of court to establish procedures
applicable to actions or proceedings brought to attack, review, set
aside, void, or annul the certification of an environmental impact
report for certain projects covered by a groundwater sustainability
plan. Prohibits the court from staying or enjoying the construction or
operation of the project unless the court makes a certain finding.

Makes a nonsubstantive, technical change by deleting an obsolete
gene sth
fper for
character in the locality in which the public work is performed by
workers employed on public works projects, except work performed
by a volunteer, a volunteer coordinator, or member of the State
Conservation Corps, or a community conservation corps.

Makes a nonsubstantive change to the Cobey-Porter Saline Water
Conversion Law that states the policy of this state that desalination
projects developed by or for public water entities be given the same
opp ea other water

and ts, consistent w
applicable environmental protection policies in the state.

Relates to the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta Reform Act of 2009.
Requires a person conducting State-funded Delta Research to take
specified actions with regard to the sharing of the primary data,
samples, physical collections, and other supporting materials created
or gathered in the course of that research. Relates to ineligibility.
Authorizes the Delta ndependent Science Board to adopt guidelines
Suspends State funding for improper reporting. Provides research
remain with the researcher
Prohibits a public agency, state employer, employee organization, or
public employee from entering into a memorandum of understanding
that provides postemployment health care benefits without a strategy
for members' healthcare

Status

Committee on WATER, PARKS AND
WILDLIFE: Not heard.

02/23/2015 - INTRODUCED

02/23/2015 - INTRODUCED.

04/29/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS: To
Suspense File.

03/05/2015 - To ASSEMBLY
Committee on PUBLIC EMPLOYEES,
RETIREMENT AND SOCIAL
SECURITY.



Bill No.
Author

AB 577
Bonilla (D)

AB 585
Melendez (R)

n
\O
=7

Dahle (R)

AB 603
Salas (D)

AB 615
Rendon (D)

Title IRWD

Position

Biomethane: Grant Program

Outdoor Water Efficiency: Support

Personal Income Tax Credits

Greenhouse Gas Reduction

Fund

Income Taxes: Every Drop Support

Counts Tax Credit

Office of Sustainable Water
Solutions: Assistance

IRWD 2016 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX

Updated: 1/4/2016

Summary/Effects

benefits.

Requires the development and implementation of a grant program to
award grants for projects that produce biomethane, that build or
develop collection and purification technology or infrastructure, or
that upgrade or expand existing biomethane facilities. Authorizes
moneys in the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund to be used to fund
grants awarded under the program.

Relates to the Outdoor Water Efficiency Act. Allows a credit, under
the Personal Income Tax Law, for a specified percentage of the
amount paid or incurred by a qualified taxpayer for water-efficiency
improvements on qualified real property. Limits the cumulative
amount of the credit. Requires a taxpayer to obtain and retain a
improvements certification from a regional or local water agency,
and to provide a copy to the Franchise Tax Board upon request.

Provides that moneys in the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund
account may be made available for expenditure by the State Energy
Resources Conservation and Development Commission for
maintaining the current level of biomass power generation or
geothermal energy generation in the State and revitalizing currently
idle facilities in strategically located regions. Establishes
requirements for an applicant to receive available funding for a
facility's eligible electrical generation.

Allows a credit under the Personal Income Tax and the Corporation
Tax laws to a taxpayer participating in a lawn replacement rebate
program.

Amends existing law that establishes the Office of Sustainable
Water Solutions to and sustainable

Status

09/11/2015 - Re-referred to SENATE
Committee on RULES.

08/27/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:
Held in committee.

08/27/2015 - In SENATE Committee on
APPROPRIATIONS: Held in
committee.

05/28/2015 - In ASSEMBLY. Joint
Rule 62(a) suspended.;05/28/2015 - In
ASSEMBLY Committee on
APPROPRIATIONS: Held in
committee.

06/18/2015 - To SENATE Committee
on ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY.



Bill No.
Author

AB 639
Dahle (R)

AB 647

Eggman (D)

AB 723
Rendon (D)

AB 725
Wagner (R)

Title IRWD

Position

Water Quality: Membership
of Regional Boards

Beneficial Use: Storing of
Water Underground

Rental Property: Plumbing
Fixtures: Replacement

Water Quality: Recycled
Water: Storm-Induced
Overflow

Sponsor

IRWD 2016 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated: 1/4/2016

Summary/Effects

water and wastewater treatment solutions to ensure the effective and
efficient provision of safe, clean, affordable, and reliable drinking
water and wastewater treatment services and authorizes the office to
t
S s the
technical assistance that may be provided.

Makes nonsubstantive changes to provisions of existing law which
requires the State Water Resources Control Board and the regional
water quality control boards to prescribe waste discharge
requirements in accordance with the federal national pollutant
discharge elimination system permit program established by the
federal Clean Water Act and the Porter-Cologne Water Quality
Control Act.

Declares that the diversion of water to underground storage
constitutes a beneficial use of water if the water so stored is
thereafter applied to the beneficial purposes for which the
appropriation for storage was made, or if the water is so stored
consistent with a sustainable groundwater management plan,
statutory authority to conduct groundwater recharge, or a judicial
degree and is for specified purposes. Requires applying for a permit
or petition for a change. Requires including specified conditions.

Requires the lease or rental agreement of a single-family residential
real property or any portion of a multifamily residential real property
or commercial real property that is entered into, renewed, or
amended, be accompanied by a disclosure stating the property
owner's responsibility to replace all noncompliant plumbing fixtures
with water-conserving plumbing fixtures.

Requires the State Water Resources Control Board to adopt a policy

to address the potential for a storm-induced overflow from an
in which water is stored for

A-7

Status

02/24/2015 - INTRODUCED

06/30/2015 - From SENATE Committee
on NATURAL RESOURCES AND
WATER with author's
amendments.;06/30/2015 - In SENATE.
Read second time and amended. Re-
referred to Committee on NATURAL
RESOURCES AND WATER.

07/16/2015 - In SENATE. Read second
time and amended. Re-referred to
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS.

03/26/2015 - To ASSEMBLY
Committee on WATER, PARKS AND
WILDLIFE.;03/26/2015 - From



Bill No.
Author

AB 935
Salas (D)

AB 936
Salas (D)

AB 937
Salas (D)

AB 938
Salas (D)

AB 954
Mathis (R)

Title

Water Projects

Groundwater Monitoring

Groundwater
Plan/Assistance:
Disadvantaged Communities

Groundwater: Basin
Reprioritization

Water and Wastewater Loan
and Grant Pilot Program

IRWD
Position

IRWD 2016 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated: 1/4/2016

Summary/Effects

beneficial use or aesthetic purposes.

Requires, upon appropriation by the Legislature, the Department of
Water Resources to provide funding for certain projects, provided
that certain conditions are met.

Amends existing law which provides that certain entities with
authority to assume groundwater monitoring functions with regard to
a basin or subbasin for which the Department of Water Resources
has assumed those functions are not eligible for a water grant or loan
awarded or administered by the state. Authorizes an exemption for
the eligibility restriction if the entity submits specified
documentation that provides that there are special circumstances
justifying noncompliance.

Requires the Department of Water Resources to provide technical
assistance to disadvantaged communities so that they may
participate in groundwater planning, including planning for regional
groundwater banking, with any county or other local agency.

Imposes the requirement to establish a groundwater sustainability
agency on a local agency or combination of local agencies overlying
a groundwater basin.

Creates the Water and Wastewater Loan and Grant Program.
Require the State Water Resources Control Board to establish a pilot
program to provide low-interest loans and grants to local agencies
for grants to eligible individual homeowners for purposes relating to
water and wastewater treatment. Creates a related fund for

Status

ASSEMBLY Committee on WATER,
PARKS AND WILDLIFE with author's
amendments.;03/26/2015 - In
ASSEMBLY. Read second time and
amended. Re-referred to Committee on
WATER, PARKS AND WILDLIFE.

09/10/2015 - In SENATE. From third
reading. To Inactive File.

05/28/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:
Held in committee.

08/27/2015 - In SENATE Committee on
APPROPRIATIONS: Held in
committee.

05/07/2015 - To SENATE Committee
on NATURAL RESOURCES AND
WATER.

08/27/2015 - In SENATE Committee on
APPROPRIATIONS: Held in
committee.



Bill No.
Author

AB 957
Mathis (R)

AB 977
Mayes (R)

AB 1019
Garcia E (D)

AB 1030
Ridley-
Thomas S (D)

AB 1068

Title

Water Quality, Supply,
Infrastructure Improvement

State Water Pollution
Control Revolving Fund

Metal Theft and Related
Recycling Crimes

Global Warming Solutions
Act of 2006: Greenhouse
Gas

California Environmental

IRWD
Position

IRWD 2016 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated: 1/4/2016

Summary/Effects

use under the program. Transfers a specified amount of funds from
the General Fund to the fund.

Relates to grants under the Water Quality, Supply, and Infrastructure
Improvement Act of 2014 for water supply reliability improvement
to include in that improvement criterion whether the project is
proposed by a community that is dependent on groundwater from a
basin in overdraft, and would include in the public health benefits
criterion whether the project is proposed by a community that has
extended, or is in the process of extending, its water service
deliveries to specified groundwater entities.

Amends existing law that requires loans under the State Water
Pollution Control Revolving Fund to meet specified criteria,
including requiring full amortization not later than a specified
number of years after project completion. Requires full amortization
not later than another specified number of years after project
completion.

Requires the Department of Justice to establish a Metal Theft Task
Force Program designed to enhance the capacity of the department
to serve as the lead law enforcement agency in the investigation and
prosecution of illegal recycling operations, and metal theft and
related recycling crimes. Authorizes the department to enter into
partnerships with local law enforcement agencies.

Amends existing law that relates to the Greenhouse Gas Reduction
Fund. Requires priority be given to projects involving hiring that
support the targeted training and hiring of workers from
disadvantaged communities for career-track jobs.

Authorizes each Member of the to nominate one

A-9

Status

04/28/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on WATER, PARKS AND
WILDLIFE: Not heard.

03/26/2015 - From ASSEMBLY
Committee on ENVIRONMENTAL
SAFETY AND TOXIC MATERIALS
with author's amendments.;03/26/2015 -
In ASSEMBLY. Read second time and
amended. Re-referred to Committee on
ENVIRONMENTAL SAFETY AND
TOXIC MATERIALS.

05/28/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS
Held in committee.

08/27/2015 - In SENATE Committee on
APPROPRIATIONS: Held in
committee.

03/19/2015 - To ASSEMBLY



Bill No.
Author

Allen T (R)

AB 1128
Jones-Sawyer

D)

AB 1139
Campos (D)

AB 1144
Rendon (D)

AB 1201
Salas (D)

Title IRWD

Position

Quality Act: Priority
Projects

Water Conservation

Personal Income Tax: Credit:
Turf Removal

Renewables Portfolio
Standard Program: Credits

Delta: Predation by
Nonnative Species

Support

IRWD 2016 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated: 1/4/2016

Summary/Effects

within his or her respective district each year, and the Governor to

t

tice of

e of
Planning and Research. Requires an environmental impact report for
each project. Authorizes tiering from previously prepared reports.
Relates to court stays of projects.

Makes nonsubstantive changes to existing law that declares the
intent of the Legislature to, among other things, promote urban water
conservation standards that are consistent with the California Urban
Water Conservation Council's adopted best management practices
and specified requirements for demand management.

Allows a taxpayer, under the Personal Income Tax Law, a credit for
participation in a lawn replacement program.

Provides that renewable energy credits may be used to meet certain
portfolio content requirements if the credits are earned by electricity
that is generated by an entity that would be excluded from the
definition of an electrical corporation by operation of the exclusions
for entities employing landfill or digester gas technology that meets
certain requirements, including that the electricity is used at a
wastewater treatment facility. Prohibits certain marketing claims.

Requires the State Department of Fish and Wildlife to develop a
science-based that addresses nonnative

A-10

Status

Committees on NATURAL
RESOURCES and JUDICIARY

02/27/2015 - INTRODUCED.

03/26/2015 - To ASSEMBLY
Committee on REVENUE AND
TAXATION.;03/26/2015 - From
ASSEMBLY Committee on REVENUE
AND TAXATION with author's
amendments.;03/26/2015 - In
ASSEMBLY. Read second time and
amended. Re-referred to Committee on
REVENUE AND TAXATION.

08/17/2015 - From SENATE Committee
on APPROPRIATIONS with author's
amendments.;08/17/2015 - In SENATE.
Read second time and amended. Re-
referred to Committee on
APPROPRIATIONS.

08/27/2015 - In SENATE Committee on
APPROPRIATIONS: Held in



Bill No.
Author

AB 1242
Gray (D)

AB 1243
Gray (D)

AB 1315

Alejo (D)

AB 1325
Salas (D)

Title

Water Quality and Storage

Groundwater Recharge:
Grants

Public Contracts Water
Pollution Prevention Plans

Delta Smelt

IRWD
Position

IRWD 2016 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated: 1/4/2016

Summary/Effects

upon species of fish listed pursuant to the State Endangered Species
Act that reside all or a portion of their lives in the Sacramento-San
Joaquin Delta and that considers predation reduction for all Chinook
salmon and other native specifies not listed pursuant to the Act.
Provides for input from the scientific community, water users and
fishing communities.

Provides provisions of law requiring a specified increase in
statewide water storage capacity, and updating water strategies and
implementation plans. Requires the Water Resources Control Board,
in formulating policy for water quality control and adopting or
approving a water quality control plan for the Sacramento-San
Joaquin Delta, to take into consideration any applicable groundwater
sustainability plan or alternative and available information on
impacts of groundwater use and beneficial uses of water.

Establishes the Groundwater Recharge Grant Fund. Provides that
moneys in the fund are available to the State Water Resources
Control Board to provide grants to local governments and water
districts for groundwater recharge infrastructure projects.

Prohibits a public entity, charter city, or charter county from
delegating to a contractor the development of a plan used to prevent
or reduce water pollution or runoff on a public works contract.
Provides exceptions. Prohibits those same entities from requiring a
contractor on a public works contract that includes compliance with
a plan to assume responsibility for the completeness and accuracy of
a plan developed by that entity.

Enacts the Delta Smelt Preservation and Restoration Act of 2016.
Requires the development of a deltas smelt hatchery program to
preserve and restore the delta smelt. Requires entering into
mitigation banking agreements with banking partners of the
Department of Fish and Wildlife for the purpose of providing take

A-11

Status

committee.

09/02/2015 - In SENATE. Read second
time. To third reading.;09/02/2015 - Re-
referred to SENATE Committee on
RULES.

04/14/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on WATER, PARKS AND
WILDLIFE: Not heard.

05/28/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:
Held in committee.

04/28/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on WATER, PARKS AND
WILDLIFE: Failed passage.;04/28/2015
- In ASSEMBLY Committee on
WATER, PARKS AND WILDLIFE:



Bill No.
Author

AB 1362
Gordon (D)

AB 1454
Wagner (R)

AB 1463
Gatto (D)

SB 7
Wolk (D)

Title

Local Government
Assessments Fees and
Charges

Water Quality: Trash:
Single-Use Carryout Bags

Onsite Treated Water

Housing: Water Meters
Multi-unit Structures

IRWD
Position

IRWD 2016 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated: 1/4/2016

Summary/Effects

authorizations to those partners and to obtain funding from banking
agreements. Appropriates an unspecified amount of money from an
unspecified source to implement these provisions.

Defines stormwater for purposes of the Proposition 218 Omnibus
Implementation Act to mean any system of public improvements or
service intended to provide for the quality, conservation, control, or
conveyance of waters that land on or drain across the natural or man-
made landscape.

Suspends the operation of certain amendments to water quality
control plans relating to the total maximum daily load for trash
unless and until specified provisions inoperative due to a pending
referendum election become effective. Requires the State Water
Resources Control Board to revisit and revise the water quality
control plans to address impaired water quality due to trash if the
law pending referendum is defeated.

Requires the State Water Resources Control Board, in consultation
with the Department of Public Health, the Building Standards
Commission, and stakeholders, to establish water quality standards
and distribution, monitoring, and reporting requirements for onsite
water recycling systems prior to authorizing the use of onsite treated
water in internal plumbing of residential and commercial buildings.
Requires onsite treated water to be considered the same as recycled
water that is produced on site.

Requires a landlord to make submeter disclosures to a tenant prior to
executing a rental agreement. Relates to tenant billing procedures
and requirements. Authorizes building standards that require the
installation of water submeters in multiunit residential buildings.
Provides structure exemptions. Relates to landlord requirements.
Relates to the use of meters or submeters in new mixed-use
residential and commercial structures as a condition for service.

A-12

Status

Reconsideration granted.

03/23/2015 - To ASSEMBLY
Committee on LOCAL
GOVERNMENT.

04/23/2015 - Re-referred to
ASSEMBLY Committee on RULES

09/04/2015 - From SENATE Committee
on ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
with author's amendments.;09/04/2015 -
In SENATE. Read second time and
amended. Re-referred to Committee on
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY.

09/08/2015 - In ASSEMBLY. Read
third time. Failed to pass
ASSEMBLY .;09/08/2015 - In
ASSEMBLY. Motion to reconsider.



Bill No.
Author

SB 20
Pavley (D)

SB 32
Pavley (D)

SB 47
Hill (D)

SB 113
Galgiani (D)

Title

State Water Resiliency
Investment Act

Global Warning Solutions
Act 0f 2006

Environmental Health:
Synthetic Turf

Disaster Preparedness and
Flood Prevention Bond Act

IRWD
Position

IRWD 2016 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated: 1/4/2016

Summary/Effects

Requires licensed contractors do the installation.

Creates the State Water Resiliency Investment Fund. Provides that
moneys in the Fund are available for the purpose of providing a
more dependable water supply in the State. Creates various accounts
within the Fund for prescribed purposes.

Requires the State Air Resources Board to approve a specified
statewide greenhouse gas emission limits that are the equivalent to a
specified percentage below the 1990 level to be achieved by 2030.

Requires the Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment, in
consultation with the Department of Resources Recycling and
Recovery, the State Department of Public Health, and the
Department of Toxic Substances Control, to prepare and provide to
the Legislature and post on the office’s Internet Web site a study
analyzing synthetic turf, for potential adverse health impacts.
Provides the information to be included in the study. Authorizes
grant to crumb rubber businesses to find alternative markets.

Specifies that the Disaster Preparedness and Flood Prevention Bond
Act of 2006 funds provided by the act are only available for
appropriation until a specified date and at that time the amount of
indebtedness authorized by the act is reduced by the amount of funds
that have not been Makes available a amount

A-13

Status

08/26/2015 - From ASSEMBLY
Committee on WATER, PARKS AND
WILDLIFE with author's
amendments.;08/26/2015 - In
ASSEMBLY. Read second time and
amended. Re-referred to Committee on
WATER, PARKS AND WILDLIFE.

09/10/2015 - Re-referred to
ASSEMBLY Committee on NATURAL
RESOURCES.;09/10/2015 - From
ASSEMBLY Committee on NATURAL
RESOURCES with author's
amendments.;09/10/2015 - In
ASSEMBLY. Read second time and
amended. Re-referred to Committee on
NATURAL RESOURCES.

05/28/2015 - In SENATE Committee on
APPROPRIATIONS: Held in
committee.

07/02/2015 - From SENATE Committee
on NATURAL RESOURCES AND
WATER with author's
amendments.;07/02/2015 - In SENATE.
Read second time and amended. Re-



Bill No.
Author

SB 122
Jackson (D)

SB 127
Vidak (R)

SB 143
Stone (R)

SB 163
Hertzberg (D)

SB 173
Nielsen (R)

Title IRWD
Position
Environmental Quality Act:
Record of Proceedings
Water Quality, Supply, and
Infrastructure Improvement
Diamond Valley Reservoir: Oppose

Recreational Use

Wastewater Treatment:
Recycled Water

Groundwater: De Minimis
Extractors

IRWD 2016 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated: 1/4/2016

Summary/Effects

of funding for the upgrade of the levee system of a specified
reclamation district to provide urban level of flood protection.

Amends the Environmental Quality Act. Relates to a database for the
collection, storage, retrieval, and dissemination of environmental
documents, notices of exemption, notices of preparation, notices of
determination, and notices of completion provided to the office that
shall be available online to the public through the internet. Provides
for the phase-in of electronic documents. Requires the lead agency to
submit to the State Clearinghouse a sufficient number of
environmental documents for review.

Relates to the Water Quality, Supply, and Infrastructure
Improvement Act of 2014. Requires the public agency, in certifying
the environmental impact report and in granting approvals for
projects funded, in whole or in part, by Proposition 1, including the

c P of edin d the

c n rd in5 of the filing of
a specified notice, to comply with specified procedures.

Amends existing law that prohibits recreational use in which there is
bodily contact with water, in a reservoir in which water is stored for
domestic use.

Declares the discharge of treated wastewater from ocean outfalls is a
waste and unreasonable use of water in light of certain conditions.
Requires such facility to achieve a specified percentage of reuse of
the actual annual flow for beneficial purposes. Prohibits such
discharge except as backup discharge. Provides procedures for
related exemption requests. Requires a prescribed plan to meet these
provisions.

Amends existing law that generally excepts a de minimis extractor
from the requirement that a person who extracts eroundwater from a

Status

referred to Committee on NATURAL
RESOURCES AND WATER.

08/27/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:
Not heard.

02/05/2015 - To SENATE Committees
on ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY and
JUDICIARY.

02/05/2015 - To SENATE Committee
on ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY.

09/08/2015 - Re-referred to
ASSEMBLY Committee on RULES.

03/24/2015 - In SENATE Committee on
NATURAL RESOURCES AND



Bill No.
Author

SB 179
Berryhill (R)

SB 223
Galgiani (D)

SB 228
Cannella (R)

SB 248
Pavley (D)

Title

Secondhand Goods: Junk
Dealers

Division of Boating and
Waterways: Oversight
Committee

Groundwater Storage:
Beneficial Use

Oil and Gas

IRWD
Position

IRWD 2016 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated: 1/4/2016

Summary/Effects

probational basin or extracts groundwater on or after July 1, 2017, in
an area within a basin that is not within the management area of a
groundwater sustainability agency and where the county does not
assume responsibility to be the groundwater sustainability agency has
to file a report of groundwater extraction. Defines a de minimis
extractor.

Makes nonsubstantive changes to existing law that prohibits a junk
dealer or recycler from possessing a reasonably recognizable,
disassembled, or inoperative fire hydrant or fire department
connection, a manhole cover or lid, or a backflow device, that was
owned by an agency, without a written certification on the agency's
letterhead that the agency either has sold the material described or is
offering the material for sale.

Requires the Division of Boating and Waterways to establish an
advisory and oversight committee to evaluate and monitor the
activities of the Division relating to the management and control or
eradication of invasive aquatic plants. Provides the expertise of
members of the committee. Requires the committee to meet a
specified amount of times per year and to communicate any findings
or recommendations to the Division.

Declares that the recharging of a groundwater basin by a local
groundwater management agency or a local groundwater
sustainability agency for the purposes of repelling saline intrusion
and recovering basin groundwater levels constitutes a beneficial use
of water if the recharge is consistent with the local agency's
groundwater management plan or groundwater sustainability plan.

Provides for an inspection program for all activities regulated
pursuant to provisions concerning drilling, operation, maintenance,
and abandonment of oil and gas wells and certain tanks and facilities
Requires inspections to be reported and posted, and the recording of

A-15

Status

WATER: Failed passage.;03/24/2015 -
In SENATE Committee on NATURAL
RESOURCES AND WATER:
Reconsideration granted.

02/19/2015 - To SENATE Committee
on RULES.

08/27/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:
Held in committee.

02/26/2015 - To SENATE Committee
on NATURAL RESOURCES AND
WATER.

08/27/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:
Not heard.



Bill No.
Author

SB 258
Bates (R)

SB 286
Hertzberg (D)

SB 317
De Leon (D)

SB 360
Cannella (R)

SB 454
Allen (D)

Title

Local Government

Electricity: Direct
Transactions

Safe Neighborhood Parks,
Rivers, and Coastal
Protection

Biomethane

Water Quality: Oil and Gas:
Exempted Aquifer

IRWD
Position

IRWD 2016 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated: 1/4/2016

Summary/Effects

information in a well history, including fluid injection, chemical
composition, and waste disposal injection. Provides for shutdown.
Requires updating related regulations. Requires notification and
clearance of chemical injection.

States the intent of the Legislature to enact legislation that would
protect the right of the public to participate in open deliberations of
the legislative bodies of local agencies by clarifying the appropriate
use of special meetings.

Requires the Public Utilities Commission to adopt and implement a
schedule that implements a specified phase-in period for expanding
direct transactions for individual retail nonresidential end-use
customers over a maximum time period, raising the aliowable limit
of kilowatthours that can be supplied by other electrical corporation's
distribution service territory to that corporation's share of the
gigawatthours. Requires such customers to be responsible for their
share of the costs of specified programs.

Enacts the Safe Neighborhood Parks, Rivers, and Coastal Protection
Bond Act of 2016, which, if adopted by the voters, would authorize
the issuance of bonds in a specified amount pursuant to the State
General Obligation Bond Law to finance a safe neighborhood parks,
rivers, and coastal protection program.

Authorizes the Public Utilities Commission to consider providing the
option to all corporations to engage in competitive bidding and direct
investment in ratepayer financed biomethane collection equipment.

Relates to water quality, oil and gas wells and exempt aquifers.
Prohibits the Division of Oil, Gas, and Geothermal Resources from
submitting a proposal for an aquifer exemption to the United States
Environmental Protection Agency unless the Division and the State
Water Resources Control Board concur in that the

A-16

Status

02/26/2015 - To SENATE Committee
on RULES.

08/27/2015 - In ASSEMBLY. Joint
Rule 62(a) suspended.

09/11/2015 - In SENATE. To Inactive
File.

03/05/2015 - To SENATE Committee
on ENERGY, UTILITIES AND
COMMUNICATIONS.

06/08/2015 - In SENATE. From third
reading. To Inactive File.



Bill No.
Author

SB 471
Pavley (D)

SB 487
Nielsen (R)

SB 553

Title IRWD
Position
Water, Energy, Reduction of
Greenhouse Gas Emissions
Sustainable Groundwater
Management Act:
Exemptions
State Water Policy: Water Seek
and Energy Efficiency Amendments

Public Water Systems:
Disadvantaged
Communities

Water Conservation

IRWD 2016 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated: 1/4/2016

Summary/Effects

meets specified conditions.

Includes reduction of greenhouse emissions associated with water
treatment among the investments that are eligible for funding from
the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund. Requires the State Water
Resources Control Board to establish a grant and loan program for
water projects that result in the net reduction of water-related
greenhouse gas emissions.

Relates to the California Environmental Act (CEQA). Exempts from
the requirements of CEQA the formation of a groundwater
sustainability agency, the amendment of a groundwater sustainability
plan or coordinated groundwater sustainability plan, and the
implementation of those plans, except to the extent that the
implementation requires the construction or installation of a new
facility.

Declares the policy of the state that water use and water treatment
shall operate in a manner that is as energy efficient as in feasible and
e se an as r

e as is to der
this state policy when revising, or establishing policies, regulations,
and grant criteria when pertinent to these uses of water and energy.

Requires the State Water Resources Control Board to hold at least
one initial public meeting prior to ordering the consolidate or
extension of public water system service and to obtain the consent of

ic des any

el service nsent is
ineligible for any future water-related grant funding. Requires the
Board to compensate certain water systems. Prohibits a charge
increase for certain customers.

Requires the Department of General Services to identify each public

A-17

Status

08/27/2015 - In ASSEMBLY. Joint
Rule 62(a) suspended.;08/27/2015 - In
ASSEMBLY Committee on
APPROPRIATIONS: Held in
committee.

03/12/2015 - To SENATE Committee
on ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

08/27/2015 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:
Held in committee.

07/09/2015 - Re-referred to
ASSEMBLY Committee on RULES.

05/28/2015 - In SENATE Committee on



Bill No. Title
Author
Wolk (D)
Water Commission
Disqualifying Financial
Interest
SB 556 Victims of Crime:
DeLeon (D) Indemnification:
Applications
Groundwater Management
SB 615 Waste Discharge: Waivers:

Berryhill (R) Managed Wetlands

IRWD
Position

IRWD 2016 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated: 1/4/2016

Summary/Effects

property in the department's state property inventory where it is
feasible for water consumption to be reduces and water efficiencies
to be achieved through implementation of the relevant
recommendations made in the model water efficient landscape
ordinance and would require the department to implement the
relevant recommendation where feasible.

Removes a member of the California Water Commission from office
if after trial a court finds that the commission member has knowingly
participated in any commission decision in which the member has a
disqualifying financial interest in the decision.

Relates to indemnification of victims of crime. Defines the time of

ion quir v C n and
sB top it m its
the
all
the b first receive
ckis edtoanelig  victim.

Relates to the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act. Authorizes
the State Water Resources Control Board to designate a basin as a

asin board rmination
the to dev for the
probationary basin.

Relates to waste discharge requirements, waivers and managed
wetlands. Requires each regional board to prescribe waste discharge
ents implement r plans.
for ers. Amends ss results
of downstream monitoring demonstrate a violation of water quality
discharge standards.

A-18

Status

APPROPRIATIONS: Held in
committee.

04/21/2015 - In SENATE Committee on
ELECTIONS AND
CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENTS:
Not heard.

09/10/2015 - In ASSEMBLY. To
Inactive File.

03/12/2015 - To SENATE Committee
on RULES.

04/29/2015 - In SENATE Committee on
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY: Not
heard.



SB 768
Wieckowski

D)

Title

Water Management:
Synthetic Plastic
Microbeads

Renewable Gas Standard

Water-Conserving Plumbing
Fixtures

Bay Delta Conservation
Plan: Judicial Review

IRWD
Position

IRWD 2016 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated: 1/4/2016

Summary/Effects

Prohibits the selling, or offering for promotional purposes a person

¢ mic Exe
offer duct
a specified amount of such microbeads. Makes a violator liable for a
civ alty for eac be
rec d in a civil al. Prohibits

any local ordinance, resolution, or rule relating to the sale of such
microbeads.

Requires the State Air Resources Board to adopt a carbon-based
renewable gas standard that requires all gas sellers to provide

of the lifecycle emissions of greenhouse gases and reductions for
different biogas types and end uses. Requires a renewable gas
assessment.

Makes technical, nonsubstantive changes to existing law that requires
the replacement of plumbing fixtures that are not water conserving in
residential and commercial real property built and available for use
on or before a specified date.

States the intent of the Legislature to enact legislation establishing
judicial review procedures for the Bay Delta Conservation Plan.

A-19

Status

04/22/2015 - Re-referred to SENATE
Committees on ENVIRONMENTAL
QUALITY and JUDICIARY.

05/28/2015 - In SENATE Committee on
APPROPRIATIONS: Held in
committee.

03/19/2015 - To SENATE Committee
on RULES.

03/19/2015 - To SENATE Committee
on RULES.



EXHIBIT "B"

The California Water Conservation, Flood Control
And Stormwater Management Act of 2016

(AS TO BE AMENDED)

SECTION 1. Title

This measure shall be known as the California Water Conservation, Flood Control
and Stormwater Management Act 2016

SECTION 2. Findings, Declarations and Purposes

A

California’s historic drought and the likelihood that climate change will
increase the severity of droughts and heavy floods mean California must
provide local communities with the tools to further encourage conservation
and discourage excessive use of water; to effectively manage and increase
water supplies; to capture, clean and eliminate pollution from local water
sources; and to better protect people and property from the dangers of
floods.

Effective local management of water supplies includes authorizing local
agencies to design rates to encourage water conservation and discourage
excessive use of water.

Local agencies should also invest in infrastructure to capture and clean water
polluted by toxic chemicals and trash; recycle and reuse rainwater and
stormwater runoff; and to prevent toxic stormwater and urban runoff from
contaminating sources of drinking water, including rivers, lakes, streams, and
groundwater, and polluting beaches, coastal waters, and wetlands.

California must also improve local flood control by better capturing and
managing storm and flood waters and upgrading storm drains, sewer and
drainage systems to protect properties from floods and increase local
supplies of water available for public use.

Existing state laws governing the funding of local water supplies, clean water,
water conservation and resource management, and floodwater protection
were not developed with California’s current water realities in mind.

An alternative method for funding critical local water supplies, water quality,
water conservation and resource management, and flood protection projects

is needed.

This measure establishes an alternative funding method that authorizes local
agencies to:

B-1



i. Setrates for customers to encourage water conservation, prevent
waste, and discourage excessive use of water.

ii. Levy fees and charges, subject to ratepayer protest, for flood control
and for management of stormwater to protect coastal waters, rivers,
lakes, streams, groundwater and other sources of drinking water from
contamination.

iii. Use fees and charges to reduce water, and sewer fees and charges for
low-income customers.

H. Any local agency that utilizes this alternative funding method for water
service and sewer service should be required to adhere to strict
accountability, transparency and ratepayer protections. This includes:

i. Providinglocal ratepayers with a description of the need for the
proposed fee or charge and the projects and purposes projected to be
funded by any proposed fee or charge in advance of any public hearing
or consideration of the fee or charge;

ii. Posting the description of the proposal on the agency’s Internet website
with all applicable exhibits;

iii. Providing local ratepayers a notice of the date and time of the public
hearing the local agency will hold on the proposed fee and charges;

iv. If written protests against the fee or charge are presented by a majority
of persons to whom the local agency sent the notice about the proposal
then the local agency shall not impose, increase or extend the fee or
charge;

v. All money must be spent for the local purpose for which the fee or
charge was imposed and cannot be taken by state government;

vi. Revenues derived from the fee or charge shall not exceed the
reasonable cost to the local agency of providing the water or sewer
service or be used for any purpose other than that for which it was
imposed;

vii. The manner in which the costs are allocated to a fee payor shall bear a
fair or reasonable relationship to the fee payor’s burden on or benefits
received from the water service or sewer service;

viii. The initiative power of voters may be used to repeal or reduce the fee
or charge in the future with the filing of a petition calling for an election
on the question;

ix. Independent annual audits shall be made available to the public
showing how all funds are spent.

This new funding method will allow local agencies to invest in the water
supplies, water quality, flood protection and water management and
conservation programs we need, while guaranteeing a high level of
accountability and ratepayer protections.

B-2



SECTION 3. Section 8 is hereby added to Article X of the California
Constitution to read as follows:

SEC. 8 Water and Sewer Service

(a). Alternative funding method. This section provides alternative procedures and
requirements for funding water service and sewer service independent of any other
procedures and requirements in this Constitution for funding these services.

(1) A local agency that adheres to the procedures and requirements of this section,
including the strict accountability requirements to protect local ratepayers, may use
at its discretion, the provisions of this section instead of any other procedures or
requirements in this Constitution for funding the cost of providing water service
and sewer service only if undertaken voluntarily and at the sole discretion of the
local agency.

(2) The revenues derived from the fees or charges imposed in accordance with this
section may only be used by the local agency that imposed, increased or extended
the fee or charge, and like other fees or charges imposed, increased or extended by
local agencies, the Legislature is prohibited from reallocating, transferring,
borrowing, appropriating, restricting the use of, or otherwise using the proceeds of
such fees or charges.

(b) Definitions. As used in this section:

(1) “Fee” or “charge” means any levy other than an ad valorem tax, a special tax, or
an assessment, imposed by an agency upon a parcel or upon a person as an incident
of property ownership, including a user fee or charge for water service or sewer
service having a direct relationship to property ownership.

(2) “Local agency” means any city, county, city and county, including a charter city
or county, special district, or any other local or regional governmental entity.

(3) “Property ownership” shall be deemed to include tenancies of real property
where tenants are directly liable to pay the fee or charge.

(4) “Sewer service” means any system of public improvements, facilities, projects, or
services for the collection, conveyance, conservation, drainage, disposal, recycling or
treatment of stormwater, flood water, dry weather runoff, sewage or waste to: (A)
conserve and protect sources of drinking water, such as rivers, lakes, streams and
groundwater, or the environment, such as beaches, coastal waters, and wetlands,
from toxic chemicals, biological contaminants, and other pollutants; (B) protect
public health and safety; (C) reduce the risk of flooding of public or private
property; or (D) comply with federal or state laws, rules, and regulations.

B-3



(5) “Water service” means any system of public improvements, facilities, projects or
services intended to provide for the production, management, storage, supply,
treatment, recycling, conservation or distribution of water from any source.

(c) Requirements for new, increased or extended fees or charges. A fee or charge for
water service or sewer service shall not be imposed, increased, or extended by a
local agency pursuant to this section unless it meets all of the following
requirements:

(1) Revenues derived from the fee or charge shall not exceed the reasonable cost to
the local agency of providing the water service or sewer service.

(2) Revenues derived from the fee or charge shall not be used for any purpose other
than that for which the fee or charge was imposed.

(3) The manner in which the costs of the water service or sewer service are allocated
to a fee payor shall bear a fair or reasonable relationship to the fee payor’s burden
on or benefits received from the water service or sewer service.

(d) Conservation fee or charges; low-income households. A local agency that
imposes, extends, or increases a fee or charge pursuant to this section may do either
or both of the following:

(1) Allocate the cost of water service or sewer service

rate structure reasonably designed to
encourage water conservation and resource management in furtherance of the
policy established in section 2;

(2) Increase the amount of a fee or charge to derive revenues that do not exceed the
reasonable cost of reducing such fee or charge for lower-income households.

(e) Notice, public hearing and majority protest. A local agency shall comply with the
procedures of this subdivision in imposing, increasing, or extending a fee or charge
for water service or sewer service pursuant to this section:

(1) The local agency shall provide written notice by mail of the new fee or charge or
the proposed increase in or extension of an existing fee or charge to the fee payor
listed in the local agency’s billing, or customer service records or other appropriate
records. If the fee or charge is or will be imposed on a parcel, the local agency shall
provide written notice to the record owner as provided in paragraph (4). The local
agency may include the notice in the agency’s regular billing statement for the fee or
charge to the person at the address to which the agency customarily mails the
billing statement for water service or sewer service. If the customer is billed only
electronically, the agency shall provide notice by mail.



(2) The notice required by paragraph (1) shall include the amount of the fee or
charge proposed to be imposed on the recipient of the notice or the basis upon
which the amount of the fee or charge will be calculated, together with the date,
time and location of the public hearing on the fee or charge. The notice also shall
state that if written protests against the fee or charge are presented by a majority of
persons to whom the local agency sent the notice required by paragraph (1), then
the local agency shall not impose, increase or extend the fee or charge.

(3) The notice required by paragraph (1) shall include a general description of the
services, facilities and improvements projected to be funded with the proceeds
derived from the new fee or charge or proposed increase in, or extension of the fee
or charge. A more complete description of the projected services, facilities and
improvements, including any applicable exhibits, shall be made available at an
accessible location and on the local agency’s Internet website.

(4) If the local agency desires to preserve any authority it may have to record or
enforce a lien on the parcel to which service is provided, the local agency shall also
mail notice to the record owner's address shown on the last equalized assessment
roll if that address is different than the billing address.

(5) The local agency shall conduct a public hearing upon the proposed fee or charge
not less than 45 days after mailing the notice required by paragraph (1). Atthe
public hearing, the local agency shall consider all oral and written protests against
the fee or charge. If written protests against the fee or charge are presented by a
majority of persons to whom the local agency sent the notice required by paragraph
(1), then the local agency shall not impose, increase or extend the fee or charge. One
written protest per service address shall be counted in calculating a majority protest
pursuant to this paragraph.

(f) Burden of proof. The local agency bears the burden of proving by a
preponderance of the evidence that the amount of a fee or charge for water service
or sewer service is no more than necessary to cover the reasonable costs of the
water service or sewer service, and that the manner in which those costs are
allocated to a payor bear a fair or reasonable relationship to the payor’s burden on,
or benefits received from, the water service or sewer service. A fee or charge levied
pursuant to and in compliance with this section is not a tax

(g) Initiative power for fees or charges. Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Constitution, including, but not limited to Sections 8 and 9 of Article 1], the initiative
power shall not be prohibited or otherwise limited in matters of reducing or
repealing any fee or charge for water service or sewer service adopted, increased or
extended pursuant to this section. The power of the initiative to affect such fees or
charges shall be applicable to all local agencies and neither the Legislature nor any
local government charter shall impose a signature requirement higher than that
applicable to statewide statutory initiatives.

B-5



(h) Mandatory audit. Any local agency that approves a fee or charge for water
service or sewer service in accordance with this section shall cause to be prepared
an independent financial audit of the receipt and expenditure of the revenues
derived from the fee or charge. Such an audit may be part of a comprehensive audit
of the agency’s finances, but the audit shall identify the revenues received and
expended in accordance with this section with sufficient clarity to help ratepayers
compare the use of the funds to the description provided in paragraph (3) of
subdivision (e).

SECTION 4. Severability

If the provisions of this act, or any part thereof, are for any reason held to be invalid
or unconstitutional, the remaining provisions shall not be affected, but shall remain
in full force and effect and to this end the provisions of this act are severable.

SECTION 5. Conflicting Measures

It is the intent of the people that in the event that this measure and another measure
relating to the establishment of an alternative method of imposing, increasing, or
extending fees or charges to fund water service or sewer service appear on the same
statewide election ballot, the provisions of the other measure or measures shall be
deemed to be in conflict with this measure, and if approved by the voters, this
measure shall take effect notwithstanding.

SECTION 6. Liberal Construction

The provisions of this act shall be liberally construed in order to effectuate its
purposes and the intent of the voters to provide local agencies alternative
procedural and substantive requirements for imposing fees and charges for water
service and sewer service from those otherwise found in the Constitution.



EXHIBIT "C"
December 21, 2015

Proposed Regulatory Framework for
Extended Emergency Regulation for Urban Water Conservation

Background:

On April 1, 2015, Governor Brown issued the fourth in a series of executive orders on actions
necessary to address California’s drought. On May 5, 2015, the State Water Resources Control
Board (State Water Board) adopted an Emergency Regulation to address specific provisions of the
April 1 Executive Order, including a mandatory 25 percent statewide reduction in potable urban
water use between June 2015 and February 2016. To reach the statewide 25 percent reduction
mandate, the Emergency Regulation assigns each urban water supplier a conservation tier that
ranges between 4 and 36 percent based residential per capita water use for the months of July —
September 2014.

At the time the State Water Board adopted the current Emergency Regulation some urban water
suppliers had proposed further refinement to the conservation tiers to reflect a range of factors
that contribute to water use. State Water Board Resolution No. 2015-0032 directed staff to work
with stakeholders to further develop and consider these factors, including but not limited to
temperature, growth, use of drought resilient supplies, and others for adjustment to the Emergency
Regulation should it need to be extended into 2016.

On November 13, 2015, Governor Brown issued Executive Order B-36-15 (EO B-36-15) calling for an
extension of urban water use restrictions until October 31, 2016, should drought conditions persist
through January 2016. Between August and November 2015 State Water Board staff convened a
small group of individuals representing a variety of water interests to further explore potential
modification of the Emergency Regulation. The State Water Board also held a public workshop on
December 7, 2015, to solicit input on elements of the existing Emergency Regulation, if any, that
should be modified. The stakeholder process and workshop led to development of several
proposals for modification of the Emergency Regulation, which are discussed below, along with
staff recommendations.

Staff recommendations are based on the criteria that modifications to the Emergency Regulation be
transparent, intelligible, equitable, reasonable, provide sufficient water savings statewide, and be
feasible to implement and enforce. As directed by the Governor in EO B-36-15, this proposal would
extend until October 31, 2016 restrictions to achieve a statewide reduction in urban potable water

usage.

Climate adjustment:

: Water suppliers in warmer climates would be granted a reduced
conservation standard based on their service area evapotranspiration (ET) relative to statewide
average ET. The adjustments would be calculated by multiplying the deviation from average ET by
the water supplier’s conservation standard and would range from a 0-15 percentage point decrease
to suppliers existing conservation requirement. As proposed, no supplier would have their standard
increased.

: Incorporate a climate adjustment in the Emergency Regulation that
reduces the conservation requirement by up to 4 percentage points for water suppliers located in

1

C-1



December 21, 2015

the warmest regions of the State. The climate adjustment would be based on each urban water
supplier’s approximate service area ET for the months of July through September as compared to
statewide average ET for the same months. The adjustment would range from a 2-4 percentage
point decrease in an urban water supplier’s conservation requirement depending on service area ET
as follows: ’

Deviation from Average ET  Reduction in Conservation Standard

>20% 4%
10 to 20% 3%
5 to <10% 2%

Default service area ET will be based on the California Irrigation Management Information System
(CIMIS) for which the supplier’s service area has the greatest overlap. Each Urban
Water Supplier will have the opportunity to refine its service area ET using specific data from CIMIS
stations within its service area, provided each station used has a continuous period of record of at
least 5 years.

Staff estimates that this adjustment will result in 1.4 percentage point reduction in statewide water
savings from that currently required.

Calculation of Climate ustment

0] Conservation irement 32%
Statewide ETJu 6.13 inches
Service Area ET Jul-Se ne 17 8.4 inches
Service Area % Deviation from Ave ET= 8.4-6.13 0.37 or37%
Climate  ustment -4%
usted Conservation uirement 28%
Growth adjustment:

- Each urban water supplier’s 2013 baseline water use would be increased to
account for growth in new service connections since 2013. The volume of water per connection in
2013 would be calculated (based on total use divided by number of connections) and multiplied by
the number of connections added since 2013. This volume of water could be added to the 2013
baseline to account for new growth, resulting in a decrease to the supplier’s conservation volume
requirement but not its conservation standard.

- Provide a mechanism to adjust urban water supplier conservation
standards to account for water efficient growth since 2013. The adjustment will be equal to the
ratio of the additional volume of water used since 2013 to the baseline water use for 2013,
multiplied by the water supplier’s conservation standard. The volume of water added due to
growth will be calculated as the sum of:



December 21, 2015

1. Number of new residential connections since 2013 multiplied by 165 gallons (55 gallons per
person per day multiplied by three people) multiplied by 270 days.

2. Area of new residential landscaped area (square feet) served by connections since 2013
multiplied by 55% of total service area ET (inches) for the months of February through
October multiplied by a conversion factor of 0.623 (converting inches to gallons).

3. Number of new commercial, industrial, and intuitional (Cll) connections since 2013
multiplied by the average commercial industrial, and institutional water use per connection
during February through October 2015.

Staff estimates that this adjustment will result in about a one percentage point reduction in
statewide water savings compared to the current requirements, assuming that growth has
increased by 4% since 2013 for every urban water supplier.

Exa Calculation of Growth ustment

# of new residential connections since 2013 4,000

Residential landsca area served  connections since 2013 sq. feet
Total ET Febru  thro October 44 inches
Volume of water attributable to new residential connections

= [4000*165*270] + * 44 *0.55%0.623] 328,966 lons

# of new commercial, industrial, and institutional connections

since 2013 700
use rCll connection Feb-Oct 2015 900,000 llons
Volume of water attributable to new Cll connections
=700 * 630,000,000 llons
Total volume of water attributable to since 2013 llons
Baseline 2013 total water roduction Feb-Oct gallons
Gallons of water attributable to 958,966,000 lons
Percentage change in potable water production due to
6%
Original Conservation uirement 36%
Conservation Requirement =.36 * -0.06] 34%

Drought Resilient Sources of Supply Credit:

Suppliers would receive a credit for desalinated seawater or indirect potable
re-use (IPR) water. The credit would come in the form of a one-to-one reduction from the
calculated amount of water that needs to be saved under the Emergency Regulation. A supplier
could deduct all water derived from desalination or IPR from their total savings requirement. San



December 21, 2015

Diego County Water Authority proposes a similar credit for Colorado River water received through
long-term transfers of conserved water. No supplier would be allowed to have an effective
conservation rate below 8%.

. Provide a one-tier (four percentage point) reduction to the conservation
standard of urban water suppliers using new drought resilient water supplies. The credit would
apply to urban water suppliers that certify, and provide documentation upon request, that at least
4 percent of its potable supply is comprised of indirect potable reuse of coastal wastewater (the
creation and use of which does not injure another legal user of water or the environment) or
desalinated seawater developed since 2013. Staff does not recommend extending this credit to
Colorado River water received through long-term transfer of conserved water.

Staff estimates that this credit will result in about a 0.6 percentage point decrease in statewide
water savings.

Non-potable Recycled Water Use Credit:

: This proposal would apply to suppliers that meet a large portion of irrigation
demand with non-potable recycled water. These suppliers would be able to reduce their 2016
monthly potable water production by the ratio of non-potable recycled water use to total potable
water production multiplied by their total water production and their conservation. Reducing 2016
total potable water production would have the effect of reducing the required volume of water
saved.

taff does not recommend providing additional credit for non-potable
recycled water use. Under the current Emergency Regulation, non-potable recycled water is not
counted in total potable water production. Suppliers’ conservation standards are based on
residential use of potable water, and while suppliers have been generally expected to target
outdoor irrigation as a means of achieving savings, high use of recycled water should not, by itself,
prevent a supplier from meeting those standards with reductions from residential and non-
residential customers. These suppliers have already realized the benefit of providing recycled water
by not having that water counted as part of their total production and not having to reduce use of
that water. Urban water suppliers that cannot meet their conservation standard due to a
disproportionate share of recycled water use may pursue relief through the existing alternate
compliance process on case by case basis.

Groundwater Credits:

: This set of proposals would provide credit for “sustainable” groundwater
management and groundwater augmentation. Suppliers would provide verification that the
groundwater supply is formally certified to meet certain eligibility requirements and then would be
eligible to deduct certain groundwater use from their total potable production. In effect, the use of
eligible groundwater would be counted the same as conserved water. There are four proposed
credit scenarios: 1) Groundwater Banking; (2) Conjunctive Use; (3) “Sustainable” Groundwater
Management; and (4) Adjudicated Basins. The proposals include requirements that would govern
the use of the credits under each scenario.



December 21, 2015

- Staff does not recommend providing credits for groundwater use or
management since the effect of such credits are not well-defined and are generally inconsistent
with goal of conserving the state’s remaining surface and groundwater supplies during the
drought. While groundwater augmentation with surface water is a critical element of drought
resilience, it is materially different than creation of new drought-resilient sources of supply, such as
through indirect potable reuse of wastewater or seawater desalination. Using seawater and
wastewater that, for example, would otherwise have been discharged to the ocean to create supply
adds to existing surface and groundwater supplies, whereas groundwater augmentation uses water
that was already part of existing freshwater resources. Moreover, the proposed groundwater
management credits do not adequately demonstrate how other users of a groundwater basin,
whether adjudicated or not, would be impacted from pumping by the supplier receiving a credit.
Suppliers whose basins are replenished with imported water would place additional strain on those
supplies by using more water under a credit system. Suppliers whose basins fill without imports
may impact others by increasing pumping under a credit system. Even self-sufficient, adjudicated
basins are not guaranteed to maintain all uses during an extended severe drought, where the next
opportunity for recharge is unknown. Additionally, there is no credible estimate of how much credit
would accrue for groundwater management and how that credit would impact statewide savings.
Credit for sustainable groundwater management may be appropriate for a permanent regulation,
and certainly will be addressed by the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act as that legislation
is implemented, but it is not adequately transparent, intelligible, implementable, or reasonable for
an Emergency Regulation of limited duration, the chief aim of which is to preserve existing surface
and groundwater supplies through conservation while extreme drought conditions persist.

Regional Compliance Approach:

: This proposal would allow suppliers to jointly comply with their aggregated
conservation standards as a single entity. Regions would be allowed to form, ona voluntary basis,
based on the criteria for forming a SBx7-7 regional alliance, per Water Code Section 10608.28. A
lead agency for the region would report the Regional Conservation Standard monthly to the State
Water Board on behalf of the region. Each urban retail water supplier would also continue to report
their individual monthly water use data. If a group as whole did not meet its regional conservation
target, the suppliers would revert back to their individual requirements.

staff does not recommend providing an option for regional compliance
because it will impede timely compliance and enforcement action by the Board and has the
potential to reduce individual water supplier accountability. While a regional approach could help
water suppliers provide a consistent message about a regional target to their customers, residents
and businesses need to conserve differing amounts to achieve a supplier’s reduction target, so the
benefits of this approach are not well substantiated. There is no reason that suppliers (and their
regional or wholesale partners) cannot develop consistent messaging under the current Emergency
Regulation, such as limits on outdoor watering, nor does the current emergency regulation inhibit
regionally-grouped suppliers or wholesalers from working together on messaging to encourage
conservation. In addition, there are multiple drawbacks to the proposed regional approach. First, it
would impede the Board’s enforcement and compliance efforts, by disallowing the Board from
using its enforcement tools to timely address the shortcomings of an individual supplier if that
supplier’s region was meeting its target. In the case where a region dropped out of compliance late

5

C-5



December 21, 2015

in the 270 day life of the regulation, the Board would have little time to institute corrective actions
for the individual suppliers. Second, it could encourage regional agencies to focus efforts on
additional conservation savings in high-performing communities rather than on steps to change the
conservation behaviors of poorer performing communities in order to meet the regional target.
Finally, the regional approach would undermine the direct accountability for water supply managers
established through the existing regulation. Staff encourages suppliers to work together on
messaging and outreach, but believes the drawbacks of a regional approach outweigh any potential
benefits.

Elimination of Commercial Agriculture Exclusion:

- The current Emergency Regulation allows water supplied for commercial
agricultural use to be excluded from total potable production, if certain conditions are met. The
proposal is to eliminate the exclusion or to change the definition of what constitutes commercial
agricultural use to prevent exclusion of water attributable to noncommercial agricultural use or
non-agricultural use that may be excluded improperly.

taff recommends modifying the Commercial Agriculture Exclusion to
require certification that customers whose water use is subtracted under the exclusion produce a
minimum of $1,000 per year in revenue from agricultural sales and are not subtracting water
used on ornamental landscapes. This change would limit use of the exclusion for properties with
minimal tural sales ed commercial agricultural and | landscape use. The
$1,000t Id is consis ith the US Department of Agric nition of a farm."

Staff estimates the existing agricultural exclusion has resulted in about an 11,000 acre feet
reduction in conserved water since June 2015. Modifying the commercial agriculture exclusion as
proposed could result in a slight increase of conserved water.

Exemption for regions without drought conditions and no exports/imports:

: This proposal would allow isolated hydrogeological regions that do not have
drought conditions and do not import or export water to be excluded from the conservation
standard element of the Emergency Regulation. Suppliers would apply to the State Water Board for
an exemption from the conservation standard and provide verification that water resources in
these regions are not available to benefit other regions.

taff does not recommend exempting or relaxing conservation
requirements for isolated hydrogeologic regions. The current Emergency Regulation contains a
reserved four percent tier for suppliers that can demonstrate multiple years of supply and no use of
imported water and groundwater. Staff continues to believe the four percent tier is adequate and
appropriate for an extended Emergency Regulation given the uncertainty of the state’s surface and
groundwater suppliers during the drought.

Revisions for suppliers with significant seasonal or transient populations:

! See , accessed December
11, 2015



December 21, 2015

: The Emergency Regulation assigned conservation tiers based on R-GPCD
during the months of July, August, and September 2014. The proposal is to re-assign tiers based on
12 months of R-GPCD data, because some areas, mainly the desert regioris, have the highest
population during the winter months.

taff does not recommend changing the process for assigning
conservation tiers to account for year round residential per capita water use because it would
reduce the regulation’s current emphasis on saving water where outdoor use is highest. In
addition, this proposal would in effect provide allowances for properties that are unoccupied for
part of the year but irrigated year-round. However, staff proposes to update each water suppliers
R-GPCD values using the most up to date July-September 2014 data that had been provided as of
January 1, 2016. Water suppliers have also been encouraged and allowed to correct any inaccurate
data and provide modified population information to account for monthly changes in population.

A Cap on Credits and Adjustments:
staff recommends that all credits and adjustments be capped to allow up to a maximum of a four
percentage point decrease to any individual water supplier’s conservation standard (tier).

staff Recommendations on Other Elements of an Extended Emergency Regulation:

Staff recommends maintaining other elements of the current Emergency Regulation in the
extended Emergency Regulation. These elements include the alternate compliance approach, the
statewide prohibited end-uses, the monthly reporting requirements for urban water suppliers, and
the conservation and reporting requirements for small suppliers. Staff proposes that small suppliers
again be required to report after six months of conservation under a readopted emergency
regulation.

Staff also recommends, based on feedback from both suppliers and the general public, adding a
prohibition against homeowners’ associations interfering with certain conservation actions of their
association members in violation of existing law.

Next Steps:
Comments are due on this proposed regulatory framework by January 6, 2016

e Adraft Emergency Regulation will be released for public comment in mid-January 2016

State Water Board consideration of an extended emergency regulation is anticipated in
early February 2016.

Input Requested: The State Water Board is interested in receiving feedback on this proposed
regulatory framework. Please submit comments with the subject line: “Comments on Proposed
Regulatory Framework” by email to: Kathy Frevert at Kathy.Frevert@waterboards.ca.gov by
January 6, 2016.



EXHIBIT "D"

AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY SEPTEMBER 3, 2015
AMENDED IN SENATE JUNE 2, 2015

SENATE BILL No. 163

Introduced by Senator Hertzberg

February 4, 2015

n act to add Section 13557.5 to the Water Code, relating to
water.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL’S DIGEST

SB 163, as amended, Hertzberg.
Wastewater treatment: recycled water.

Th rnia tion req
state tob use to

ting law declares that the use of

le is or an

av le, mined

by the State Water Resources Control Board, and other requirements

are met.
Under existing law, the state board and the 9 California regional

water quality control boards prescribe waste discharge requirements

I pollu
lished
This bill would declare that the astewater from
0 in co
a le us

opportunities to recycle this water

97

D-1



SB 163

D-2

97



—3 SB 163

ajority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: yes.

State-mandated local program: yes-no.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

The people of the State of California do enact as Jfollows:

SECTION 1. The Legislature finds and declares all of the
follow

(a) re drought conditions have persisted for the last three
years in California, and 2013 was the state’s driest calendar year
on record.

(b) California’s water supplies have dipped to alarmingly low
levels indicated by the very limited snowpack in the Sierra Nevada
Mountains, declining water levels in the state’s largest water

rv eds e m r r
h i low n Th r
continue to be severely depleted despite a limited amount of winter

t is unknown, but based on the
on Ca s
ntinue th
occur more regularly in the future.
(d) Continuous severe dro ight conditions present urgent
challenges across the state, including, but not limited to, water

shortages in communities and for agricultural production,

97



SB 163 4

Nel-LIRN e NV RV N

is not on track to meet the board’s goals.

(g) of wate ocean o
const d use ter with
me of Sec 2
in of the 0
beneficial use.
can as e on
ce riv tha ct to

variable climate and regulatory conditions.

w  quality, ic ment

al  nomies re .
SEC. 2. Section 13557.5 is added to the Water Code, to read:
13557.5. (a) The Legislature hereby finds and declares that

ou
is
of
leX Con nin
rtun this for
including both potable and nonpotable uses.
beneficial purposes.
not cha
w sa kup

97



Nol-CIEN e WV R S

20
21
22
23

40

— 5

A may occu du riods of

de d water in se such as

wastewalter.

SB 163

d
d

(B) An analysis of the costs to meet the requirements of this

section.

mechanisms.

(D) A detailed schedule for the completion of all necessary

actions.

(E) Supporting data and other documentation accompanying

detailed schedule for, and status of, the following:

D-5

97



SB 163 —6—

1 (1) Evaluation of reuse and disposal options.
2 (2) ration rep
3 (3) ration mit  lications.
4 (4) Construction initiation.
5 (5) Construction progress milestones.
6 (6) Construction completion.
7 (7) Initiation of operation.
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18 Code.
25 follow ns:
26 (4) board has failed to adopt regulations that approve
31 s
32 as rq
33 s is de

D-6

97



—7— SB 163

the NPDES permitholder shall reapply for an exemption or comply

rtial of this sectio ant

is su t or loan is so the
purpose of achieving compliance with the requirements of this
section.

97



SB 163

[FOTN N T NS T NG T N6 T NG T N T N T N T G i N B el i el el el
OV IO NMPBWNNROVENANNPRERWN=OOVROIAANREWLWN A~

97



January 11, 2016 PEr
Prepared by: K. Ryan/J Mori
Submitted by: K.

Approved by: Paul Cook

CONSENT CALENDAR

RATTLESNAKE RESERVOIR CHLORINE GAS SYSTEM REMOVAL
FINAL ACCEPTANCE

SUMMARY:

Construction of the Rattlesnake Reservoir Chlorine Gas System Removal project is complete.
The contractor, Schuler Engineering, has completed the required work and all punch list items
The project has received final inspection and acceptance of construction is recommended.

BACKGROUND

The project included the demolition of the existing chlorine gas system at the Rattlesnake
Reservoir complex and the installation of a new liquid sodium hypochlorite storage and feed
system. To ensure adequate disinfection was accomplished during construction of the new
facilities, the project also included the installation of a temporary sodium hypochlorite storage
and feed system that staff operated. The new permanent sodium hypochlorite facilities include
two horizontal 18,000 gallon FRP chemical storage tanks, five chemical metering pumps, a
chemical containment area, and associated site and electrical improvements. IRWD awarded the
construction contract to Schuler Engineering on November 25, 2014, and Schuler Engineering
completed construction in December 2015. The contract change order total for the project is
$143,743.75.

Project Title: Rattlesnake Reservoir Chlorine Gas System Removal
Project No.: 30435 (4959)

Design Engineer: Carollo Engineers

Construction Management by: IRWD Staff

Contractor: Schuler Engineering

Original Contract Cost: $1,725,900.00

Final Contract Cost: $1,869,643.75

Original Contract Days: 390

Final Contract Days: 438

Total Project Cost (Est.): $2,400,000

Final Change Order Approved On: December 16,2015

jm RCGR Final Acceptance.docx



Consent Calendar: Rattlesnake Reservoir Chlorine Gas System Removal Final Acceptance
January 11, 2016
Page 2

FISCAL IMPACTS:

Project 30435 (4959) is included in the FY 2015-16 Capital Budget. The existing budget is
sufficient to complete the project.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

This project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as authorized

under the California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, Section 15301 which provides

exemption for minor alterations of existing public or private structures, facilities, mechanical

equipment, or topographical features, involving negligible or no expansion of use beyond that
existing at the time of the lead agency's determination. A Notice of Exemption for the project
was filed with the County of Orange on January 15, 2014.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was not reviewed by a Committee.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO ACCEPT
CONSTRUCTION OF RATTLESNAKE RESERVOIR CHLORINE GAS SYSTEM
REMOVAL PROJECT, PROJECT 30435 (4959); AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER
TO FILE A NOTICE OF COMPLETION; AND AUTHORIZE THE RELEASE OF
RETENTION 35 DAYS AFTER FILING OF THE NOTICE OF COMPLETION.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

None.



January 11, 2016

Prepared by: J. Corey/K. Welch

Submitted by: F. Sanchez/P. Weghorst 4+’
Approved by: Paul Cook

ACTION CALENDAR

FINAL INITIAL STUDY/MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION FOR

SUMMARY:

A Final Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (Final IS/MND) for the proposed Irvine
Lake Pipeline North Conversion Project (Project) has been prepared. The Project will convert
the northern section of the Irvine Lake Pipeline from an untreated water system to a recycled
water system to provide recycled water to existing customers in IRWD’s North Tustin service
area along Jamboree Road and for permanent agricultural uses in Orchard Hills. The Project will
also extend the recycled water system to new customers including Santiago Canyon College,
Irvine Regional Park, the Cemetery of the Holy Sepulcher, Improvement District 252 and the
future Santiago Hills II residential development. Staff recommends that the Board adopt the
Final [S/MND and the associated Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for the Project.
Staff also recommends that the Board approve the Project and authorize staff to file a Notice of
Determination and submit payment for related filing fees.

BACKGROUND:

When initially constructed, the Irvine Lake Pipeline (ILP) extended from Irvine Lake to the
former Lambert Reservoir. In 2011, IRWD converted the southern section of the ILP, extending
from the Rattlesnake Complex to the endpoint of the UC Regents Cooperative Extension
property, from the untreated water system to the recycled water system as shown in Exhibit “A”.
The proposed Project that is depicted in Exhibit “B”, will convert the northern section of the ILP
to the recycled water system. When constructed, the proposed Project will provide recycled
water to existing customers in IRWD’s North Tustin service area along Jamboree Road and for
permanent agricultural uses in Orchard Hills. The Project will also extend the recycled water
system to new customers including Santiago Canyon College, Irvine Regional Park, the
Cemetery of the Holy Sepulcher, Improvement District 252 and the future Santiago Hills 11
residential development. The ILP North Conversion Project includes capacity for both existing
and future planned recycled water demands. The components of the proposed Project are
described below.

The proposed Project will include the construction of a 2.4 million gallon recycled water
reservoir adjacent to IRWD’s existing Santiago Zone 5 domestic water reservoir, located off of
Santiago Canyon Road. The proposed reservoir would be a partially buried circular tank and
would have a high water level of 700 feet. The construction and operation of the proposed
reservoir would also require a 42-inch tank inlet pipeline, a 42-inch tank outlet pipeline, an outlet
valve, a vault and a ring drain.

jac ILP North Conversion MND.docx



Action Calendar: Final Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration for Irvine Lake Pipeline
North Conversion Project

January 11, 2016

Page 2

The existing Orchard Hills Zone A-C Booster Pump Station (BPS), located in the Rattlesnake
Reservoir Complex, would be converted to a Zone A-C+ BPS, which would allow for pumping
of recycled water to both the Zone C and Zone C+ systems. The existing Orchard Hills facility
would be reconfigured to serve as a backup source of recycled water for Zone C customers. As
part of this Project, a portion of the ILP from the Baker Raw Water Pump Station (RWPS) near
the Peter’s Canyon Reservoir to the Rattlesnake Reservoir Complex would be converted to a 54-
inch recycled water line. A 20-inch pipeline would be constructed along Jamboree Road from its
intersection with Chapman Avenue and Santiago Canyon Road northward to Santiago Canyon
Road, and a 10-inch pipeline would be constructed along Santiago Canyon Road from Jamboree
Road westward to the Cemetery of the Holy Sepulcher.

Discussions are ongoing with the Irvine Company about combining construction of portions of
the Project pipelines with the proposed Santiago Hills II residential development such that the
Irvine Company would construct both the pipelines and the residential development
simultaneously under a reimbursement agreement with IRWD. Combining the work would
significantly reduce construction impacts in the area.

Environmental Review:

A Draft Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (Draft IS/MND) for the project was
prepared by environmental consultants at Bonterra Psomas. On November 4, 2015, the Draft
IS/MND was circulated for public review pursuant to CEQA. Four letters providing comments
on the Draft IS/MND were received during the public review period that concluded on December
3,2015. The agencies that provided comments were Metropolitan Water District of Southern
California, the City of Orange, the City of Irvine and the California Department of
Transportation. Staff reviewed all received comments and worked with Bonterra to prepare
responses to comments that are included in the Final IS/MND, along with necessary corrections
and additions to the document. These additions include a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting
Program. The resulting Final IS/MND is attached as Exhibit “C”. The document includes
Mandatory Findings of Significance on pages 5-54 which conclude that with the incorporation of
the identified mitigation measures, all potential impacts would be reduced to less than significant
levels.

FISCAL IMPACTS:
None
ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

This Project is subject to CEQA and in conformance with California Code of Regulations Title
14, Chapter 3, Article 6, a Notice of Intent to adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration was filed
with the County of Orange on November 4, 2015. Pursuant to State Guideline § 15073, the
IS/MND for the Project was made available for public review for a period of 30 days from
November 4, 2015, through December 3, 2015.



Action Calendar: Final Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration for Irvine Lake Pipeline
North Conversion Project

January 11, 2016

Page 3

COMMITTEE STATUS:
This item was not reviewed by a Committee.
RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD FIND ON THE BASIS OF THE WHOLE RECORD BEFORE IT,
INCLUDING THE INITIAL STUDY/MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION AND THE
COMMENTS RECEIVED, THAT THERE IS NO SUBSTANTIAL EVIDENCE THAT THE
IRVINE LAKE PIPELINE NORTH CONVERSION PROJECT WILL HAVE A
SIGNIFICANT EFFECT ON THE ENVIRONMENT AND THAT THE MITIGATED
NEGATIVE DECLARATION REFLECTS IRWD'S INDEPENDENT JUDGMENT AND
ANALYSIS; ADOPT THE PROPOSED MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION FOR
THE IRVINE LAKE PIPELINE NORTH CONVERSION PROJECT AND THE
ASSOCIATED MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM; APPROVE
THE PROJECT; AND AUTHORIZE STAFF TO POST AND FILE A NOTICE OF
DETERMINATION, AND SUBMIT PAYMENT FOR THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT
OF FISH AND WILDLIFE SERVICE FILING FEE.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit “A” — Map of 2011 Irvine Lake Pipeline South Conversion

Exhibit “B” — Map of Proposed Irvine Lake Pipeline North Conversion Project

Exhibit “C” — Irvine Lake Pipeline North Conversion Project Final Initial Study/Mitigated
Negative Declaration



EXHIBIT "A™"

ILP- South Conversion (Exhibit “A™)

[RWD Potabla Water
IRWE Nonpotable Water
Untrested Watar

Jomt Agency Oparation

e * Converted a portion

s

e of untreated water
) system to recycled

UNINCORPORATED water system in 2011.

* Between Rattlesnake
and UC Regents
Cooperative Extension

Rattlesnake
Complex




EXHIBIT "B"

ILP North Conversion (Exhibit “B”)

TN A

2N
&




EXHIBIT "C"

Final Initial Study and Mitigated
Negative Declaration

Irvine Lake Pipeline North Conversion Project

Prepared for Irvine Ranch Water District
15600 Sand Canyon Avenue
Irvine, California 92618
Contact: Jo Ann Corey, MPA
(949) 453-5326

Prepared by BonTerra Psomas
3 Hutton Centre Drive, Suite 200
Santa Ana, California 92707
Contact: Jennifer Marks
(714) 751-7373

December 2015

C-1


Weghorst
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT "C"


Final Initial Study and Mitigated
Negative Declaration

Irvine Lake Pipeline North Conversion Project

Prepared for:

Irvine Ranch Water District
15600 Sand Canyon Avenue
Irvine, California 92618
Contact: Jo Ann Corey, MPA
(949) 453-5326

Prepared by:

BonTerra Psomas
3 Hutton Centre, Suite 200
Santa Ana, California 92707
Contact: Jennifer Marks
(714) 751-7373

December 2015

C-2



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section Page
Y= Tox (o o e L0 T 011 0 To U o] £ o o TS 1-1
1.1 Purpose of the Initial Study..............ooooiii 1-1

1.2 Summary of FINAINGS.......cooiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 1-1

1.3 ProjeCct APPrOVAl .......ccoiiiiiiiiieee e 1-1

1.4 Organization of the Initial Study............coeeiiiiiiiiii e 1-2

Section 2.0 Project Location and Environmental Setting.........cccccvvvviviiiiiiiiiiiiniiiininnn. 2-1
2.1 PrOJECt LOCALION ....ceiieiiiiiiiieeee ettt 2-1

2.2 Project Background ...........ccoooo i 2-1

2.3 EXIStiNg CONItIONS ..ot 2-2

2.3.1 Santiago Hills Zone C+ ReServoir Site ........cccvvveeeeeeeeniiiiiieeeenn. 2-2

2.3.2 Irvine Lake Pipeline North Pipeline Alignment.............ccccvvveee.n. 2-2

2.3.3  Orchard HillS .......ueei e 2-3

2.3.4 Rattlesnake COmMPIEX......uuuuuuuiiuiiiiieiessee e e 2-3

Section 3.0 ProjeCt DESCIIPLION ..coiiiiiiiiiiiieee et 3-1
3.1 Physical CharaCteriStiCS......ciiiiiiiiiiiiiir e e 3-1

3.1.1 Proposed FaCilitieS......cccoeviieeiiiiiiiii e e e e 3-1

3.2 Construction Activities and Project COmpoNents..........ccccceeevvvevvvvennenn. 3-2

3.3 PUINDOSE L. e 3-2

3.4 Discretionary ApPprovals..........cooooiiiiiiiii 3-3

Section 4.0 Environmental CheCKIiSt. ... 4-1
Section 5.0 Discussion of Environmental Checklist QUeStioNsS .........cccccvvvvvvvvviiiiiiiiiinnn. 5-1
l. AESTNELICS ... 5-1

Il. Agriculture and FOreSt RESOUICES ........ccuviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 5-5

Il T O 10 = 11 YU RERUP 5-6

\VA BiologiCal RESOUICES .......vuiiii i 5-16

V. CUIUIAl RESOUICES ....vviiiiiieiiiiiiiieiee ettt 5-24

VI. GeO0logy aNnd SOIIS......uueiiiiieiiiiie e 5-28

VII. GreENNOUSE GASES. ... uuuuiuuiiiiiiiiiiuiiiiutteitteaeeaaeeeaeeeaaeeeeeeeneeneneennennnnnnnnnnes 5-32

VIIl.  Hazards and Hazardous Materials ...........ccceevevieeiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e 5-36

IX. Hydrology and Water QUAalItY...........ooouuiiiiiiiiieiiiiiieeee e 5-39

X. Land Use and Planning .........cooooooiiiiiiiiieeeee e 5-42

XI. Mineral RESOUICES........ccoiiiiiieeeeee e 5-43

XIL. NOISE .. 5-44
R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx i Table of Contents



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

X, Population and HOUSING.........ooiieeiiiieiiiie e e e e e e eeneens 5-49

XIV.  PUDIIC SEIVICES ...vviiiiiiiiiiiii et 5-50

XV. = Tox == 11T ] o 5-50

XVI.  Transportation/TraffiC..........ccoeeii i e 5-50

XVII.  Utilities and Service SYStEMS ..........cooviiviiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, 5-52

XVII.  Mandatory Findings of SignifiCance...........cccccouiiiiiiiiienieiiiiiiiieeeeeeen 5-54

SeCtion 6.0  REPOI PrEPAIEIS ..oeiiiiiiiiiiieii ettt e ettt e e e e e e e e e e e nnneeeees 6-1

6.1 Irvine Ranch Water DiStriCt............oooiiiiiiiiieee 6-1

6.2 (@70 S]] 1= g £ 6-1

Y=o (o] o A I o= =T =T T o = 7-1

Section 8.0 Introduction to Responses to COMMENTS .........uvviiiiieeeiiiiiiiiiieeee e 8-1

Section 9.0  List 0f RESPONUENTS .....cciiiiiiii i e e e ee e e e e e eeees 9-1

Section 10.0 Responses to Environmental COMMENTS ..........cuvvvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinini. 10-1

TABLES

Table Page

1 California and Federal Ambient Air Quality Standards............ccccoovviiiiii 5-8

2 Criteria Pollutant Designations in the South Coast Air Basin.........ccccccevvveeevvieiiiiieneeenn, 5-9

3 SCAQMD Air Quality Significance Thresholds...............cccccceiiiiiiiiee, 5-11

4 Estimated Maximum Daily Construction Emissions (Ibs/day) ..........ccccceeeviiiiiiiiiinnnnnnn. 5-13

5 Localized Construction Pollutant Emissions — the ILP North Pipeline (Ibs/day)........... 5-14
6 Maximum Localized Construction Pollutant Emissions — Orchard Hills and

Rattlesnake Complex SiteS (IDS/AAY) ......cccuuviiiiiiieeee e 5-14

7 Cultural Resources Sites Within One-Half Mile of the Project Sites............cccceevveeeee. 5-25

8 Significant Faults in the Vicinity of the Proposed Reservoir Site.........ccccceevvvvvvvvienennnn. 5-29

9 Comparison of Worldwide Greenhouse Gas EMISSIONS ..........cccccccvvvvvvviiieiiieiiiecieee, 5-33

10 Estimated Annual Greenhouse Gas Emissions From Construction.................ceeee.. 5-34

11 Exterior Noise Standards in the City of Orange ..., 5-45

12 City of Irvine Noise Ordinance Standards for Zones 1 Through 4.............cccccvvvieen. 5-46

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx ii Table of Contents

C-4



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

EXHIBITS

Exhibit Follows Page
2-1 (g To o] g =TI o o3 L1 To] o USRS 2-1
2-2 (o Tor: | IV Tod o113V PSP PP PPTPPP TP 2-1
e B = = LI a0 (0T | =T o o 2-1
3-1 Proposed Santiago Hills Zone C+ RESEIVOIN........c.uuuiiiiii i 3-1
3-2 RAteSNAKE COMIPIEX ....iiiiieiiiiiiiteie et e e e e eeeeas 3-2
3-3 1O o =V (o I 11| ES 3N = Vo | 1 P 3-2
5-1 Site Photographs: Santiago Hills Zone C+ RESEIVOIN .........ccccvvvvviviiiiiieiieeiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee, 5-3
5-2 (@ (o] o= 1o I 11 E N = V|1 5-4
5-3  Site Photographs: Rattlesnake COMPIEX ...........eeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e 5-4
5-4a Farmland Resources: Santiago Hills Zone C+ Reservoir Site and ILP North

ATIGNMIENT Lot e e e e e e s et et e e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e r e eeeean 5-5
5-4b  Farmland Resources: Orchard Hills FaCIlity ...........ccoouviiiiiiiiiiee e 5-5
5-4c  Farmland Resources: Rattlesnake CompleX.........ccovviiiiiiiiii e e 5-5
o T B ol = o [ To o= T md= ST 0 UL o = 5-17
5-6a—b NCCP/HCP Reserve ClassifiCations ........cccooeeiieeiieiiieec e 5-17

APPENDICES

Appendices

A Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

B CalEEMod Calculations

C Biotechnical Report

D Cultural Resources Appendices (Confidential)

E Geotechnical Investigation

F EDR Hazardous Materials Database Reports

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx iii Table of Contents

C-5



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

This page intentionally left blank

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx iv Table of Contents

C-6



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

SECTION 1.0 INTRODUCTION

11 PURPOSE OF THE INITIAL STUDY

The purpose of this Initial Study (IS) is to (1) describe the proposed Irvine Lake Pipeline (ILP)
North Conversion Project (hereinafter referred to as the “Project”), which would occur in the cities
of Orange and Irvine and (2) provide an evaluation of potential environmental effects associated
with the Project’s construction and operation. This IS has been prepared pursuant to the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), as amended (Public Resources Code 821000 et seq.) and in
accordance with the State CEQA Guidelines (California Code of Regulations 815000 et seq.).

Pursuant to Section 15367 of the State CEQA Guidelines, Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD) is
the lead agency for the Project. The lead agency is the public agency that has the principal
responsibility for carrying out or approving a project that may have a significant effect on the
environment. IRWD, as the lead agency, has the authority for Project approval and certification
of the accompanying environmental documentation.

The purpose of this document is to evaluate the conversion of a segment of the ILP from untreated
water to recycled water and all associated improvements to IRWD water distribution system
required to accommodate this conversion.

1.2 SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

Based on the environmental checklist form prepared for the Project (Section 4) and supporting
environmental analysis (Section 5), the proposed Project would have no impact or less than
significant impacts in the following environmental areas: agriculture and forest land resources,
aesthetics, air quality, greenhouse gases, hazards and hazardous materials, hydrology and water
quality, land use, mineral resources, public services, recreation, traffic, utilities and services
systems. The proposed Project has the potential to have significant impacts on the following
topics unless the recommended mitigation measures described herein are incorporated into the
Project: biological resources, cultural resources, geology and soils, and noise.

According to the State CEQA Guidelines, it is appropriate to prepare a Mitigated Negative
Declaration (MND) for the proposed Project because, after incorporation of the recommended
mitigation measures, potentially significant environmental impacts would be eliminated or reduced
to a level considered less than significant.

1.3 PROJECT APPROVAL

This ISIMND has been submitted to potentially affected agencies and individuals. Notices of the
availability of the IS/IMND for review and comment as well as the environmental documentation
are available on IRWD’s website (http://www.irwd.com) for review.

A 30-day public review period has been established for the IS/MND. The review period has been
established in accordance with Section 15073 of the State CEQA Guidelines. During review of
the IS/MND, affected public agencies and the interested public should focus on the document’s
adequacy in identifying and analyzing the potential environmental impacts and the ways in which
the potentially significant effects of the Project area can be avoided or mitigated. Comments on

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 1-1 Introduction

C-7



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

the IS/MND and the analysis contained herein must be received by 5:00 p.m., December 3, 2015
and should be addressed to:

Ms. Jo Ann Corey, MPA
Water Resources Department
Irvine Ranch Water District
15600 Sand Canyon Avenue
Irvine, CA 92618

Following receipt and evaluation of comments from agencies, organizations, and/or individuals,
IRWD will determine whether any substantial new environmental issues have been raised. If so,
further documentation—such as an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) or an expanded
ISIMND—may be required. If not, the Project and the environmental documentation are tentatively
scheduled to be submitted to the Board of Directors for consideration.

1.4

ORGANIZATION OF THE INITIAL STUDY

The IS/MND is organized into sections, as described below.

Section 1: Introduction. This section provides an introduction and overview of the
conclusions in the IS/MND.

Section 2: Project Location and Environmental Setting. This section provides a brief
description of the Project location, relevant background information, and a description of
the existing conditions of the Project site and vicinity.

Section 3: Project Description. This section provides a description of the proposed
Project, a statement of purpose and need, and necessary discretionary approvals.

Section 4: Environmental Checklist. The completed Environmental Checklist Form from
the State CEQA Guidelines provides an overview of the potential impacts that may or may
not result from Project implementation. The Environmental Checklist Form also includes
“mandatory findings of significance”, as required by CEQA.

Section 5: Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions. This section contains
an analysis of environmental impacts identified in the environmental checklist and
identifies standard conditions and regulations (SC) and mitigation measures (MM) that
have been recommended to eliminate any potentially significant effects or to reduce them
to a level considered less than significant.

Section 6: Report Preparers. This section lists the authors, including staff from IRWD,
who assisted in preparing and reviewing the IS/MND.

Section 7. References. This section identifies the references used to prepare
the IS/MND.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 1-2 Introduction

C-8



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

SECTION 2.0 PROJECT LOCATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING

2.1 PROJECT LOCATION

The proposed Project involves improvements and modifications to several IRWD facilities in the
cities of Orange and Irvine, as depicted on Exhibit 2-1, Regional Location. The Project sites, as
shown on Exhibit 2-2, Local Vicinity, and Exhibit 2-3 Aerial Photograph, include Santiago Hills
Zone C+ Reservoir site, the Orchard Hills Facility, the Rattlesnake Complex, and pipeline
construction in Santiago Canyon Road and Jamboree Road.

The proposed reservoir site is located on an approximate 2.7-acre portion of a 7.7-acre IRWD-
owned parcel (Assessor Parcel Number [APN] 545-011-03), located at 1802 East Santiago
Canyon Road in the City of Orange.

The Orchard Hills Facility is located at 10570% Woody Knoll in the City of Irvine, north of the
Furrow Road and Rembrandt Street intersection and within the City of Irvine’s Planning Area 1
(Orchard Hills).

The Rattlesnake Complex is located north of Portola Parkway between Jeffrey Road and Culver
Drive in the City of Irvine. The Rattlesnake Complex is situated to the north of Orange County
Fire Authority (OCFA) Station No. 55 and west of the Rattlesnake Reservoir.

The proposed Project also includes conversion of the ILP North Alignment. Proposed
improvements to this pipeline would extend along East Santiago Canyon Road between the
proposed Santiago Hills Zone C+ Reservoir (referred to hereinafter as the “proposed reservoir”)
to the intersection of East Santiago Canyon Road and Jamboree Road, along Jamboree Road
from the Baker Raw Water Pump Station (RWPS) northerly to the intersection with Santiago
Canyon Road, and northwest along Santiago Canyon Road from the intersection with Jamboree
Road to Holy Sepulcher Cemetery.

2.2 PROJECT BACKGROUND

IRWD’s non-potable water system in the vicinity of the Project sites is made up of two main water
supply systems: the recycled water system and the untreated water system. The recycled water
supply facilities include the Orchard Hills Zone A-C booster pump station (BPS) and the
Northwood Zone A-B BPS, and the untreated water supply facilities, which include Irvine Lake,
the ILP, and the Santiago Aqueduct Commission (SAC) Pipeline (also known as the Baker
Pipeline) to the Baker RWPS.

The recycled water system receives supply from the Michelson Water Recycling Plant (MWRP),
which is distributed, via an extensive recycled water distribution system, throughout IRWD's
service area to meet irrigation and industrial application demands. To meet peak demand periods,
this system is supplemented by imported Metropolitan Water District (MWD) untreated water,
native runoff, groundwater, and treated effluent from the Los Alisos Water Recycling Plant
(LAWRP).

The untreated water system consists of two sub-systems: the ILP and the Baker Pipeline. The
untreated water system receives MWD untreated water as the primary water source. The ILP is
connected to Irvine Lake for its supply source and the imported MWD untreated water is
supplemented with native storm runoff water.

When initially constructed, the ILP extended from Irvine Lake to the former Lambert Reservoir. In
2011, IRWD converted the southern section of the ILP extending from the Rattlesnake Complex

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 2-1 Project Location and Environmental Setting

C-9



Santiago Hills C+ Reservoir
and ILP North Alignment

Orchard Hills Facility

Rattlesnake Complex

24D

D:\Projects\3IRW\0007\MXD\MND\ex_RL.mxd

Regional Location Exhibit 2-1
ILP North Conversion Project
O Lerilerra

PSOMAS

s (Rev: 7-15-2015 JAZ) R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\Graphics\MND\ex2-1_RL.pdf




D:\Projects\3IRW\0007\MXD\WMND\ex_LV.mxd

Chapman Ave

) ILP North Alignment

Santiago
Canyon College

D Project Boundaries

N

Santiago Hills C+ Reservoir Site

Peters

Canyon
Reservoir
Irvine Lake
>
Q
>N
gb
o
N
K
> Orchard Hills Facility
@
Q
2
@]
<
&
@
8
qu
fzfg
°Q~
N
N
o
/‘,O/Q
)
tu,
» v Rattl k
Q attlesnake
AQ} Reservoir
N
®
> Rattlesnake Complex |
9 e
8,
Yo
Vicinity Map Exhibit 2-2
ILP North Conversion Project
N
.50/176/}“
w<<:} E 4,000 2,000 0 4,000 —_—-!’
v Feet PSOMAS

q
=
=

(Rev: 7-15-2015 JAZ) R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\Graphics\MND\ex2-2_LV.pdf




D:\Projects\3IRW\0007\MXD\MND\ex_Aerial. mxd

Santiago Canyon Rd

Cemetery of the
Holy Sepulcher

D Project Boundaries

ILP North Alignment

© Santiago
0(\?‘ Canyon College
‘\@Q& Santiago Hills C+ Reservoir Site
19 /
Peters
Canyon
Reservoir
Irvine Lake
S
Q/;oé
&
(]
S,
%,
%
ol Ror
<
Q
A;Q
g @
s
&
& Orchard Hills Facility
N
> %
(o)
‘<\Q~ 6«0
&
@ /'76,
,'&\(\
n,
”7@& Rattlesnake
1, Reservoir
(o4 Qk
&
Q
N
00
Rattlesnake Complex
Aerial Source: Aerials Express 2009 & Google March 2015
Aerial Photograph Exhibit 2-3
ILP North Conversion Project
N
50/176/}“
w<<:} E 4,000 2,000 0 4,000 —_—-ﬁ
Feet PSOMAS
s r\ 1 ’) (Rev: 7-15-2015 JAZ) R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\Graphics\MND\ex2-3_Aerial.pdf
s L




ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

to the endpoint of the UC Regents Cooperative AG Extension property, from the untreated water
system to the recycled water system as a Zone C pipeline. This converted section of the ILP is
primarily supplied by the Orchard Hills Zone A-C BPS. The proposed Project involves the
conversion of the northern section of the ILP from the untreated water system to the recycled
water system. The Project portion of the ILP North is made up of three pipeline segments
including: 1) Segment A: one 42-inch pipeline provides for a direct connection from the existing
ILP to the proposed Zone C+ recycled water reservoir and a second 42-inch pipeline provides the
supply from the proposed Santiago Hills Zone C+ reservoir to the proposed Segment B recycled
water pipeline in Jamboree Road; 2) Segment B: one 42-inch Zone C+ recycled water pipeline
from the intersection of Jamboree and Chapman southerly to the Baker Raw Water Pump Station
providing a direct connection to the converted ILP recycled water pipeline; and 3) Segment C: 20-
inch and 10-inch Zone C+ recycled water pipelines extending northerly from the intersection of
Jamboree and Chapman along Santiago to provide to the Irvine Regional Park, Santiago Canyon
College, and the Holy Sepulcher Cemetery.

2.3 EXISTING CONDITIONS

Exhibit 2-3, Aerial Photograph, illustrates the location of each of the four proposed Project
components.

2.3.1 SANTIAGO HILLS ZONE C+ RESERVOIR SITE

As discussed previously, the proposed reservoir site is located on an approximate 7.7-acre IRWD-
owned parcel. The Project site is elevated from East Santiago Canyon Road and is located on a
graded ridge. Approximately five acres of this parcel are currently occupied by the existing six-
million-gallon (MG), buried Santiago Hills Zone 5 Domestic Water Reservoir (Zone 5 reservoir),
the Santiago Hills Pumping Station Reservoir Management System, and a paved access road
vehicle turn-around and parking area. One single-story building and two small concrete structures
exist on the Project site; these structures house components of the pumping station and the
Reservoir Management System and provide limited storage space. The remainder of the site
exists as an undeveloped area with limited natural vegetation that slopes to the southeast.

Drainage flows from the Zone 5 reservoir and the access road are directed into a concrete-lined
V-ditch on the southerly side of the access road, and then conveyed off site by the V-ditch through
a drainage easement westerly of the access road. Drainage from the pump station parking area
is directed along the lower portion of the access road to a curb and gutter that discharges just
outside the access gate into a drainage course that flows westerly from the site. The proposed
reservoir will be located in an undeveloped area of the City of Orange. The proposed reservoir
would be constructed on a ridge that is approximately 700-feet in elevation and designated as
Open Space (City of Orange 2010). The areas proximate to the proposed reservoir, which are
also undeveloped, are designated as Low Density Residential. On-site vegetation is minimal and
limited to small section of coastal sage plants.

2.3.2 IRVINE LAKE PIPELINE NORTH PIPELINE ALIGNMENT

The proposed Project transmission main alignments are located within the roadway rights-of-way
of East Santiago Canyon Road and Jamboree Road. Along the proposed alignments, East
Santiago Canyon Road transitions from a four-lane roadway to a six-lane, and Jamboree Road
exists as a six-lane roadway. Surrounding land uses include Open Space Park, Low Density
Residential, Medium Density Residential, and General Commercial and Public Facility zones;
development includes residential and commercial development, park and open space, and
Santiago Canyon College.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 2-2 Project Location and Environmental Setting

C-13



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

2.3.3 ORCHARD HILLS

The Orchard Hills Facility is located in an undeveloped area in the City of Irvine and is designated
for residential development. The Project site exists as an asphalt-paved area with a variety of
aboveground equipment, including two 14-inch strainers, flow meters, a flow control valve, and
electrical equipment. As noted, this equipment is located above ground and, with the exception
of four electrical boxes, are within two connected chain-link fenced areas. Two light standards
and an antenna are also located on the Project site. Outside the fenced area, the Project site
exists as an asphalt-paved area suitable for vehicle parking. An agricultural booster pump station
that serves the local orchards and owned by The Irvine Company is located immediately adjacent
to the IRWD facility. Land to the northeast of the facility is used as a dirt road and vehicle turn-
around area associated with the adjacent agricultural uses. Avocado orchards are located to the
south, east, and northeast, and undeveloped land is located to the west. Additionally, various
concrete-lined drainage features exist surrounding the Orchard Hills Facility.

2.3.4 RATTLESNAKE COMPLEX

The Rattlesnake Complex is a fully developed site and includes a 5-MG, patrtially buried reservoir
and its associated pump stations and pipelines; a chlorination building and dechlorination building;
strainers; and pressure reducing valves. Two additional pump stations (Zone A—C Pump Station
and Zone 3-5 Pump Station Building) are housed in a separate building and are contained behind
an existing block wall. The areas immediately surrounding these facilities are asphalt-paved, and
ornamental trees, which obscure the structures when viewed from Portola Parkway and
surrounding areas, are located along the perimeter of the Complex. A single-family house and
garage (designated as the caretaker's residence) is also located east of the reservoir. The
Rattlesnake Complex site is designated in the General Plan as “Public Facilities” and surrounding
areas are designated in the General Plan for residential development. The OCFA Fire Station No.
55, located at 4955 Portola Parkway, is also located approximately 250 feet south of the
Rattlesnake Complex. The residential Northwood Pointe Community is located southwest of
Portola Parkway, across from the Rattlesnake Complex.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 2-3 Project Location and Environmental Setting

C-14



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

This page intentionally left blank

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 2-4 Project Location and Environmental Setting

C-15



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

SECTION 3.0 PROJECT DESCRIPTION

3.1 PHYSICAL CHARACTERISTICS

The proposed Project involves converting the northern section of the ILP from an untreated water
system to a recycled water system to provide recycled water to existing customers in IRWD’s
North Tustin service area along Jamboree Road and in the Orchard Hills permanent agricultural
uses, and extend the recycled water system to new customers including Santiago Canyon College
the Irvine Park, the Cemetery of the Holy Sepulcher, Improvement District (ID) 252, and the future
Santiago Hills Il residential development. As part of this effort, a portion of the ILP from the Baker
RWPS near the Peters Canyon Reservoir to the Rattlesnake Reservoir Complex would be
converted to a recycled water line. The ILP North Conversion Project includes capacity for both
existing and future planned untreated water demands. Individual components of the proposed
Project are described in detail below.

3.1.1 PROPOSED FACILITIES

Santiago Hills Zone C+ Reservoir

The Project proposes to construct a 2.4-MG recycled water reservoir adjacent to IRWD’s Zone 5
domestic water reservoir, as shown on Exhibit 3-1, Proposed Santiago Hills Zone C+ Reservoir.
The proposed reservoir would be a partially buried circular tank and would have a high water level
of 700 feet. Proposed reservoir construction and operation would also require the following
improvements:

e Tank Inlet Pipeline. A 42-inch untreated water transmission main would be constructed
by IRWD or another party along East Santiago Canyon Road from the existing 54-inch
ILP, near the intersection of Jamboree Road and Chapman Avenue/Santiago Canyon
Road, to the proposed reservoir, as shown on Exhibit 3-1.

e Tank Outlet Pipeline. A 42-inch recycled water transmission main would be constructed
by IRWD or another party along East Santiago Canyon Road from the proposed reservoir
to the existing 54-inch ILP south of the suction piping to the Baker RWPS.

e Strainer Facility. As part of the Project, two 30-inch automatic strainers would be installed
to strain water flow from the ILP prior to discharging to the proposed reservoir. The project
may include a proposed Strainer Backwash Recovery System that would consist of
backwash pumps, a settling basin, a settled water wet well, backwash recovery pumps,
piping, and a flow meter, and related appurtenances and equipment, or the Project may
discharge into a future sewer line to be constructed in the Project area as part of a
separate project (and subject to separate environmental analysis independent of this
Project).

e Outlet Valve and Vault. Access to the outlet valve would be provided by a vault with
equipment for access.

e Ring Drain. Drainage from the proposed reservoir ring drain would discharge into a below
grade structure and either be recycled back into the recycled water reservoir or discharged
to the storm drain. The ring drain includes piping, below ground structure, pumps, and
associate appurtenances and equipment.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 3-1 Project Description

C-16



D:\Projects\3IRW\0007\MXD\MND\ex_ProposedSantiagoHillsZoneCReservoir.mxd

Proposed Strainer and
Flow Control Facilities

Proposed Air Gap

Proposed Zone C+ Reservoir

Aerial Source: Google March 2015

Proposed Santiago Hills Zone C+ Reservoir Exhibit 3-1

ILP North Conversion Project

o Loriferra

20 60 0 120
Feet PSOMAS

s r'\ (qu:'EFS—ZMS JAZ) R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\Graphics\MND\ex3-1_ProposedSantiagoHillsZone CReservoir.pdf
= I

A7




ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

Rattlesnake Complex Improvements

As part of the proposed Project, the existing Orchard Hills Zone A—C booster pump station,
located in the Rattlesnake Complex (refer to Exhibit 3-2, Rattlesnake Complex), would be
converted to a Zone A—C+ booster pump station, which would allow for pumping of recycled water
to both Zone C and Zone C+. Due to the existing and proposed hydraulics, the conversion would
only require minor modifications to the actual booster pump station.

Orchard Hills Facility Improvements

The Orchard Hills Facility (refer to Exhibit 3-3, Orchard Hills Facility) would be reconfigured to
serve as a back-up source of recycled water for Zone C customers. The Project would include
painting modified aboveground facilities and repairing the surrounding asphalt pavement that
might be damaged during construction.

Zone C+ Distribution Pipelines/ILP North Alignment

As part of the Project, a 20-inch pipeline would be constructed by IRWD or another party along
Jamboree Road from its intersection with Chapman Avenue/Santiago Canyon Road northward to
Santiago Canyon Road and a 10-inch pipeline would be constructed along Santiago Canyon
Road from Jamboree Road westward to the cemetery of the Holy Sepulcher.

Other Project-Related Improvements

As part of the Project, earthwork associated with the proposed reservoir has been designed to
minimize impacts to the existing Zone 5 reservoir. If determined necessary, an earthen berm, with
a maximum height of 24 feet, may be located between the permanent access road/paved area
and Santiago Canyon Road; a strategically placed earthen berm may be incorporated as part of
the preliminary grading plans presented in the preliminary design report in order to screen site
improvements from public view.

At the proposed reservoir site, two retaining walls of varying height will be required due to
elevation differences between the existing Zone 5 reservoir and the proposed reservoir.

3.2 CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES AND PROJECT COMPONENTS

Construction at the Project sites is anticipated to begin in Mid-2016 and last approximately two
years. It is anticipated that construction would begin at the Santiago Hills site and then follow at
the Rattlesnake Complex and the Orchard Hills Facility.

There are multiple components planned for construction of the pipeline. These components
include the pipeline from the proposed reservoir to Baker RWPS, the inlet pipeline from ILP to the
proposed reservoir, the pipeline from the intersection of Jamboree Road and Chapman Avenue
to Irvine Regional Park, and the pipeline from the intersection of Jamboree Road and East
Santiago Canyon Road to Cemetery of the Holy Sepulcher. Pipeline construction is anticipated to
begin in Mid-2016 and is expected to last approximately 15 months.

3.3 PURPOSE

The objective of the ILP North Conversion Project is: Construct recycled water conveyance
pipelines and modify existing pipelines in East Santiago Canyon Road, Jamboree Road, and the
distribution pipelines to supply recycled water to existing IRWD customers in the North Tustin
service area along Jamboree Road, the Orchard Hills permanent agricultural uses, and extend

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 3-2 Project Description

C-18



D:\Projects\3IRW\0007\MXD\MND\ex_RattlesnakeComplex.mxd

Existing Dechlorination
and Chlorination Buildings

Existing Zone A-B
Booster Pump Station

"

Existing Zone A
North Reservoir

Remove Existing
ILP Strainers

Existing Rattlesnake
Pump Station

Existing A-C Booster Pump
Station; Upgrade Pumps and S
Install New Surge Tank A s

Construction New
Zone C Pipeline

°
%
7.
S

%

Aerial Source: Google March 2015

Rattlesnake Complex

Exhibit 3-2

ILP North Conversion Project

w<<> E 120 60 0 120

Feet

10
-1 J

Beviterra

PSOMAS

(Rev: 8-28-2015 JAZ) R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\Graphics\MND\ex3-2_RattlesnakeComplex.pdf




D:\Projects\3IRW\0007\MXD\WMND\ex_OrchardHillsFacility. mxd

Existing Agricultural
Booster Pump Station

Existing Orchard
Hills Strainers

Aerial Source: Google March 2015

Orchard Hills Facility

Exhibit 3-3

ILP North Conversion Project

N

s

40

20

Feet

CcC-20
Y

Beviterra

PSOMAS

(Rev: 8-25-2015 JAZ) R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\Graphics\MND\ex3-3_OrchardHillsFacility.pdf

A7




ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

the recycled water system to new customers including Santiago Canyon College, the Cemetery
of the Holy Sepulcher, Improvement District 252, Irvine Park, and the future Santiago Hills Il
residential development.

In order to accomplish this, the Project would also construct the Santiago Hills Zone C+ Reservoir
and its ancillary facilities and modify the existing facilities at the Rattlesnake Complex to facilitate
delivery of recycled water to Santiago Hills Zone C+.

3.4 DISCRETIONARY APPROVALS

This IS/MND is intended to serve as the primary CEQA environmental document for all actions

associated with the proposed ILP North Conversion Project, including all discretionary approvals

requested or required to implement the Project. In addition, this is the primary reference document

for the formulation and implementation of a mitigation monitoring program for the proposed

Project.

The following construction easements are anticipated to be required during Project construction:
e City of Orange. Encroachment/Hauling Permits

e Metropolitan Water District of Southern California. @ Temporary Construction
Easements

e OC Parks. Encroachment Permit and Permanent Easements
e California Division of Drinking Water. Notification and Approval

e Regional Water Quality Control Board. Construction Activities, Stormwater, and
General Permit.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 3-3 Project Description

C-21



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

This page intentionally left blank

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 3-4 Project Description

C-22



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

SECTION 4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST

ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED

The environmental factors checked below would be potentially affected by this Project, involving
at least one impact that is a “Potentially Significant Impact” as indicated by the checklist on the
following pages.

[] Aesthetics [] Agriculture Resources ] Air Quality

X Biological Resources X Cultural Resources X Geology/Soils

[] Greenhouse Gas Emissions [] Hazards & Hazardous [] Hydrology/Water
Materials Quality

] Land Use/Planning [ ] Mineral Resources XI Noise

[] Population/Housing [] Public Services [l Recreation

[] Transportation/Traffic ] Utilities/Service Systems ] Mandatory Findings of

Significance

DETERMINATION: (To be completed by the Lead Agency.)

On the basis of this initial evaluation:

[] | find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, and a
NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.

X | find that although the proposed Project could have a significant effect on the environment, there will
not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the Project have been made by or agreed
to be the Project proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.

[] | find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required.

[] | find that the proposed project MAY have a “potentially significant impact” or “potentially significant
unless mitigated” impact on the environment, but at least one effect 1) has been adequately analyzed
in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and 2) has been addressed by mitigation
measures based on the earlier analysis as described on attached sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must analyze only the effects that remain to be addressed.

[] | find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, because
al potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed adequately in an earlier EIR or NEGATIVE
DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards, and (b) have been avoided or mitigated pursuant
to that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or mitigation measures that are
imposed upon the proposed project, nothing further is required.

Signature Date

Jo Ann Corey Irvine Ranch Water District

Printed Name For

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 4-1 Environmental Checklist

C-23



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7

8)

9)

A brief explanation is required for all answers except “No Impact” answers that are adequately
supported by the information sources a lead agency cites in the parentheses following each
guestion. A “No Impact” answer is adequately supported if the referenced information sources show
that the impact simply does not apply to projects like the one involved (e.g., the project falls outside
a fault rupture zone). A “No Impact” answer should be explained where it is based on project-
specific factors as well as general standards (e.g., the project will not expose sensitive receptors
to pollutants, based on a project-specific screening analysis).

All answers must take account of the whole action involved, including off-site as well as on-site,
cumulative as well as project-level, indirect as well as direct, and construction as well as operational
impacts.

Once the lead agency has determined that a particular physical impact may occur, then the
checklist answers must indicate whether the impact is potentially significant, less than significant
with mitigation, or less than significant. “Potentially Significant Impact” is appropriate if there is
substantial evidence that an effect may be significant. If there are one or more “Potentially
Significant Impact” entries when the determination is made, an EIR is required.

“Negative Declaration: Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated” applies where the
incorporation of mitigation measures has reduced an effect from “Potentially Significant Impact” to
a “Less than Significant Impact.” The lead agency must describe the mitigation measures, and
briefly explain how they reduce the effect to a less than significant level (mitigation measures from
“Earlier Analysis,” as described in (5) below, may be cross-referenced).

Earlier analyses may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA process,
an effect has been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative declaration. Section 15063
(c)(3)(D). In this case, a brief discussion should identify the following:

a) Earlier Analysis Used. Identify and state where they are available for review.

b) Impacts Adequately Addressed. Identify which effects from the above checklist were within the
scope of and adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal
standards, and state whether such effects were addressed by mitigation measures based on
the earlier analysis.

c) Mitigation Measures. For effects that are “Less than Significant with Mitigation Measures
Incorporated,” describe the mitigation measures which were incorporated or refined from the
earlier document and the extent to which they address site-specific conditions for the project.

Lead agencies are encouraged to incorporate into the checklist references to information sources
for potential impacts (e.g., general plans, zoning ordinances). Reference to a previously prepared
or outside document should, where appropriate, include a reference to the page or pages where
the statement is substantiated.

Supporting Information Sources: A source list should be attached, and other sources used or
individuals contacted should be cited in the discussion.

This is only a suggested form, and lead agencies are free to use different formats; however, lead
agencies should normally address the questions from this checklist that are relevant to a project’s
environmental effects in whatever format is selected.

The explanation of each issue should identify:

a) the significance criteria or threshold, if any, used to evaluate each question; and

b) the mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the impact to less than significance.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 4-2 Environmental Checklist

C-24



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

This section includes the completed Environmental Checklist Form. The checklist form is used to
assist in evaluating the potential environmental impacts of the proposed Project. The
Environmental Checklist Form identifies potential Project effects as follows: (1) Potentially
Significant Impact; (2) Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated; (3) Less Than
Significant Impact; and, (4) No Impact. Substantiation and clarification for each checklist response
is provided in Section 5.0, Environmental Evaluation. Included in each discussion are mitigation
measures, as appropriate, that are recommended for implementation as part of the proposed
Project.

Less Than
Significant
ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES Potentially With Less Than
X K Significant Mitigation Significant No
(See attachments for information sources) Impact Incorporated Impact Impact
l. AESTHETICS. Would the project:
a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista? ] ] ] X
b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, ] ] X ]
but not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and
historic buildings within a state scenic highway?
c) Substantially degrade the existing visual character ] ] X ]
or quality of the site and its surroundings?
d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare ] ] = ]
which would adversely affect day or nighttime views
in the area?

II.  AGRICULTURE AND FOREST RESOURCES. In determining whether impacts to agricultural
resources are significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to the California Agricultural
Land Evaluation and Site Assessment Model (1997) prepared by the California Dept. of Conservation
as an optional model to use in assessing impacts on agriculture and farmland. In determining whether
impacts to forest resources, including timberland, are significant environmental effects, lead agencies
may refer to information compiled by the California Department of forestry and Fire Protection
regarding the State’s inventory of forest land, including the Forest and Range Assessment Project
and the Forest Legacy Assessment project; and forest carbon measurement methodology provided
in Forest Protocols adopted by the California Air Resources Board. Would the project:

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or ] ] ] X
Farmland of Statewide importance (Farmland), as
shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the
Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the
California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural

use?

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a L] L] L] X
Williamson Act contract?

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning ] ] ] X

of, forest land (as defined in Public Resources Code
section 12220[g]), timberland (as defined by Public
Resources Code section 4526), or timberland zoned
Timberland Production (as defined by Government
Code section 51104[g])?

d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of ] ] ] D=
forest land to non-forest use?
e) Involve other changes in the existing environment L] L] L] X

which, due to their location or nature, could result in
conversion of Farmland, to nonagricultural use or
conversion of forest land to non-forest use?

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 4-3 Environmental Checklist

C-25




ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

Less Than
Significant
ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES Potentially With Less Than
i K Significant Mitigation Significant No
(See attachments for information sources) Impact Incorporated Impact Impact

lll.  AIR QUALITY. Where available, the significance criteria established by the applicable air quality
management or air pollution control district may be relied upon to make the following determinations.
Would the project:

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the ] ] ] X
applicable air quality plan?

b) Violate any air quality standard or contribute ] ] X ]
substantially to an existing or projected air quality
violation?

c) Resultin a cumulatively considerable net increase of ] ] X ]

any criteria pollutant for which the project region is
non-attainment under an applicable federal or state
ambient air quality standard (including releasing
emissions which exceed quantitative thresholds for
0zone precursors)?

d) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant ] ] X ]
concentrations?
e) Create objectionable odors affecting a substantial ] ] = ]

number of people?

IV. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES. Would the project:

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or ] X ] ]
through habitat modifications, on any species
identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status
species in local or regional plans, policies, or
regulations, or by the California Department of Fish
and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian ] X ] ]
habitat or other sensitive natural community
identified in local or regional plans, policies,
regulations or by the California Department of Fish
and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on federally ] ] ] D=
protected wetlands as defined by Section 404 of the
Clean Water Act (including, but not limited to, marsh,
vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal,
filling, hydrological interruption, or other means?

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any ] ] X ]
native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or
with established native resident or migratory wildlife
corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife nursery
sites?

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances ] = ] ]
protecting biological resources, such as a tree
preservation policy or ordinances?

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat ] L] L] X
Conservation Plan, Natural Community
Conservation Plan, or other approved local,
regional, or state habitat conservation plan?

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 4-4 Environmental Checklist

C-26




ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES
(See attachments for information sources)

Potentially
Significant
Impact

Less Than
Significant
With
Mitigation
Incorporated

Less Than
Significant No
Impact Impact

CULTURAL RESOURCES. Would the project:

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the
significance of a historical resource as defined in
§15064.5?

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the
significance of an archaeological resource pursuant
to §15064.5?

c) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique
paleontological resource or site or unique geologic
feature?

d) Disturb any human remains, including those interred
outside of formal cemeteries?

[

[

[

X

[ X

L] L]

VI.

GEOLOGY AND SOILS. Would the project:

a) Expose people or structures to potential substantial
adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or
death involving:

i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as
delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo
Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the
State Geologist for the area or based on other
substantial evidence of a known fault? Refer to
Division of Mines and Geology Special
Publication 42.

i)  Strong seismic ground shaking?

iiiy Seismic-related ground failure, including
liquefaction?

iv) Landslides?

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of
topsoil?

c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable,
or that would become unstable as a result of the
project, and potentially result in on- or off-site
landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, liquefaction
or collapse?

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-
1-B of the Uniform Building Code (1994), creating
substantial risks to life or property?

e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the
use of septic tanks or alternative waste water
disposal systems where sewers are not available for
the disposal of waste water?

O 0o og

X XX OKX

O OO0 XO
O 0o og

VII.

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS. Would the project:

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly
or indirectly, That may have a significant impact on
the environment?

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation

adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions
of greenhouse gases?

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 4-5

C-27

Environmental Checklist




ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

Less Than
Significant
ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES Potentially With Less Than
i K Significant Mitigation Significant No
(See attachments for information sources) Impact Incorporated Impact Impact
VIIl. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. Would the project:
a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the ] ] X ]

environment through the routine transport, use, or
disposal of hazardous materials?

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the ] ] = ]
environment through reasonably foreseeable upset
and accident conditions involving the release of
hazardous materials into the environment?

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or ] ] X ]
acutely hazardous materials, substances, or waste
within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed
school?

d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of ] ] ] X
hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to
Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result,
would it create a significant hazard to the public or
the environment?

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan ] ] ] X
or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within
two miles of a public airport or public use airport,
would the project result in a safety hazard for people
residing or working in the project area?

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, ] ] ] X
would the project result in a safety hazard for people
residing or working in the project area?

g) Impair implementation of or physically interfere with ] ] ] =
an adopted emergency response plan or emergency
evacuation plan?

h) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of ] ] = ]
loss, injury or death involving wildland fires,
including where wildlands are adjacent to urbanized
areas or where residences are intermixed with

wildlands?
IX. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY. Would the project:
a) Violate any water quality standards or waste ] ] X ]
discharge requirements?
b) Substantially deplete groundwater supplies or ] ] ] =

interfere substantially with groundwater recharge
such that there would be a net deficit in aquifer
volume or a lowering of the local groundwater table
level (e.g. the production rate of pre-existing nearby
wells would drop to a level which would not support
existing land uses or planned uses for which permits
have been granted)?

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of L] L] X ]
the site or area, including through the alteration of
the course of a stream or river, in a manner which
would result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or
off- site?

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 4-6 Environmental Checklist

C-28




ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

Less Than
Significant
ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES Potentially With Less Than
i K Significant Mitigation Significant No
(See attachments for information sources) Impact Incorporated Impact Impact
d) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of ] ] = ]
the site or area, including through the alteration of
the course of a stream or river, or substantially
increase the rate or amount of surface runoff in a
manner in which would result in flooding on- or off-
site?
e) Create or contribute runoff water which would ] ] X ]
exceed the capacity of existing or planned
stormwater drainage systems or provide substantial
additional sources of polluted runoff?
f) Otherwise substantially degrade water quality? ] ] X ]
g) Place housing within a 100-year flood hazard area ] ] ] X
as mapped on a federal Flood Hazard Boundary or
Flood Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard
delineation map?
h) Place within a 100-year flood hazard area structures ] ] ] D=
which would impede or redirect flood flows?
i) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of ] ] ] X

loss, injury or death involving flooding, including
flooding as a result of the failure of a levee or dam?

)) Inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow? ] ] ] X

X.  LAND USE AND PLANNING. Would the project:

a) Physically divide an established community?

b) Conflict with any applicable land use plan, policy, or
regulation of an agency with jurisdiction over the
project (including, but not limited to the general plan,
specific plan, local coastal program, or zoning
ordinance) adopted for the purpose of avoiding
or mitigating an environmental effect?

c) Conflict with any applicable habitat conservation ] ] ] D=
plan or natural community conservation plan?

10
10
10
XX

Xl.  MINERAL RESOURCES. Would the project:

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral ] ] ] X
resource that would be of value to the region and the
residents of the state?

b) Resultin the loss of availability of a locally-important ] ] ] X

mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local
general plan, specific plan or other land use plan?

XIl.  NOISE. Would the project result in:

a) Exposure of persons to or generation of noise levels ] X ] ]
in excess of standards established in the local
general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable
standards of other agencies?

b) Exposure of persons to or generation of excessive ] ] = ]
groundborne vibration or groundborne noise levels?
c) A substantial permanent increase in ambient noise ] ] X ]

levels in the project vicinity above levels existing
without the project?

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 4-7 Environmental Checklist

C-29




ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

Less Than
Significant
ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES Potentially With Less Than
i K Significant Mitigation Significant No
(See attachments for information sources) Impact Incorporated Impact Impact
d) A substantial temporary or periodic increase in ] ] X ]

ambient noise levels in the project vicinity above
levels existing without the project?

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan ] ] ] D=
or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within
two miles of a public airport or public use airport,
would the project expose people residing or working
in the project area to excessive noise levels?

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, ] ] ] X
would the project expose people residing or working
in the project area to excessive noise levels?

XIll. POPULATION AND HOUSING Would the project:

a) Induce substantial population growth in an area, ] ] ] X
either directly (for example, by proposing new
homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example,
through extension of roads or other infrastructure)?

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing housing, ] ] ] D=
necessitating the construction of replacement
housing elsewhere?

c) Displace substantial numbers of people, L] L] L] X
necessitating the construction of replacement
housing elsewhere?

XIV. PUBLIC SERVICES.

a) Would the project result in substantial adverse
physical impacts associated with the provision of
new or physically altered governmental facilities,
need for new or physically altered governmental
facilities, the construction of which could cause
significant environmental impacts, in order to
maintain acceptable service ratios, response times
or other performance objectives for any of the public
services:

Fire Protection?

Police Protection?
Schools?

Parks?

Other Public Facilities?

XV. RECREATION.

O oogdao
O oogdao
O oogdao
M XXXXKX

a) Would the project increase the use of existing
neighborhood and regional parks or other
recreational facilities such that substantial physical
deterioration of the facility would occur or be
accelerated?

b) Does the project include recreational facilities or ] ] ] D=
require the construction or expansion of recreational
facilities which might have an adverse physical
effect on the environment?

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 4-8 Environmental Checklist

C-30




ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

Less Than
Significant
ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES Potentially With Less Than
i K Significant Mitigation Significant No
(See attachments for information sources) Impact Incorporated Impact Impact

XVI. TRANSPORTATION/CIRCULATION. Would the project:

a) Conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance or policy ] ] = ]

establishing measures of effectiveness for the
performance of the circulation system, taking into
account all modes of transportation including mass
transit and non-motorized travel and relevant
components of the circulation system. Including but
not limited to intersections, streets, highways and
freeways, pedestrian and bicycle paths, and mass
transit?

b) Conflict with an applicable congestion management ] ] ] X
program, including, but not limited to level of service
standards and travel demand measures, or other
standards established by the county congestion
management agency for designated roads or
highways?
c) Result in a change in air traffic patterns, including ] ] ] D=
either an increase in traffic levels or a change in
location that results in substantial safety risks?

d) Substantially increase hazards due to a design ] ] ] X
feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous
intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g. farm
equipment)?

e) Result in inadequate emergency access?

f) Conflict with adopted policies, plans, or programs
regarding public transit, bicycle, or pedestrian
facilities, or otherwise decreased the performance or
safety of such facilities?

10
10
10
XX

XVII. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS. Would the project:

a) Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of the ] ] ] D=
applicable Regional Water Quality Control Board?

b) Require or result in the construction of new water or ] ] ] X
wastewater treatment facilities or expansion of
existing facilities, the construction of which could
cause significant environmental effects?

c) Require or result in the construction of new storm ] ] X ]
water drainage facilities or expansion of existing
facilities, the construction of which could cause
significant environmental effects — and/or would the
project include a new or retrofitted storm water
treatment control Best Management Practice (BMP),
(e.g. water quality treatment basin, constructed
treatment wetlands), the operation of which could
result in significant environmental effects (e.qg.
increased vectors and odors)?
d) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the ] ] ] X
project from existing entitlements and resources, or
are new or expanded entitlements needed?

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 4-9 Environmental Checklist

C-31




ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

Less Than
Significant
ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES Potentially With Less Than
i K Significant Mitigation Significant No
(See attachments for information sources) Impact Incorporated Impact Impact
e) Result in a determination by the wastewater ] ] ] X

treatment provider which serves or may serve the
project that it has adequate capacity to serve the
project's projected demand in addition to the
provider’'s existing commitments?
f) Be served by a landfill with sufficient permitted ] ] = ]
capacity to accommodate the project’'s solid waste
disposal needs?
g) Comply with federal, state, and local statutes and ] ] ] X
regulations related to solid waste?

XVIII.MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE.

a. Does the project have the potential to degrade the ] X ] ]

quality of the environment, substantially reduce the
habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or
wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining
levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal
community, reduce the number or restrict the range
of rare or endangered plants or animals, or eliminate
important examples of the major periods of
California history or prehistory?

b. Does the project have impacts that are individually ] X ] ]
limited, but cumulatively considerable?
("Cumulatively considerable” means that the
incremental effects of a project are considerable
when viewed in connection with the effects of past
projects, the effects of other current projects, and the
effects of probable future projects.)
c. Does the project have environmental effects which ] = ] ]
will cause substantial adverse effects on human
beings, either directly or indirectly?

Fish and Wildlife Determination

(Per Section 21089(b) of the Public Resources Code, all project applicants and public agencies
subject to the California Environmental Quality Act shall pay a Fish and Game filing fee for each
proposed project that would adversely affect wildlife resources.)*

Based on the responses contained in this Environmental Checklist, there is no evidence that the
project has a potential for a change that would adversely affect wildlife resources or the habitat
upon which the wildlife depends. Has the presumption of adverse effect set forth in

14 CCR 753.5 (d) been rebutted by substantial evidence?

__ Yes (Certificate of Fee Exemption and County Administrative fee required)
X_No (Pay fee)

*Note: Fish and Game Code Section 711.4(c)(2)(A) states that projects that are Categorically
Exempt from CEQA are also exempt from filing fee.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 4-10 Environmental Checklist

C-32




ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

SECTION 5.0 DISCUSSION OF ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST QUESTIONS

l. AESTHETICS
IMPACT ANALYSIS
Would the Project:
a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista?

No Impact. According to the City of Orange General Plan’s Natural Resources Element, an
important concern is the preservation of open spaces in the eastern part of the City, many of
which are located adjacent to creeks and reservoirs, in an effort to preserve scenic vistas. The
proposed reservoir site is located in an area of the City known for its many scenic resources.
Specifically the proposed reservoir site and immediately surrounding areas are largely
undeveloped and are characterized by rugged hillsides, rock outcroppings, and winding canyons.
As discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, the proposed reservoir would be constructed as
a partially buried tank on a currently vacant and undeveloped site that is located adjacent to the
existing Zone 5 reservoir and Santiago Hills Pump Station. As discussed in more detail in Section
X, Land Use and Planning, the proposed reservoir site is designated in the City of Orange General
Plan’'s Land Use Element as Open Space and is surrounded by undeveloped land that is
designated for Low Density Residential. The nearest existing residential development is
approximately /3 mile from the site. The proposed reservoir site and the adjacent, existing Zone
5 reservoir are located on the top of a ridge and surrounding land is lower in elevation than the
reservoir site. Due to the difference in elevation and the proposed reservoir's partially
subterranean design, views of the proposed reservoir would be limited and the proposed reservoir
would not block views of other scenic vistas in the area; therefore, there would not be an adverse
effect on a scenic vista at the Santiago Hills site. The ILP North Alignment component of the
proposed Project would result in temporary visual impacts related to short-term construction
activities; however, because impacts would be limited to the proposed alignment that is located
entirely within existing roadway rights-of-way and because the impacts would be short-term and
temporary in nature, this component of the Project would not have an adverse effect on a scenic
vista.

Although the City of Irvine General Plan’s Land Use Element does include policies directed at the
preservation of aesthetic character and value of natural landforms in the City, there are no scenic
vistas identified in the vicinity of the Orchard Hills Facility or the Rattlesnake Complex. Due to the
nature of the proposed modifications at these two sites and because no scenic vistas are identified
in the Project vicinity, no impacts would occur and no mitigation is required.

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, rock
outcroppings, and historic buildings within a State scenic highway?

Less Than Significant Impact. According to the California Department of Transportation’s
(Caltrans’) California Scenic Highway Mapping System, the proposed Santiago Hills Reservoir
would not be located within or near a State scenic highway (Caltrans 2013). However, as shown
on Figure NR-4 of the City of Orange General Plan, Santiago Canyon Road, in the vicinity of the
proposed reservoir site and along a portion of the ILP North Alignment, is designated as a
Viewscape Corridor (City of Orange 2010). According to the City of Orange General Plan’s Natural
Resources Element, motorists traveling along this roadway have views of scenic resources. East
Santiago Canyon Road is approximately 300 feet north of the proposed reservoir site. The ILP
North Alignment component of the proposed Project and the construction phase of the proposed

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

51
C-33



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

reservoir would temporarily expose motorists to construction activities; however, the resulting
degradation of the views from this designated Viewscape Corridor would be short-term and
temporary in nature and would not represent a significant impact.

Following the completion of construction, there would be no visual changes associated with the
ILP North Alignment component of the Project and the partially subterranean design of the
proposed reservoir combined with the difference in elevation between the roadway and the
proposed reservoir site would minimize views of the proposed reservoir from this roadway.
Therefore, long-term impacts to motorists traveling along East Santiago Canyon Road would be
less than significant.

The City of Orange also designates Newport Boulevard as a Viewscape Corridor (City of Orange
2010); however, the closest Project site is the ILP North Alignment, which is located approximately
0.65 mile to the east. Due to intervening topography, existing landforms and vegetation, and
residential development, the ILP North Alignment is not visible from Newport Boulevard.

According to Caltrans’ California Scenic Highway Mapping System, there are no officially
designated or eligible state scenic highways within or in proximity to the City of Irvine (Caltrans
2013). However, according to the City of Irvine General Plan, Culver Drive and Jeffrey Road are
both designated Scenic Highways of Urban Character and are each located approximately
0.75 mile from the Rattlesnake Complex (Irvine 2012). North of the intersection with Portola
Parkway, Jeffrey Road is also desighated as a Scenic Highway of Natural Character. As
discussed in Section 3.0, Project Description, proposed Project actions at these two Project sites
would be limited to modifications of on-site equipment and facilities; no new structures would be
constructed. Further, views of these two Project sites from both Culver Drive and Jeffrey Road
are obstructed by intervening topography and vegetation. Therefore, motorists traveling along
both Culver Drive and Jeffrey Road would be unaffected by the Project. No impacts would occur
and no mitigation is required.

c) Substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of the site and its
surroundings?

Less Than Significant Impact. The proposed Project is comprised of three separate elements:
the ILP North Alignment, the proposed reservoir, the Orchard Hills Facility, and the Rattlesnake
Reservaoir.

Irvine Lake Pipeline North Alignment

As discussed previously, the ILP North Alignment would be limited to existing roadway rights-of-
way and limited portions through existing OC Parks lands. The construction of the ILP North
Alignment would have a temporary impact on the existing visual character along the alignment
due to the anticipated construction activities associated with the Project. This impact would be
short-term and would be less significant. Because the Project involves a recycled water pipeline
to be located underground, no long-term visual impacts would occur.

Proposed Reservoir

As discussed in Section 2.0, Project Location, Environmental Setting and Existing Conditions, the
proposed reservoir site is located in an area characterized by hilly, undeveloped terrain and is
adjacent to the existing Zone 5 reservoir, the Santiago Hills Pumping Station, the Reservoir
Management System, and a paved access road. Views of the proposed reservoir site are limited
to passing motorists along East Santiago Canyon Road. Exhibit 5-1, Site Photographs: Santiago
Hills Zone C+ Reservoir, presents photographs that depict the existing visual character of the site

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-2 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-34



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

and the perspective from East Santiago Canyon Road. Descriptions of these photographs are as
follows:

e View 1-View of Proposed Reservoir Site, Looking East. This view depicts the existing
condition of the proposed reservoir site from the adjacent existing Zone 5 reservoir. As
shown, the site, which is in the immediate foreground, exists as undeveloped, relatively
flat land and is located atop a ridge overlooking an undeveloped canyon and East
Santiago Canyon Road. Views of foothills can be seen in the distance.

e View 2 — View from East Santiago Canyon Road, Looking Southwest. This view
depicts the view of the proposed reservoir site from East Santiago Canyon Road, which
is located north of the site, and is representative of the view of a motorist, bicyclist, or
pedestrian along East Santiago Canyon Road. As shown, a portion of the fenced off
storage area is visible. The existing Zone 5 reservoir, which is completely buried, is not
visible from this vantage point.

The proposed reservoir would be constructed as a partially buried tank. The northerly face of the
reservoir would be exposed approximately 5 feet from the surface of the paved area, and the
remaining portion of the reservoir would be partially exposed, ranging in height to less than 5 feet
above ground surface. Along a portion of the western side of the paved area, a retaining wall
would be constructed due to elevation differences between the existing Zone 5 reservoir and the
proposed reservoir. As discussed previously, the proposed reservoir site and the adjacent existing
Zone 5 reservoir are located on the top of a ridge and is at a higher elevation than nearby existing
land uses. Therefore, the difference in elevation combined with the subterranean design of the
reservoir would contribute toward screening the reservoir from surrounding areas. It should be
noted that, although the surrounding land is currently undeveloped, the reservoir is adjacent to
land that is zoned for low density residential development. However, this development is currently
in the design stages, therefore, the analysis of potential future impacts would be speculative.
Therefore, a less than significant impact would occur related to the visual character or quality of
the site or surrounding areas.

Orchard Hills Facility

The Orchard Hills Facility is surrounded by avocado orchards to the east and west, and a new
subdivision of the Orchard Hills community is currently under construction to the southwest. The
Facility is located on a paved surface and is surrounded by a chain-link fence. Exhibit 5-2, Orchard
Hills Facility, presents photographs that depict the existing visual character of the Orchard Hills
site and the surrounding area.

e View 1 — View of Orchard Hills Facility, Looking Southwest. This view shows the
existing equipment located on the Orchard Hills Facility site. As shown, the existing
equipment includes low-profile pipes, valves, and electrical boxes. Vacant and
undeveloped land and limited vegetation, including a eucalyptus tree windrow and some
avocado trees are visible in the background.

e View 2 — View of Orchard Hills Facility, Looking Northeast. This view shows another
perspective of the existing Orchard Hills Facility site. As shown in this photograph, a single
pole that holds an antenna is visible as the tallest piece of equipment on the site. The
existing Irvine Company agricultural booster pump station is also visible on the left edge
of the photograph. An avocado orchard is visible in the middle-ground, and foothills are
visible in the background. As shown, the existing Orchard Hills Facility does not obstruct
views of the foothills to the northeast.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-3 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-35



D:\Projects\3IRW\0007\Graphics\MND\ex_SP1.ai

View 1: View of Santiago Hills site looking east.

View 2: View from E. Santiago Canyon Road looking southwest.

Site Photographs: Santiago Hills Zone C+ Reservoir Exhibit 5-1

ILP North Conversion Project

O
W
»

Berterra

PSOMAS

(07/15/2015 JAZ) R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\Graphics\MND\ex5-1_SP.pdf




ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

As depicted in Exhibit 5-2, the Orchard Hills Facility is primarily surrounded by agricultural and
vacant, undeveloped land. The Project does not propose for the construction of new structures at
the site; rather, proposed Project actions would include the removal and modification of existing
equipment. Therefore, the visual appearance of the Orchard Hills Facility would remain largely
unchanged. No impact would occur related to the visual character or quality of the site or
surrounding areas.

Rattlesnake Complex

As discussed in Section 2.1, Project Location, the Rattlesnake Complex is located on the north
side of Portola Parkway in Irvine and is in the vicinity of residential development, which is located
on the south side of Portola Parkway. Exhibit 5-3, Site Photographs: Rattlesnake Complex,
presents photographs that depict the existing visual character of Rattlesnake Complex when
viewed from Portola Parkway and the residential community located southwest of Portola
Parkway.

e View 1 — View from Portola Parkway, Looking North. This view depicts the visual
character of the site from motorists, bicyclists, and pedestrians traveling north along
Portola Parkway. The foreground view is dominated by ornamental vegetation in the
driveway associated with the adjacent Fire Station No. 55. As shown in the background
of the photograph, the Rattlesnake Complex is surrounded by mature vegetation and
trees. The only visible evidence of the Rattlesnake Complex is the brick wall that houses
the booster pump stations and some low-profile pumping equipment located behind a
chain-link fence.

e View 2 — View from Portola Parkway, Looking East. This view depicts the visual
character of the site when traveling along the south side of Portola Parkway. This view is
also representative of residents in the Northwood Pointe Community. As shown, the site
is surrounded by mature vegetation and trees that shield the majority of the views of the
Rattlesnake Complex.

The Project does not propose construction of new structures at the site; rather, proposed Project
actions would include the removal and modification of existing equipment. Some landscaping
would also need to be removed during construction activities; however, all landscaping will be
restored to existing conditions once construction is complete. Therefore, the visual appearance
of the Rattlesnake Complex would remain largely unchanged. No impact would occur related to
the visual character or quality of the site or surrounding areas.

d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare which would adversely affect day
or nighttime views in the area?

Less Than Significant Impact. Under existing conditions, each of the proposed Project sites
have some form of night-lighting. The proposed reservoir site is subject to security lighting
associated with the existing Zone 5 reservoir and Santiago Hills Pump Station facilities; the ILP
North Alignment is located along existing roadways with light standards along the entire
alignment; and the Orchard Hills Facility and Rattlesnake Complex have on-site security lighting.
These existing lighting elements would remain at the Project sites and additional security lighting
would be installed at the proposed reservoir. This new security lighting would be focused onto the
Project site; therefore, there would be minimal overspill beyond the physical limits of the existing
facilities. Project impacts pertaining to light or glare would be less than significant and no
mitigation is required.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-4 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-37



D:\Projects\3IRW\0007\Graphics\MND\ex_SP3.ai

View 1: View of Orchard Hills Facility looking southwest.

View 2: View of Orchard Hills Facility looking northeast.

Site Photographs: Orchard Hills Facility

Exhibit 5-2

ILP North Conversion Project

O
W
[0%)

Berterra

PSOMAS

(07/15/2015 JAZ) R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\Graphics\MND\ex5-2_SP.pdf




D:\Projects\3IRW\0007\Graphics\MND\ex_SP4.ai

View 1: View from Portola Parkway looking north.

View 2: View from Portola Parkway looking east.

Site Photographs: Rattlesnake Complex Exhibit 5-3
ILP North Conversion Project
Bernterra
PSOMAS

O
8
©

(07/15/2015 JAZ) R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\Graphics\MND\ex5-3_SP.pdf




ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

Il AGRICULTURE AND FOREST RESOURCES

IMPACT ANALYSIS
Would the Project:

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance
(Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and
Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use?

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract?

No Impact. Data from the State of California Department of Conservation, Farmland Mapping
and Monitoring Program indicate that the proposed reservoir site and associated ILP North
Alignment contain no land designated as Prime Farmland, Farmland of Statewide Importance,
Unigue Farmland, or Farmland of Local Importance. As shown on Exhibit 5-4a, Farmland
Resources, these areas are designated as Grazing Land, Urban and Built-Up Land, and Other
Land; these Project sites are not used for agricultural purposes, nor are they under Williamson
Act contracts.

As shown on Exhibit 5-4b, the area immediately south and east of the Orchard Hills Facility site
is designated as Prime Farmland. Further to the south and east, this designation changes to
Farmland of Statewide Importance. Land to the northwest of the Orchard Hills Facility is also
designated as Farmland of Statewide Importance. These areas are also currently being used for
agricultural production; however, proposed Project actions would not extend beyond the existing
Orchard Hills Facility footprint and would not impact these off-site designated farmland areas.
Therefore, no impacts would occur to the surrounding designated farmlands. The Orchard Hills
Facility site is not under a Williamson Act contract.

As shown on Exhibit 5-4c, the Rattlesnake Complex is designated as Other Land with Urban and
Built-Up Land located immediately southwest of the site. There are areas located to the northwest,
northeast, east, and southeast that are designated as Unique Farmland and a small area to the
northwest that is designated Prime Farmland. These areas are also currently being used for
agricultural production; however, proposed Project actions would not extend beyond the existing
Rattlesnake Complex footprint and would not impact these off-site designated farmland areas. No
impacts would occur to the surrounding designated farmlands, and the Rattlesnake Complex
portion of the Project is not under a Williamson Act contract.

Although areas adjacent to some of the Project components are currently used for agriculture,
the Project component sites are not in agricultural use or under Williamson Act contracts. No
agricultural-related impacts would result from Project implementation. Therefore, no impacts
would occur and no mitigation is required.

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in
Public Resources Code section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public
Resources Code section 4526), or timberland zoned Timberland Production (as
defined by Government Code section 51104(g))?

d) Resultin the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use?
No Impact. According to Section 12220(g) of the California Public Resources Code, “forest land

is land that can support 10 percent native tree cover of any species, including hardwoods, under
natural conditions, and that allows for management of one or more forest resources, including

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-5 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-40



D:\Projects\3IRW\0007\MXD\WMND\ex_Farmland.mxd

D Project Boundaries
Farmland Types
Urban and Built-Up Land
Other Land J
Data Source: State of California Department of Conservation;
Water Area Division of Land Resource Protection;

Farmland Mapping & Monitoring Program (FMMP) 2010
Aerial Source: Aerials Express 2009

Farmland Resources:
Santiago Hills Zone C+ Reservoir Site and ILP North Alignment  Exhibit 5-4a

ILP North Conversion Project

t" Beviterra
w E 1,000 500 -

0 1,000
Feet PSOMAS

s (Rev: 7-21-2015 JAZ) R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\Graphics\MND\ex5-4_Farmland.pdf

M,
DS

=




D Project Boundaries
Farmland Types
Prime Farmland
Farmland of Statewide Importance
Unigue Farmland
Grazing Land
Other Land

Data Source: State of California Department of Conservation;
Division of Land Resource Protection;
Farmland Mapping & Monitoring Program (FMMP) 2010
Aerial Source: Aerials Express 2009

D:\Projects\3IRW\0007\MXD\WMND\ex_Farmland.mxd

Farmland Resources:
Orchard Hills Facility

Exhibit 5-4b

ILP North Conversion Project

W‘(} B 200 100 0 200

s Feet

M,
DS
N

Beviterra

PSOMAS

(Rev: 7-21-2015 JAZ) R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\Graphics\MND\ex5-4_Farmland.pdf




D:\Projects\3IRW\0007\MXD\WMND\ex_Farmland.mxd

D Project Boundaries
Farmland Types
Prime Farmland
Unigue Farmland
Urban and Built-Up Land
Other Land

Data Source: State of California Department of Conservation;
Division of Land Resource Protection;
Farmland Mapping & Monitoring Program (FMMP) 2010
Aerial Source: Aerials Express 2009

Farmland Resources:
Rattlesnake Complex

Exhibit 5-4c

ILP North Conversion Project

W‘(} B 200 100 0 200

s Feet

M,
1
8]

Beviterra

PSOMAS

(Rev: 7-21-2015 JAZ) R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\Graphics\MND\ex5-4_Farmland.pdf




ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

timber, aesthetics, fish and wildlife, biodiversity, water quality, recreation, and other public
benefits”. None of the proposed Project sites meet the definition of forest land; therefore, no
impacts would occur and no mitigation is required.

e) Involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or
nature, could result in conversion of Farmland, to non-agricultural use or
conversion of forest land to non-forest use?

No Impact. As discussed previously, the proposed Project sites are not designated as farmland
of significance and are not being used for agricultural production. There are areas in the vicinity
of the Project sites that are currently used for agricultural purposes; however, proposed Project
actions would not convert these areas to non-agricultural use. Further, there are no forest lands
in the vicinity of the Project sites; therefore, the Project would not convert forest land to non-forest
use. No impacts would occur and no mitigation is required.

M. AIR QUALITY
IMPACT ANALYSIS
Would the Project:
a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan?

No Impact. Air quality in Orange County is regulated by the South Coast Air Quality Management
District (SCAQMD), which is the agency principally responsible for comprehensive air pollution
control in the South Coast Air Basin (SoCAB). The SCAQMD develops rules and regulations;
establishes permitting requirements for stationary sources; inspects emissions sources; and
enforces such measures through educational programs or fines, when necessary. The SCAQMD
is directly responsible for reducing emissions from stationary (area and point), mobile, and indirect
sources. It has responded to this requirement by preparing a sequence of Air Quality Management
Plans (AQMPS).

On December 7, 2012, the SCAQMD Governing Board adopted the 2012 AQMP, which is a
regional and multi-agency effort (including participation by the SCAQMD, the California Air
Resources Board [CARB], the Southern California Association of Governments [SCAG], and the
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency [USEPA]). The purpose of the 2012 AQMP is to set forth
a comprehensive program that will lead the region into compliance with federal air quality
standards for 8-hour ozone (Os) and fine particulate matter with a diameter of 2.5 microns or less
(PM2.5). The 2012 AQMP incorporates the latest scientific and technical information and planning
assumptions, including the 2012 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities
Strategy (RTP/SCS); updated emission inventory methods for various source categories; and
SCAG's latest growth forecasts.

The two principal criteria for conformance to an AQMP are:

1. Whether the project would result in an increase in the frequency or severity of existing air
quality violations; cause or contribute to new violations; or delay timely attainment of air
guality standards and

2. Whether the project would exceed the assumptions in the AQMP.
With respect to the first criterion, the analyses in Responses to Questions Ill.b and Ill.c below

demonstrate that the Project would not (1) generate short-term or long-term emissions of volatile
organic compounds (VOCSs), oxides of nitrogen (NOx, which are Oz precursors), or PM2.5 that

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-6 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-44



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

could potentially cause an increase in the frequency or severity of existing air quality violations;
(2) cause or contribute to new violations; or (3) delay timely attainment of air quality standards.

With respect to the second criterion, the Project would not increase or modify SCAG’s population,
housing, or employment projections. The Project would accommodate the projected growth in
population accounted for in the 2012 AQMP emissions forecast and would provide facilities that
are capable of handling flows generated in the region. Therefore, the Project would be consistent
with the region’s AQMP. No impacts would occur and no mitigation is required.

b) Violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially to an existing or
projected air quality violation?

Less Than Significant Impact. Standards are separated into the following topics: Regional
Construction Emissions, Local/Ambient Air Quality Construction Emissions, and Long-Term
Operational Emissions.

Existing Conditions

The Project sites are located in Orange County, in the cities of Orange and Irvine. The Project
sites are located entirely within the SOCAB and are under the jurisdiction of the SCAQMD. Both
the State of California and the USEPA have established health-based Ambient Air Quality
Standards (AAQS) for air pollutants, which are known as “criteria pollutants”. The AAQS are
designed to protect the health and welfare of the populace within a reasonable margin of safety.
The AAQS for Oz, carbon monoxide (CO), nitrogen dioxide (NO), sulfur dioxide (SO,), respirable
particulate matter with a diameter of 10 microns or less (PM10), PM2.5, and lead are shown in
Table 1.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-7 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-45



ILP North Conversion Project

Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

TABLE 1
CALIFORNIA AND FEDERAL AMBIENT AIR QUALITY STANDARDS

California Federal Standards
Pollutant Averaging Time Standards Primary? Secondary®
1 Hour 0.09 ppm (180 pg/m?3) - -
@)
: 8 Hour 0'0735/?:;)(137 0.075 ppm (147 pg/m3) Same as Primary
PM10 24 Hour 50 pg/ms 150 pg/m? Same as Primary
AAM 20 pg/m? - Same as Primary
PM2.5 24 Hour - 35 ug/m? Same as Primary
' AAM 12 pg/m? 12.0 ug/m? 15.0 pg/m3
1 Hour 20 ppm (23 mg/m?3) 35 ppm (40 mg/m?) -
co 8 Hour 9.0 ppm (10 mg/m?3) 9 ppm (10 mg/m3) -
8 Hour 3
(Lake Tahoe) 6 ppm (7 mg/m°) B B
NO AAM 0.030 ppm (57 pg/m3) | 0.053 ppm (100 pg/m3) Same as Primary
2 1 Hour 0.18 ppm (339 pg/m?3) | 0.100 ppm (188 ug/ms) -
24 Hour 0.04 ppm (105 pg/m?3) - -
0.5 ppm
SO2 3 Hour - - (1,300 pg/m?)
1 Hour 0.25 ppm (655 pg/m?3) | 0.075 ppm (196 ug/ms) -
30-day Avg. 1.5 pg/m?3 - -
Lead Calendar Quarter - 1.5 ug/m3 i
- Same as Primary
Rolling 3-month Avg. - 0.15 pg/m?3
Extinction coefficient
Visibility of 0.23 per km —
Reducing 8 hour visibility = 10 miles
Particles (0.07 per km — =30
miles for Lake Tahoe)
Sulfates 24 Hour 25 pg/m?3 Federal
Hydrogen a Standards
Yy 3
Sulfide 1 Hour 0.03 ppm (42 pg/m?)
Vinyl 3
Chloride 24 Hour 0.01 ppm (26 pg/m?)
Os: ozone; ppm: parts per million; pug/m3: micrograms per cubic meter; PM10: respirable particulate matter; AAM: Annual
Arithmetic Mean; —: No Standard; PM2.5: fine particulate matter; CO: carbon monoxide; mg/m?: milligrams per cubic meter; NO,:
nitrogen dioxide; SO,: sulfur dioxide; km: kilometer.
2 National Primary Standards: The levels of air quality necessary, within an adequate margin of safety, to protect the public
health.
® National Secondary Standards: The levels of air quality necessary to protect the public welfare from any known or anticipated
adverse effects of a pollutant.
Note: More detailed information in the data presented in this table can be found at the CARB website (www.arb.ca.gov).
Source: CARB 2013

Regional air quality is defined by whether the area has attained or not attained State and federal
air quality standards, as determined by air quality data from various monitoring stations. Areas
that are considered in “nonattainment” are required to prepare plans and implement measures
that will bring the region into “attainment”. When an area has been reclassified from nonattainment
to attainment for a federal standard, the status is identified as “maintenance”, and there must be
a plan and measures established that will keep the region in attainment for the following ten years.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx

5-8

Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-46



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

For CARB, an “Unclassified” designation indicates that the air quality data for the area are
incomplete and do not support a designation of attainment or nonattainment. Table 2 summarizes
the attainment status of the SOCAB for the criteria pollutants.

TABLE 2
CRITERIA POLLUTANT DESIGNATIONS
IN THE SOUTH COAST AIR BASIN

Pollutant State Federal

O3 (1-hour) . No Standard

Nonattainment -

O3 (8-hour) Extreme Nonattainment
PM10 Nonattainment Attainment/Maintenance
PM2.5 Nonattainment Nonattainment

(0] Attainment Attainment/Maintenance
NO:2 Attainment Attainment/Maintenance
SO2 Attainment Attainment
Lead Attainment Nonattainment/Attainment?
Visibility-Reducing Particles Unclassified®
Sulfates Attainment No Standards
Hydrogen Sulfide Unclassified

Os: 0zone; PM10: respirable particulate matter with a diameter of 10 microns or less; PM2.5: fine particulate matter with a
diameter of 2.5 microns or less; CO: carbon monoxide; NO,: nitrogen dioxide; SO,: sulfur dioxide; CARB: California Air
Resources Board; SoOCAB: South Coast Air Basin

2 Los Angeles County is classified as nonattainment for lead; the remainder of the SoCAB is in attainment of State and
federal standards.

b “Unclassified” designation indicates that the air quality data for the area are incomplete and do not support a
designation of attainment or nonattainment.

Source: CARB 2015

Os is formed by photochemical reactions between NOx and VOCs rather than being directly
emitted. Os is the principal component of smog. Elevated Os; concentrations cause eye and
respiratory infection; reduce resistance to lung infection; and may aggravate pulmonary conditions
in persons with lung disease. Osis also damaging to vegetation and untreated rubber. The entire
SoCARB is designated as a nonattainment area for the State one-hour O3 standard.

CO is formed by the incomplete combustion of fossil fuels, almost entirely from automobiles. It is
a colorless, odorless gas that can cause dizziness, headaches, and fatigue. The SoCAB is
designated as an attainment area for federal CO standards.

NO- (a “whiskey brown”-colored gas) and nitric oxide (NO) (a colorless, odorless gas) are formed
from combustion devices. These compounds are referred to as NOx. NOXx is a primary component
of the photochemical smog reaction. The severity of health effects of NOx depend primarily on
the concentration inhaled. Acute symptoms can include coughing, difficulty breathing, vomiting,
headache, and eye irritation. Respiratory symptoms may also increase in severity after prolonged
exposure.

SOz is a corrosive gas that is primarily formed from the combustion of fuels containing sulfur (e.g.,
from power plants) and heavy industry that use coal or oil as fuel. SO irritates the respiratory
tract and can result in lung disease and breathing problems for asthmatics. Atmospheric SO; also
contributes to acid rain.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-9 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-47



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

Lead is found in old paints and coatings, plumbing, and a variety of other materials including
gasoline anti-knock additives. Once in the blood stream, lead can cause damage to the brain,
nervous system, and other body systems. Children are highly susceptible to the effects of lead.
However, lead emissions have significantly decreased due to the near elimination of the use of
leaded gasoline.

Particulate Matter is the term used for a mixture of solid particles and liquid droplets found in the
air. Respirable particulate matter (i.e., PM10) derives from a variety of sources including road dust
from paved and unpaved roads; diesel soot; combustion products; tire and brake abrasion;
construction operations; and fires. Fuel combustion and certain industrial processes are primarily
responsible for fine particle (i.e., PM2.5) levels. Coarse particles (PM10) can accumulate in the
respiratory system and aggravate health problems such as asthma. PM2.5 can deposit itself deep
in the lungs and may contain substances that are harmful to human health.

Toxic air contaminants (TACs) are a diverse group of air pollutants that may cause or contribute
to an increase in deaths or in serious illness or that may pose a present or potential hazard to
human health. TACs may be emitted from a variety of common sources, including motor vehicles,
gasoline stations, dry cleaners, industrial operations, painting operations, and research and
teaching facilities. TACs are different than the “criteria” pollutants previously discussed in that
AAQS have not been established for them. TACs occurring at extremely low levels may still affect
health, and it is typically difficult to identify levels of exposure that do not produce adverse health
effects. TAC impacts on human health are described by having carcinogenic risk and being
chronic (i.e., of long duration) or acute (i.e., severe but of short duration). Diesel particulate matter
(diesel PM) is a TAC and is responsible for the majority of California’s known cancer risk from
outdoor air pollutants.

The effects from air pollution can be significant, both in the short term during smog alerts, but also
from long-term exposure to pollutants. While the majority of the populace can overcome short-
term air quality health concerns, selected segments of the population are more vulnerable to its
effects. Specifically young children, the elderly, and persons with existing health problems are
most susceptible to respirator complications.

There are no sensitive receptors near the reservoir site. The sensitive receptors near to the other
Project sites are:

e Single-family residences and Santiago Canyon College adjacent to the proposed ILP
North Alignment on East Santiago Canyon Road and Jamboree Road.

e The Northwood Point Community (single-family residential) within 165 feet of the
Rattlesnake Complex.

e Additionally, there are residences under construction, within approximately 850 feet of the
Orchard Hills Facility.

Significance Criteria

Appendix G of the State CEQA Guidelines states that the significance criteria established by the
applicable air quality management district may be relied upon to make significance
determinations. The SCAQMD has established significance thresholds to assess the regional and
localized impacts of Project-related air pollutant emissions; Table 3 presents the current
significance thresholds.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-10 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-48



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

TABLE 3
SCAQMD AIR QUALITY SIGNIFICANCE THRESHOLDS

Mass Daily Thresholds?

Pollutant Construction Operation
NOx 100 Ibs/day 55 Ibs/day
VOC 75 Ibs/day 55 Ibs/day
PM10 150 Ibs/day 150 Ibs/day

PM2.5 55 Ibs/day 55 Ibs/day
SOx 150 Ibs/day 150 Ibs/day
CcO 550 Ibs/day 550 Ibs/day
Lead 3 Ibs/day 3 Ibs/day
TACs, Odor, and GHG Thresholds
TACs Maximum Incremental Cancer Risk = 10 in 1 million
(including carcinogens and non- Cancer Burden > 0.5 excess cancer cases (in areas 2 1 in 1 million)
carcinogens) Chronic & Acute Hazard Index = 1.0 (project increment)
Odor Project creates an odor nuisance pursuant to SCAQMD Rule 402
GHG 10,000 MT/yr COze for industrial facilities
Ambient Air Quality Standards for Criteria Pollutants®: ¢
NO:2 The SCAQMD is in attainment; the Project is significant if it causes or

contributes to an exceedance of the following attainment standards:

1-hour average 0.18 ppm (State)
annual arithmetic mean 0.03 ppm (State) and 0.0534 ppm (federal)
PM10
24-hour average 10.4 pg/m3 (construction)® & 2.5 pg/m?3 (operation)
annual average 1.0 ug/m?3
PM2.5
24-hour average 10.4 pg/m3 (construction)® & 2.5 pug/m?3 (operation)
SO2
1-hour average 0.25 ppm (State) & 0.075 ppm (federal — 99™ percentile)
24-hour average 0.04 ppm (State)
Sulfate
24-hour average 25 pg/m? (State)
CcO SCAQMD is in attainment; project is significant if it causes or contributes to an

exceedance of the following attainment standards:

1-hour average 20.0 ppm (State) and 35 ppm (federal)
8-hour average 9.0 ppm (State/federal)
Lead
30-day average 1.5 ug/m? (State)
Rolling 3-month average 0.15 pg/m? (federal)

NOXx: nitrogen oxides, lbs/day: pounds per day, VOC: volatile organic compound, PM10: respirable particulate matter with a
diameter of 10 microns or less, PM2.5: fine particulate matter with a diameter of 2.5 microns or less, SOx: sulfur oxides, CO:
carbon monoxide, TACs: toxic air contaminants, GHG: greenhouse gases, MT/yr CO,e: metric tons per year of carbon dioxide
equivalents, NO,: nitrogen dioxide, ppm: parts per million, pg/m*: micrograms per cubic meter; SCAQMD: South Coast Air Quality
Management District

a Source: SCAQMD CEQA Handbook (SCAQMD 1993)
b Ambient air quality thresholds for criteria pollutants based on SCAQMD Rule 1303, Table A-2 unless otherwise stated
¢ Ambient air quality threshold is based on SCAQMD Rule 403

Source: SCAQMD 2015

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-11 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-49



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

Construction Emissions — Regional

Criteria pollutant emissions would occur during construction from operation of construction
equipment; grading and earth-moving activities, which would generate fugitive dust; export of
excavated soil; import of construction materials; and operation of vehicles driven to and from the
site by construction workers. Emissions would vary from day to day, depending on the level of
activity; the specific type of construction activity occurring; and, for fugitive dust, prevailing
weather conditions.

A construction-period mass emissions inventory was compiled based on an estimate of
construction equipment as well as scheduling and Project phasing assumptions. More specifically,
the mass emissions analysis takes into account the following:

e Combustion emissions from operating on-site stationary and mobile construction
equipment;

e Fugitive dust emissions from demolition, site preparation, and grading phases; and

e Mobile-source combustion emissions and fugitive dust from worker commute and truck
travel.

Emissions were calculated using the California Emissions Estimator Model (CalEEMod) Version
2013.2.2 emissions inventory model (SCAQMD 2013). CalEEMod is a computer program
accepted by the SCAQMD that can be used to estimate anticipated emissions associated with
land development projects in California. CalEEMod has separate databases for specific counties
and air districts, and the Orange County database was used for the proposed Project.

The mass emissions thresholds (see Table 3) are based on the rate of emissions (i.e., pounds of
pollutants emitted per day). Therefore, the quantity, duration, and the intensity of construction
activity are important in ensuring the analysis of worst case (i.e., maximum daily emissions)
scenarios. The Project activities (e.g., grading, building) are identified by start date and duration.
Each activity has associated off-road equipment (e.g., dozers, backhoes, cranes) and on-road
vehicles (e.g., haul trucks, concrete trucks, worker commute vehicles).

For the purposes of estimating emissions associated with construction activities, a timeframe of
February 2016 through June 2017 was applied to the analysis. Construction hauling truck trips
were estimated based on the phase length and amount of debris or soil to export. The haul truck
capacity specified for this Project is 15 tons or 12 cubic yards (cy).

It was assumed excavation and grading at the proposed reservoir site would last approximately
20 weeks following two weeks of site clearing and grubbing. Reservoir excavation would require
the export of approximately 32,500 cy of soil. This translates to a total of 2,700 round trips (5,400
one-way trips) over the duration of the phase, or approximately 27 round trips (54 one-way trips)
per day. Dust control by watering was assumed, consistent with the requirements of SCAQMD Rule
403 (AQ-1).Construction of the reservoir would then occur over a six-month period. Input details
are provided in Appendix B.

This analysis assumes that construction activities associated with the Rattlesnake Complex and
Orchard Hills Facility would be minimal and would not require a significant number of additional
vehicles beyond those that are routinely traveling to and from the project site under existing
conditions.

It was assumed that installation of the ILP North Alignment would last approximately 12 months
and occur concurrently with reservoir site preparation, grading, and construction. Pipeline

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-12 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-50



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

installation would require both the export of excavated soil and demolished pavement and the
import of bedding materials for the pipeline. Export and import is estimated to require a total of
2,000 round trips (4,000 one-way trips) over the duration of the pipeline installation, or
approximately 10 round trips (20 one-way trips) per day.

Maximum daily emissions for the peak work day are shown in Table 4, Estimated Maximum Daily
Construction Emissions. Actual emissions could be less than those forecasted due to the
conservative nature of the assumptions incorporated into the CalEEMod program regarding
phasing. If construction is delayed or occurs over a longer time period, emissions could be
reduced because of (1) a more modern and cleaner-burning construction equipment fleet mix
and/or (2) a less intensive buildout schedule (i.e., fewer daily emissions occurring over a longer
time interval). As shown, all criteria pollutant emissions would be less than their respective
thresholds. Thus, impacts would be less than significant.

TABLE 4
ESTIMATED MAXIMUM DAILY CONSTRUCTION EMISSIONS
(LBS/DAY)
VOC NOXx (6{0) SOx PM10 PM2.5
Maximum daily emissions in 2016 6 59 47 <0.5 7 4
Maximum daily emissions in 2017 5 44 35 <0.5 4 3
SCAQMD Daily Thresholds (Table 3) 75 100 550 150 150 55
Exceeds SCAQMD Thresholds? No No No No No No

Ibs/day: pounds per day; VOC: volatile organic compound(s); NOx: nitrogen oxides; CO: carbon monoxide; SOx: sulfur oxides;
PM10: inhalable particulate matter with a diameter of 10 microns or less; PM2.5: fine particulate matter with a diameter of 2.5
microns or less; SCAQMD: South Coast Air Quality Management District.

Source: CalEEMod data in Appendix B.

Construction Emissions — Local/Ambient Air Quality

The localized effects from the on-site portion of daily emissions were evaluated at receptor
locations potentially impacted by the Project according to the SCAQMD’s localized significance
threshold (LST) method, which utilizes on-site emissions rate look up tables and Project-specific
modeling, where appropriate. LSTs are applicable to the following criteria pollutants: NO,, CO,
PM10, and PM2.5. LSTs represent the maximum emissions from a project that are not expected
to cause or contribute to an exceedance of the most stringent applicable federal or State ambient
air quality standard, and are developed based on the ambient concentrations of that pollutant for
each source receptor area and distance to the nearest receptor. For the LST CO and NO-
exposure analysis, receptors who could be exposed for one hour or more are considered. For
PM10 and PM2.5 exposure analysis, receptors who could be exposed for 24 hours are
considered. The mass rate look-up tables were developed for each source receptor area and can
be used to determine whether or not a project may generate significant adverse localized air
quality impacts. The SCAQMD provides LST mass rate look-up tables for projects that are less
than or equal to five acres, which means this is the appropriate method for the Project. When
guantifying mass emissions for localized analysis, only emissions that occur on site are
considered. Consistent with the SCAQMD’s LST method guidelines, emissions related to off-site
delivery/haul truck activity and employee trips are not considered in the evaluation of localized
impacts.

No LST analysis is required for the proposed reservoir site because there are no receptors with
500 meters of the work area. LST analyses for installation of the ILP North Alignment are shown

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-13 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-51



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

in Table 5; LST analyses for the Orchard Hills and Rattlesnake Complex work are shown in
Table 6. The Orchard Hills and Rattlesnake Complex are considered together because both sites
have the closest sensitive receptors at a distance of approximately 50 meters; the maximum daily
emissions listed in Table 6 represent the worst-case on-site emissions from the Rattlesnake
Complex Sites and Orchard Hills analyses. As shown in Tables 5 and 6, localized emissions for
all criteria pollutants would be less than their respective SCAQMD LSTs for all pollutants. Thus,
impacts would be less than significant and no mitigation is required.

TABLE 5
LOCALIZED CONSTRUCTION POLLUTANT EMISSIONS —
THE ILP NORTH PIPELINE (LBS/DAY)

NOXx CcoO PM10 PM2.5
Maximum Daily Emissions 17 13 1 1
SCAQMD LSTs" 81 485 4 3
Exceeds SCAQMD Thresholds? No No No No

Ibs/day: pounds per day; NOx: nitrogen oxides; CO: carbon monoxide; PM10: respirable particulate matter with a diameter of
10 microns or less; PM2.5: fine particulate matter with a diameter of 2.5 microns or less; SCAQMD: South Coast Air Quality
Management District; LST: Localized Significance Threshold.

" Thresholds for Source Receptor Area 17, Central Orange County, 1-acre site, 25 meter receptor distance

Source: SCAQMD 2009.

TABLE 6
MAXIMUM LOCALIZED CONSTRUCTION POLLUTANT EMISSIONS —
ORCHARD HILLS AND RATTLESNAKE COMPLEX SITES (LBS/DAY)

NOXx (6{0) PM10 PM2.5
Maximum Daily Emissions 7 6 <0.5 <0.5
SCAQMD LSTs” 93 738 13 5
Exceeds SCAQMD Thresholds? No No No No

Ibs/day: pounds per day; NOx: nitrogen oxides; CO: carbon monoxide; PM10: respirable particulate matter with a diameter of
10 microns or less; PM2.5: fine particulate matter with a diameter of 2.5 microns or less; SCAQMD: South Coast Air Quality
Management District; LST: Localized Significance Threshold.

Thresholds for Source Receptor Area 20, Central Orange County Coastal, 1-acre site, 50 meter receptor distance

Source: SCAQMD 2009.

Long-Term Operational Emissions

The Project would not require the addition of any new IRWD employees or generate regular
vehicle trips. IRWD staff would periodically visit the proposed reservoir, the Orchard Hills Facility,
and the Rattlesnake Complex for routine inspection and maintenance activities similar to current
operations. Therefore, new pollutant emissions would be negligible; the impact would be less than
significant and no mitigation is required.

c) Resultin acumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which
the project region is non-attainment under an applicable Federal or State ambient
air quality standard (Including releasing emissions which exceed quantitative
thresholds for ozone precursors)?

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-14 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-52



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

Less than Significant Impact. As noted previously in Table 2, the Orange County portion of the
SoCAB is a nonattainment area for O3, PM10, and PM2.5. The proposed Project would generate
these pollutants during construction, and short-term cumulative impacts related to air quality could
occur if Project construction and nearby construction activities were to occur simultaneously. In
particular, with respect to local impacts, cumulative construction particulate (i.e., fugitive dust)
impacts are considered when projects are located within a few hundred yards of each other. As
described in the response to Question lll.b, construction emissions would be below the SCAQMD
regional and localized significance thresholds. Project construction at the Orchard Hills Facility
may occur concurrently with nearby residential development; however, Project emissions at the
site would be substantially less than significance thresholds, and the Project’s contribution to
cumulative emissions would not be considerable. Therefore, short-term construction emissions of
nonattainment pollutants would not be cumulatively considerable, and Project impacts would be
less than significant.

As previously discussed in the Response to Question lll.b, long-term emissions would be
negligible and therefore not cumulatively considerable; the long-term cumulative impact would be
less than significant. No mitigation is required.

d) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations?
Less Than Significant Impact. Exposure of sensitive receptors is addressed for the following
situations: CO hotspots; criteria pollutants from on-site construction; and TACs from on-site

construction.

Carbon Monoxide Hotspot

A CO hotspot is an area of localized CO pollution caused by severe vehicle congestion on major
roadways, typically near intersections. If a project increases average delay at signalized
intersections operating at level of service (LOS) E or F or causes an intersection that would
operate at LOS D or better without the project to operate at LOS E or F with the project, a
guantitative screening is required. As discussed previously in the Response to Question Ill.b,
operational traffic would be negligible. Thus, it may be inferred that the Project would neither
cause new severe congestion nor significantly worsen existing congestion. There would be no
potential for a CO hotspot or exposure of sensitive receptors to substantial, Project-generated
local CO emissions. The impact would be less than significant and no mitigation is required.

Criteria Pollutants from On-Site Construction

Exposure of persons to NO,, CO, PM10, and PM2.5 emissions is discussed in the LST analysis
under Response lll.b above. As discussed, there would be a less than significant impact and no
mitigation is required.

Toxic Air Contaminant (Diesel PM) Emissions from On-Site Construction

Construction activities would result in short-term, Project-generated emissions of diesel PM from
the exhaust of off-road, heavy-duty diesel equipment used for site preparation (e.g., demolition,
excavation, and grading); paving; and building construction. CARB identified diesel PM as a TAC
in 1998. The dose to which receptors are exposed is the primary factor used to determine health
risk. Dose is a function of the concentration of a substance or substances in the environment and
the duration of exposure to the substance. Thus, the risks estimated for a maximally exposed
individual (MEI) are higher if a fixed exposure occurs over a longer time period. According to the
Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment, health risk assessments—which determine
the exposure of sensitive receptors to TAC emissions—should be based on a 30- to 70-year

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-15 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-53



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

exposure period; however, such assessments should be limited to the period/duration of activities
associated with a project.

For the ILP North Conversion Project, there would be few pieces of off-road, heavy-duty diesel
equipment in operation, and the construction period would be short when compared to a
30- to 70-year exposure period. When considering these facts combined with the highly dispersive
properties of diesel PM and additional reductions in particulate emissions from newer construction
equipment, as required by USEPA and CARB regulations, it can be concluded that TAC
emissions during construction of the Project would not expose sensitive receptors to substantial
emissions of TACs. There would be a less than significant impact, and no mitigation is required.

e) Create objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of people?

Less than Significant Impact. Objectionable odors are generally associated with agricultural
activities; landfills and transfer stations; the generation or treatment of sewage; the use or
generation of chemicals; food processing; or other activities that generate unpleasant odors
(SCAQMD 1993). The proposed Project would involve construction and operation of a water
storage tank and associated access road and pressure-reducing station. None of the proposed
Project elements would generate objectionable odors. There would be no impact and no
mitigation is required.

During construction, the proposed Project would operate equipment that may generate odors
resulting from on-site construction equipment’s diesel exhaust emissions or paving operations.
However, these odors would be temporary and would dissipate rapidly from the source with an
increase in distance. Therefore, construction odors would be considered less than significant and
no mitigation would be required.

MITIGATION PROGRAM

Requlatory Requirement

AQ-1 During construction of the Project, Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD) and its
contractors shall be required to comply with regional rules, which would assist in
reducing short-term air pollutant emissions. SCAQMD Rule 402 requires that air
pollutant emissions not be a nuisance off site. SCAQMD Rule 403 requires that
fugitive dust be controlled with the best available control measures so that the
presence of such dust does not remain visible in the atmosphere beyond the
property line of the emission source.

V. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES

IMPACT ANALYSIS

This section is based on the Biological Resources Report, Irvine Ranch Water District, Irvine Lake
Pipeline — North Conversion Project, City of Irvine, Orange County, California prepared by
BonTerra Psomas in 2015 (Appendix C).

Would the Project:

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications,
on any species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local
or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish
and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-16 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-54



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

Less Than Significant With Mitigation. To facilitate this discussion, this section is separated
into the following discussions: Special Status Plant Species; Coastal California
Gnatcatcher/Scrub Habitats; Least Bell's Vireo/Southwestern Willow Flycatcher/Western Yellow-
Billed Cuckoo/Riparian Habitats; Burrowing Owl Habitat; and Other Wildlife Species.

Special Status Plant Species

Suitable habitat for special status plant species is located on the proposed reservoir site, while
limited suitable habitat for special status plants is located along the ILP North Alignment near the
Baker RWPS. The proposed reservoir site would impact 3.00 acres of suitable scrub and
grassland habitats and the portion of the ILP North Alignment south of the Baker RWPS would
impact 0.19 acre of suitable scrub habitat (Exhibit 5-5a-e, Biological Resources]). One federally
listed Threatened and State-listed Endangered species, thread-leaved brodiaea (Brodiaea
filifolia), has potential to occur in the scrub and grassland habitats; any impact on this species
would be considered significant if it were to occur within the impact boundary. Implementation of
BIO-1 would reduce this impact to a less than significant level.

Several California Rare Plant Rank (CRPR) List 1B, 2B, 3, and 4 species also have potential to
occur in the habitats that would be impacted by the ILP North Alignment and the proposed
reservoir; impacts on these species would be considered significant if they were present in the
impact area and if the size of the population and the status of the species warrant a finding of
significance. Impacts on intermediate mariposa lily (Calochortus weedii var. intermedius),
Catalina mariposa lily (Calochortus catalinae), and Coulter's matilija poppy (Romneya coulteri)
are covered or conditionally covered by IRWD's participation in the Central-Coastal Natural
Communities Conservation Plan (NCCP)/Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP). Implementation of
B10-1 would reduce this impact to a less than significant level.

No suitable habitat for special status plants is located at the Rattlesnake Complex, the Orchard
Hills Facility, or within the remainder of the ILP North Alignment (north of the Baker RWPS).
Therefore, these elements of the Project would not impact special status plant species.

Coastal California Gnatcatcher/Scrub Habitats

The ILP North Alignment near the Baker RWPS would impact 0.19 acre of California sagebrush—
California buckwheat scrub that provides suitable habitat for the federally Threatened coastal
California gnatcatcher (Polioptila californica californica). One pair of gnatcatchers were observed
within 500 feet of this Project impact area during focused surveys; thus, the coastal sage scrub
on this Project site would be considered occupied. This area is part of the NCCP/HCP Reserve
located within Peters Canyon Regional Park (Exhibit 5-6a-b, NCCP/HCP Reserve
Classifications). The ILP North Alignment near the Baker RWPS and its associated pipelines are
existing permanent infrastructure within and adjacent to Peters Canyon Regional Park (i.e.,
NCCP/HCP Reserve). Construction of a recycled water pipeline is consistent with the provisions
of Section 5.3 of the NCCP/HCP, which allows for operation, maintenance and repair, and
reconstruction of existing infrastructure facilities in a Habitat Reserve. Section 5.3.3 of the
NCCP/HCP Implementation Agreement states that activities related to the provision and operation
of necessary public and quasi-public infrastructure facilities, construction of those new
infrastructure, and ongoing operations and maintenance, repair, and reconstruction activities
related to the new infrastructure facilities are “Permitted Activities” provided that they are
consistent with adopted County and City general plans and provisions of the NCCP/HCP.
Therefore, impacts on 0.19 acre of coastal sage scrub and one pair of gnatcatchers for
construction of the ILP North Alignment near the Baker RWPS are considered fully mitigated with
IRWD'’s participation in the NCCP/HCP. | Implementation of BIO-2 will be required during clearing
of coastal sage scrub.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-17 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-55



D:\Projects\3IRW\0007\MXD\MND\ex_BioResources_20150922.mxd

@ Survey Area
D Project Boundaries
Vegetation Types and Other Areas

|:| Southern Cactus Scrub (2.4)

Coastal Goldenbush-Grassland (2.8.3)
Urban (15.1)

Transportation (15.4)

Parks and Ornamental Plantings (15.5)

Cleared or Graded (16.1)

DEEONLC

Other Disturbed Areas (16.2)

Aerial Source: Google, March 2015/Aerials Express 2009

Biological Resources

Exhibit 5-5a

ILP North Conversion Project
N

W‘d} E 200 100 0 200

s Feet

Berlerra

PSOMAS

(Rev: 9-22-2015 JAZ) R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\Graphics\MND\ex5-5_BioResources.pdf

(D
O
o




ILP North Alignment

@ Survey Area
D Project Boundaries
Vegetation Types and Other Areas

California Sagebrush-California Buckwheat Scrub (2.3.1)

Disturbed California Sagebrush-California Buckwheat Scrub (2.3.1)

Black Sage Scrub (2.3.4)

Disturbed Sagebrush Scrub (2.3.6)

Ruderal (4.6)

Urban (15.1)

Transportation (15.4)

Parks and Ornamental Plantings (15.5)

Cleared or Graded (16.1)

ODERCENLNEN

Other Disturbed Areas (16.2)

D:\Projects\3IRW\0007\MXD\MND\ex_BioResources_20150922.mxd

Aerial Source: Google, March 2015/Aerials Express 2009

Biological Resources Exhibit 5-5b

ILP North Conversion Project
N

W<¢} ] Beviterra
200 100 0 200 _—c

PSOMAS

(Rev: 9-22-2015 JAZ) R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\Graphics\MND\ex5-5_BioResources.pdf

Feet

S

~

(D
on




D:\Projects\3IRW\0007\MXD\MND\ex_BioResources_20150922.mxd

Santiago Hills C+ Reservoir

@ Survey Area
D Project Boundaries

[0l Coastal California Gnatcatcher Pair

\ Vegetation Types and Other Areas

Buckwheat Scrub (2.3.7)
Southern Cactus Scrub (2.4)
Annual Grassland (4.1)
Ruderal (4.6)

Sumac Savannah (4.8)
Southern Willow Scrub (7.2)
Mulefat Scrub (7.3)
Non-urban Industrial (15.3)
Transportation (15.4)

Parks and Ornamental Plantings (15.5)

BRECENECONUEONENR

Cleared or Graded (16.1)

California Sagebrush-California Buckwheat Scrub (2.3.1)

Disturbed California Sagebrush-California Buckwheat Scrub (2.3.1)

| 1 i 1

Aerial Source: Google, March 2015/Aerials Express 2009

Biological Resources

Exhibit 5-5c¢

ILP North Conversion Project
N

W‘d} E 200 100 0 200

s Feet

Berlerra

PSOMAS

(Rev: 9-22-2015 JAZ) R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\Graphics\MND\ex5-5_BioResources.pdf

(D
on

o)




D:\Projects\3IRW\0007\MXD\MND\ex_BioResources_20150922.mxd

@ Survey Area
D Project Boundaries

[0l Coastal California Gnatcatcher Pair

Vegetation Types and Other Areas

Black Sage Scrub (2.3.4)

Southern Cactus Scrub (2.4)
Annual Grassland (4.1)

Ruderal (4.6)

Sumac Savannah (4.8)

Southern Willow Scrub (7.2)
Mulefat Scrub (7.3)

Disturbed Mulefat Scrub (7.3)
Southern Arroyo Willow Forest (7.6)
Urban (15.1)

Non-urban Industrial (15.3)
Transportation (15.4)

Parks and Ornamental Plantings (15.5)

Cleared or Graded (16.1)

OCERCNNENNRONLENN

Other Disturbed Areas (16.2)

California Sagebrush-California Buckwheat Scrub (2.3.1)

Sant

Baker Raw Water Pumping Station

Aerial Source: Google, March 2015/Aerials Express 2009

Biological Resources

Exhibit 5-5d

ILP North Conversion Project
N

W‘d} E 200 100 0

S

Berlerra

PSOMAS

(Rev: 9-22-2015 JAZ) R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\Graphics\MND\ex5-5_BioResources.pdf

(D
(O




D:\Projects\3IRW\0007\MXD\MND\ex_BioResources_20150922.mxd

Orchard Hills Facility

@ Survey Area
D Project Boundaries
Vegetation Types and Other Areas

|:| Ruderal (4.6)

|:| Vineyards and Orchards (14.3)
- Non-urban Industrial (15.3)
|:| Other Disturbed Areas (16.2)

Aerial Source: Google, March 2015/Aerials Express 2009

Biological Resources

Exhibit 5-5e

ILP North Conversion Project
N

W‘<>>E 100 50 0

100
Feet

S

Berlerra

PSOMAS

(Rev: 9-22-2015 JAZ) R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\Graphics\MND\ex5-5_BioResources.pdf

(D
O




D:\Projects\3IRW\0007\MXD\MND\ex_BioResources_20150922.mxd

Rattlesnake Complex IN

@ Survey Area
D Project Boundaries
Vegetation Types and Other Areas

Disturbed California Sagebrush-California Buckwheat Scrub (2.3.1)
Ruderal (4.6)

Sumac Savannah (4.8)

Mulefat Scrub (7.3)

Urban (15.1)

Non-urban Industrial (15.3)

Transportation (15.4)

Parks and Ornamental Plantings (15.5)

ORCENNCONNE

Other Disturbed Areas (16.2)

Aerial Source: Google, March 2015/Aerials Express 2009

Biological Resources

Exhibit 5-5f

ILP North Conversion Project
N

W‘<>> £ 100 50 0 100

s Feet

Berlerra

PSOMAS

(Rev: 9-22-2015 JAZ) R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\Graphics\MND\ex5-5_BioResources.pdf




D:\Projects\3IRW\0007\MXD\MND\ex_NCCP.mxd

D Project Boundary

@ Survey Area

NCCP Classification

- Reserve

|:| Existing Use

I:] Non-Reserve Open Space
I:] Conservation Easement

|:| No Information

®
>
=
&
[=}
g
>
<
o
3
psl
(=%

ILP North Alignment

S A
)
N
(:b
QO
K
¥
Santiago Hills C+ Reservoir
0
© Q.
& %
SE S
%
>
%

Baker Raw Water Pumping Station

Aerial Source: Google, March 2015

NCCP/HCP Reserve Classifications

Exhibit 5-6a
ILP North Conversion Project
N

W<¢} ] Beviterra
1000 500 0 1,000 _—

s Feet

PSOMAS

(Rev: 7-21-2015 JAZ) R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\Graphics\MND\ex5-6_NCCP.pdf

(D
)
ND




D:\Projects\3IRW\0007\MXD\MND\ex_NCCP.mxd

A,
Ol‘l‘o/éi Py
N
Q}Q
)
N
@)
K7
@QO'
Ou,
Ood Vly
/Y/ .
04.8 o
Q/?J/O
]
o

Yale Ave

D Project Boundary

@ Survey Area

NCCP Classification

- Reserve

I:] Non-Reserve Open Space

I:] Conservation Easement

Orchard Hills Facility

Rattlesnake Complex

Aerial Source: Google, March 2015

NCCP/HCP Reserve Classifications

Exhibit 5-6b

ILP North Conversion Project
N

W‘<>> & 1000 500 0 1,000
Feet

S

Berlerra

PSOMAS

(Rev: 7-21-2015 JAZ) R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\Graphics\MND\ex5-6_NCCP.pdf

(D
)
D




ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

The proposed reservoir would impact 0.77 acre (0.07 acre of California sagebrush—California
buckwheat scrub and 0.70 acre of disturbed California sagebrush—California buckwheat scrub).
No coastal California gnatcatcher were observed within 500 feet of this Project site during focused
surveys; therefore, gnatcatchers are not expected to occur on this Project site. Coastal sage scrub
on this Project site is limited in extent and small in stature and coastal California gnatcatchers are
not expected to occur onsite in the future. Coastal sage scrub on the slopes and drainages offsite
are much higher quality; any gnatcatchers would be expected to use those higher quality habitats
rather than what is on the Project site. Therefore, the impacts on 0.77 acre of coastal sage scrub
at this facility would be considered less than significant because this portion of the project would
impact a limited amount of low quality scrub that is not occupied by coastal California gnatcatcher.
Implementation of BIO-2 would be required during clearing of coastal sage scrub vegetation.

No scrub habitats would be impacted at the Rattlesnake Complex, the Orchard Hills Facility, or
within the remainder of the ILP North Alignment. Habitat occupied by coastal California
gnatcatcher is adjacent to the ILP North Alignment (i.e., along Santiago Canyon Road).

Scrub habitats are also located adjacent to the ILP North Alignment near the Baker RWPS,
proposed reservoir site, Rattlesnake Complex, and along the remainder of the ILP North
Alignment. Construction noise and increased human activity for these portions of the Project could
indirectly impact coastal California gnatcatcher adjacent to these facilities. However, indirect
impacts are considered fully covered by the IRWD'’s participation in the NCCP/HCP as long as
the measures listed in BIO-2 are followed.

Least Bell's Vireo/Southwestern Willow Flycatcher/Western Yellow-Billed
Cuckoo/Riparian Habitats

The Project would not impact riparian habitat with potential to support Threatened or Endangered
riparian bird species (i.e., western yellow-billed cuckoo [Coccyzus americanus occidentalis],
southwestern willow flycatcher [Empidonax trailli extimus], and least Bell's vireo [Vireo bellii
pusillus]). Therefore, the Project would not be expected to directly impact Threatened or
Endangered riparian bird species.

Riparian habitat adjacent to the ILP North Alignment near the Baker RWPS (within Peters Canyon
Regional Park) is known to support least Bell's vireo and has potential to support southwestern
willow flycatcher and migrants of western yellow-billed cuckoo. Additionally, a small drainage of
mulefat scrub along East Santiago Canyon Road has potential to support least Bell's vireo.
Construction noise and increased human activity for these portions of the Project could indirectly
impact habitat for Threatened or Endangered riparian birds adjacent to these facilities if they
occurred during the summer breeding season (March 15 to September 15). If possible, noise-
intensive portions of construction should be planned to occur outside the breeding season for
these species. If construction would occur within 500 feet of suitable riparian habitat during the
breeding season, BIO-3 would be required to reduce impacts to less than significant.

Burrowing Owl Habitat

Burrowing owl could occur at the ILP North Alignment near the Baker RWPS, at the proposed
reservoir site, at the Rattlesnake Complex, at the Orchard Hills Facility, and along the remainder
of the ILP North Alignment. The ILP North Alignment near the Baker RWPS would impact 0.49
acre of suitable scrub and disturbed habitats; the proposed reservoir would impact 3.00 acres of
suitable scrub and grassland habitats; and the Orchard Hills Facility would impact 0.05 acre of
suitable disturbed habitat. Additionally, suitable habitat for this species is located adjacent to these
facilities and along the remainder of the ILP North Alignment. Construction noise and increased
human activity associated with the Project could indirectly impact burrowing owl if it were nesting

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-18 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-64



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

adjacent to the Project sites. As discussed above, burrowing owl are not common in Orange
County and therefore only have a limited potential to occur. BIO-4 would be required to ensure
that this species is not impacted by construction.

Other Wildlife Species

A total of 3.19 acres of scrub and grassland habitats that provide potentially suitable habitat for
special status species would be impacted by the Project. This loss would be limited relative to the
amount of habitat available for these species in the Project region, which includes large areas of
native habitat set aside for the NCCP/HCP Reserve located immediately adjacent to the survey
area. Therefore, the impact on special status wildlife species would be considered less than
significant.

Any change to water quality could affect biological resources that occur adjacent to the Project
sites. During construction, runoff carrying excessive silt or petroleum residues from construction
equipment have the potential to impact water quality and, in turn, affect plant and wildlife species.
Impacts on water quality or increases in dust would be considered potentially significant.
Implementation of BIO-5 would be required to reduce this impact to a less than significant level.

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural
community identified in local or regional plans, policies, regulations or by the
California Department of Fish and Wildlife or US Fish and Wildlife Services?

Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated. Refer to the Response to Section |V,
Biological Resources, Question a, above.

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on federally protected wetlands as defined by
Section 404 of the Clean Water Act (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool,
coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other
means?

No Impact. Although the southern willow scrub, mulefat scrub, disturbed mulefat scrub, and
southern arroyo willow forest mapped in the survey area that are adjacent to the ILP North
Alignment along Jamboree Road just north of the Baker RWPS would be under the jurisdiction of
the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), the California Department of Fish and Wildlife
(CDFW), and the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB), all work would be within the
existing roadway; therefore, there would be no impact on jurisdictional areas.

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish
or wildlife species or with established native resident or migratory wildlife
corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites?

Less Than Significant Impact. The proposed reservoir is located in an area with few constraints
on wildlife movement; therefore, wildlife would be expected to move freely through the open space
in this area and could easily move around the proposed reservoir after its construction.

The Rattlesnake Complex, the Orchard Hills Facility, and the ILP North Alignment are located in
areas that are already developed IRWD facilities with adjacent open space. None of the Project
areas are within or adjacent to a regional wildlife corridor.

Additionally, the Central-Coastal NCCP/HCP provides mitigation for impacts of Covered Activities
on connectivity and wildlife movement. The NCCP/HCP and its Environmental Impact
Report/Environmental Impact Statement (EIR/EIS) demonstrate that the NCCP Reserve design,

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-19 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-65



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

which is comprised of both Special Linkages and contiguous blocks of sensitive habitat, protects
not only core habitat, but also biological connectivity, which provides for wildlife movement,
species dispersal and interchange, genetic exchange, and refuge from catastrophic events, such
as major fires.

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such
as atree preservation policy or ordinance?

Less Than Significant With Mitigation. Several raptor species (i.e., birds of prey) have potential
to nest in the trees within and adjacent to the survey area. This includes riparian trees, such as
willows, and those mapped as parks and ornamental plantings, such as pine (Pinus spp.) and
gum (Eucalyptus spp.). If construction occurs during the raptor nesting season (i.e., February 1
to June 30), the loss of an active nest of any raptor species, including common raptor species,
would be considered a violation of Sections 3503, 3503.5, and 3513 of the California Fish and
Game Code and would be a significant impact. Implementation of BIO-6 would be required to
reduce this impact to a less than significant level.

The Migratory Bird Treaty Act (MBTA) protects the taking of migratory birds and their nests and
eggs. Bird species protected under the provisions of the MBTA are identified by the List of
Migratory Birds (Code of Federal Regulations, Title 50, 810.13). Any impact on an active bird nest
would be considered a violation of the MBTA and would be considered significant. Implementation
of BIO-7 would be required to reduce this impact to a less than significant level.

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural
Community Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or State habitat
conservation plan?

No Impact. The Project is consistent with provisions in the NCCP/HCP. Although the proposed
reservoir site is excluded from coverage, no take authorization is needed for this area because it
was not occupied by coastal California gnatcatcher during focused surveys.

MITIGATION PROGRAM

Mitigation Measures

BIO-1 Prior to construction activities for the ILP North Alignment near the Baker RWPS
and the Santiago Hills C+ Reservoir site, IRWD will retain a qualified Biologist to
conduct focused surveys for special status plant species in Project impact areas
that have potential to provide habitat for special status plant species. The survey
will be done during the peak blooming period in accordance with the most current
protocols approved by the CDFW and the California Native Plant Society (CNPS).
Per requirements in the NCCP/HCP, if less than 20 individuals of Catalina
mariposa lily or intermediate mariposa lily are observed in the impact area, no
mitigation would be required; if more than 20 individuals are observed, mitigation
will be required. If federally or State-listed species, or CRPR List 1B or 2 species
are observed, mitigation will be required. To the greatest extent practicable, efforts
shall be made to avoid any special status plant species observed. If avoidance is
not feasible, corms/bulbs/seeds will be collected from the Project impact area and
will be translocated to a mitigation site with the appropriate habitat for the species.
The collection of corms/bulbs/seeds will be conducted at the appropriate time of
year to maximize potential for success depending on the species of plant. IRWD
will retain a qualified Biologist to prepare a detailed Special Status Plant Mitigation
Plan to describe the translocation. IRWD will implement the Mitigation Plan as

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-20 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-66



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

approved and according to its specified materials, methods, and performance
criteria. If thread-leaved brodiaea would be impacted, take authorization will be
obtained from the USFWS and CDFW prior to impacting the species.

BIO-2 Direct impacts to scrub habitats and coastal California gnatcatchers for the ILP
North Alignment near the Baker Raw Water Pump Station (RWPS) and indirect
impacts for the ILP North Alignment near the Baker RWPS, Santiago Hills C+
Reservoir site, Rattlesnake Complex, and along the ILP North Alignment are fully
mitigated through the IRWD’s participation and contribution in the Central Coastal
Natural Communities Conservation Plan (NCCP)/Habitat Conservation Plan
(HCP). The participation not only provides mitigation for coastal sage scrub and
coastal California gnatcatcher, but also other special status species designated as
“Covered Species” by the NCCP/HCP. IRWD will follow the Construction
Minimization Measures that are required by the NCCP/HCP listed below.

a. To the maximum extent practicable, no grading [removal] of coastal sage
scrub habitat that is occupied by nesting gnatcatchers will occur during the
breeding season (February 15 through July 15). It is expressly understood
that this provision and the remaining provisions of these “construction-
related minimization measures” are subject to public health and safety
considerations. These considerations include unexpected slope
stabilization, erosion-control measures, and emergency facility repairs. In
the event of such public health and safety circumstances, landowners or
public agencies/utilities will provide the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
(USFWS) and the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) with
the maximum practicable notice (or such notice as is specified in the
NCCP/HCP) to allow for capture of gnatcatchers, cactus wrens, and any
other coastal sage scrub Identified Species that are not otherwise flushed
and will carry out the following measures only to the extent as practicable
in the context of the public health and safety considerations.

b. Prior to the commencement of grading operations or other activities
involving significant soil disturbance, all areas of coastal sage scrub habitat
to be avoided under the provisions of the NCCP/HCP shall be identified
with temporary fencing or other markers clearly visible to construction
personnel. Additionally, prior to the commencement of grading operations
or other activities involving disturbance of coastal sage scrub [ILP North
Alignment near the Baker RWPS and Santiago Hills C+ Reservoir site], a
survey will be conducted to locate gnatcatchers and cactus wrens within
100 feet of the outer extent of projected soil disturbance activities, and the
locations of any such species will be clearly marked and identified on the
construction/grading plans.

c. A Monitoring Biologist that is familiar with the USFWS/CDFW requirements
will be on site during any clearing of coastal sage scrub. The landowner or
relevant public agency/utility will advise the USFWS/CDFW at least
7 calendar days (and preferably 14 calendar days) prior to the clearing of
any habitat occupied by Identified Species to allow the USFWS/CDFW to
work with the Monitoring Biologist in connection with bird-flushing capture
activities. The Monitoring Biologist will flush Identified Species (avian or
other mobile Identified Species) from occupied habitat areas immediately
prior to brush-clearing and earth-moving activities. If birds cannot be
flushed, they will be captured in mist nets, if feasible, and relocated to areas

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-21 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-67



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

of the site to be protected or to the NCCP/HCP Reserve System. It will be
the Monitoring Biologist's responsibility to ensure that identified bird
species will not be directly impacted by brush-clearing and earth-moving
equipment in a manner that also allows for construction activities on a
timely basis.

d. Following the completion of initial grading/earth-movement activities [ILP
North Alignment near the Baker RWPS, Santiago Hills C+ Reservoir site,
Rattlesnake Complex, and ILP North Alignment], all areas of coastal sage
scrub habitat to be avoided by construction equipment and personnel will
be marked with temporary fencing or other appropriate markers clearly
visible to construction personnel. No construction access, parking, or
equipment storage shall be permitted within such marked areas.

e. In areas bordering the NCCP Reserve System [ILP North Alignment and
ILP North Alignment near the Baker RWPS] or Special Linkage/Special
Management areas containing significant coastal sage scrub identified in
the NCCP/HCP for protection, vehicle transportation routes between
cut-and-fill locations will be restricted to a minimum number during
construction consistent with Project construction requirements. Waste dirt
or rubble will not be deposited on adjacent coastal sage scrub identified in
the NCCP/HCP for protection. Pre-construction meetings involving the
Monitoring Biologist, construction supervisors, and equipment operators
will be conducted and documented to ensure maximum practicable
adherence to these measures.

To the maximum extent practicable, IRWD will implement the following to minimize
impacts:

1. Impacts on coastal sage scrub habitat should be minimized through the
design process; and

2. Noise-intensive construction should occur outside the gnatcatcher
breeding season (the breeding season is from February 15 to August 31).

BIO-3 If construction activities for the ILP North Alignment near the Baker RWPS or ILP
North Alignment would occur during the breeding season for the least Bell's vireo
and southwestern willow flycatcher (i.e., March 15 to September 15) within 500
feet of potential habitat for this species (e.g., southern willow scrub, southern
arroyo willow forest, mulefat scrub, or disturbed mulefat scrub), IRWD will retain a
gualified Biologist to conduct a pre-construction focused survey to determine
whether habitat adjacent to the impact area is occupied at the time of construction.
If active nests are found during the surveys, a qualified Biologist, in consultation
with IRWD, will determine whether construction activities have the potential to
disturb the nest(s) and will determine the appropriate construction limitations,
which may include but would not be limited to erecting sound barriers, monitoring
by a qualified Biologist, or establishing no construction buffers (usually 300 feet for
special status song birds, and 500 feet for listed song birds or raptors). In addition,
a qualified Biologist will serve as construction monitor, in consultation with IRWD,
during those periods that occur near active nest areas to ensure no inadvertent
impacts to the nest occur. If necessary, the limits of construction to avoid an active
nest will be established in the field with flagging, fencing, or other appropriate

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-22 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-68



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

barriers, and construction personnel will be instructed on the sensitivity of nest
areas.

BIO-4 IRWD will retain a qualified Biologist to conduct a pre-construction survey for
burrowing owl within seven days prior to construction activities to determine if there
are any active burrowing owls within or adjacent to the impact area. If no active
burrows are observed, construction work can proceed. If occupied burrowing owl
habitat is detected on or adjacent to the Project impact area, measures to avoid,
minimize, or mitigate impacts will be incorporated into the Project and may include
the following:

e Construction monitoring will occur throughout the duration of ground-
disturbing construction activities to ensure that no impacts occur on
burrowing owl. The frequency of monitoring will be determined by IRWD
through consultation with a qualified Biologist.

e Construction exclusion areas will be established around the occupied
burrows in which no disturbance will be allowed to occur while the burrows
are occupied. Buffer areas will be determined by IRWD through
consultation with a qualified Biologist based on the recommendations
outlined in the Staff Report on Burrowing Owl Mitigation (CDFW 2012).

If burrow avoidance is infeasible, a qualified Biologist will implement a passive
relocation program in accordance with the Example Components for Burrowing
Owl Artificial Burrow and Exclusion Plans (CDFW 2012).

BIO-5 IRWD will require the construction contractor to include Best Management
Practices (BMPs) in the Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan for the Project to
minimize soil erosion and sedimentation from the Project sites.

BIO-6 If construction initiation occurs during the raptor nesting season (i.e., February 1
to June 30), IRWD will retain a qualified Biologist to conduct a pre-construction
survey within 500 feet of the limits of Project disturbance for the presence of any
active raptor nests (common or special status). Any nest found during survey
efforts will be mapped on construction plans. If no active nests are found, no further
mitigation will be required.

If nesting activity is present at any raptor nest site, the following restrictions on
construction will be required between February 1 and June 30 (or until nests are
no longer active, as determined by IRWD, in consultation with a qualified Biologist):
(1) clearing limits shall be established 500 feet in any direction from any occupied
nest and (2) access and surveying shall be restricted to within 500 feet of any
occupied nest. Any encroachment into the 500-foot buffer area around the known
nest will only be allowed if IRWD, in consultation with a qualified Biologist,
determines that the proposed activity will not disturb the nest occupants.

BIO-7 To the extent practicable, IRWD will plan vegetation removal efforts to occur
between September 16 and February 14, which is outside the breeding season for
nesting birds. If tree trimming or vegetation removal occurs during the breeding
season for nesting birds (i.e., between February 15 and September 15), IRWD will
retain a qualified Biologist to conduct a pre-construction nesting bird survey within
three days prior to vegetation removal to ensure that no active bird nests would be
impacted. If an active nest is observed within the proposed work area, IRWD, in

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-23 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-69



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

consultation with a qualified Biologist, will determine the appropriate size for a
protective buffer around the nest based on the sensitivity of the species and the
location of the nest. No construction activities will be allowed within the protective
buffer until the nest is no longer active, as determined by a qualified Biologist.

V. CULTURAL RESOURCES

Information in this section is derived from the Phase | Cultural Resources Assessment Irvine Lake
Pipeline North Conversion Project, Irvine and Orange, California (Phase | CRA) prepared by
BonTerra Psomas and dated October 2015. (BonTerra Psomas 2015; Confidential Appendix D).
Because the Project intends to use funds through the US Bureau of Reclamation (USBR), it is a
federal action subject to Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act (NHPA). The USBR
refers to these requirements as “CEQA-Plus”.

As part of the Phase | CRA, a cultural resources records search was conducted for the Project by
David M. Smith at the South Central Coastal Information Center (SCCIC) at California State
University, Fullerton on June 11, 2015. The SCCIC is the designated branch of the California
Historical Resources Information System (CHRIS) for the Project area and houses records
concerning archaeological and historic resources in Los Angeles, Ventura, San Bernardino, and
Orange Counties. The review consisted of an examination of the USGS El Toro, Tustin, and
Blackstar 7.5-minute quadrangles to determine if any cultural resources studies had been
conducted on or within a ¥2-mile radius of the parcels. The records search provided data on
recorded archaeological and built environment resources as well as those on or within ¥2 mile of
the Project sites. Sources consulted at the SCCIC included archaeological records,
Archaeological Determinations of Eligibility, historic maps, and the Historic Property Data File
(HPDF) maintained by the California Office of Historic Preservation. The HPDF contains listings
for the California Register of Historic Resources (CRHR) and/or the National Register of Historic
Places (NRHP), California Historical Landmarks, and California Points of Historical Interest.

A paleontological resources records search and literature review was conducted by Dr. Samuel
A. McLeod at the Los Angeles County Natural History Museum (LACNHM) on July 17, 2015.

An inquiry was made on June 12, 2015, of the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) to
request a review of the Sacred Lands File database regarding the possibility of Native American
cultural resources and/or sacred places in the Project vicinity that are not documented on other
databases. The NAHC responded on July 1, 2015, and provided a list of Native American groups
and individuals who may have knowledge regarding Native American cultural resources not
formally listed on any database. On July 10, 2015, tribes and individuals were mailed an
informational letter, which describes the Project and requested any information regarding
resources that may exist on or near the Project site.

An archaeological survey of the property was conducted on June 18, 2015 and July 14, 2015.
The survey of the water tank location was accomplished using 10-meter (50-foot) transects. The
remaining areas were surveyed intuitively on foot and by vehicle.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-24 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-70



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

IMPACT ANALYSIS
Would the Project:

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource as
defined in §15064.5?

No Impact. Based on the pedestrian survey, the Project sites consist of paved roadways; fenced
water facilities; areas that overlay the ILP North Pipeline, which was constructed in 1977; and
areas adjacent to an existing reservoir and do not contain any historical resources as defined in
Section 15064.5 of the State CEQA Guidelines. No impact would occur and no mitigation is
required.

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological
resource pursuant to §15064.5?

Less Than Significant With Mitigation. Based on the pedestrian survey, the Project sites
consist of paved roadways, fenced water facilities, and areas adjacent to an existing reservoir; no
cultural resources were noted during the survey.

According to the records search results, 42 cultural resource studies have been conducted within
a Y%-mile radius of the Project site. Of those, eight included a portion of the Project site. None of
these studies resulted in the identification of any cultural resources in the vicinity of any of the
Project sites. Seven cultural resource sites have been recorded within a “2-mile radius of the
Project sites, as described in Table 7. Of these, two have the potential for remnants of the site to
be in the Project area.

TABLE 7
CULTURAL RESOURCES SITES WITHIN ONE-HALF MILE
OF THE PROJECT SITES

Site Number Most Recent Recorder Description Within Project Area
CA-ORA-361 Elliott 1972 Lithic scatter No
CA-ORA-556 Cody 1984 Lithics, habitation debris Potentially
CA-ORA-557 Cody 1984 Lithics, habitation debris No
CA-ORA-625 Cody 1984 Bedrock milling feature No
CA-ORA-1218 Keasling and Dice 2004 Lithic scatter No
CA-ORA-1219 Keasling and Dice 2004 Lithic scatter No
CA-ORA-1548 Keasling and Dice 2004 Historic ditch/refuse Potentially

The sites with potential to be in the Project area consist of one prehistoric site (CA-ORA-556) and
one historic site (CA-ORA-1548). The prehistoric site is described as an extensive lithic scatter
consisting of metates, manos, cores, flakes, projectiles, and a bifacial knife. The original recorder
reported that a “possible cemetary” [sic] was “likely” located approximately 100 meters east of the
site. Subsequent investigators who re-recorded the site did not note a cemetery on their site
records. The site was originally recorded along a ¥%-mile swath north of Santiago Canyon roughly
between Jamboree Road and North Newport Boulevard. Most of the site appears to have been
lost due to construction, but remnants could remain beneath Santiago Canyon Road.

The historic site, CA-ORA-1548, is described as a historic ditch and associated artifacts recorded
in the vicinity of Jamboree Road, approximately ¥ mile south of Chapman Avenue. The site was

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-25 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-71



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

associated with an Irvine Ranch water conveyance system dating to the early part of the
20 Century. The site was tested and found that, although it is an important aspect of the historic
Irvine Ranch, it was not eligible for listing on the NRHP or CRHR. It is likely most or all of the site
has been lost or is buried. There is a potential that historic artifacts associated with the site are
buried beneath Jamboree Road.

The NAHC Search of the Sacred Lands File on July 1, 2015, failed to identify the presence of
Native American cultural resources on the Project sites. The NAHC provided a list of Native
American groups and individuals that may have knowledge of the religious and/or cultural
significance of resources that may be on or near the Project sites. All individuals were notified in
writing of the Project on July 10, 2015, and asked to provide any information they may have
regarding historic or prehistoric sites near the Project area. To date, one response has been
received from one of the tribal representatives notified of the Project. That response was from Mr.
Andrew Salas, the Chairman of the Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians — Kish Nation. Mr. Salas
indicated that the Project area was within the Gabrieleno’s homelands and he requested one of
the tribe’s monitors be on site during any and all ground disturbances. Follow up phone calls were
made on July 17, 2015, to the remaining tribal representatives notified of the Project. Two
additional responses were received. The first response was from Joyce Perry, Representing
Tribal Chairperson, of the Juanefio Band of Mission Indians Acjachemen Nation, stating that the
Project is located in an area of cultural sensitivity and therefore she requests that archaeological
and Native American monitoring be conducted during ground-disturbing activities. A second
response was received from Anthony Morales, Chairperson, Gabrieleno-Tongva San Gabriel
Band of Mission Indians, stating that the Project is located in an area of sensitivity (heavily in
cultural resources) and therefore warrants due diligence. He requests that Native American
monitoring also be conducted.

Based on this analysis, there is a potential for subsurface cultural deposits to be discovered during
grading activities, which would be considered a potentially significant impact. Implementation of
CULT-1, which requires retention of a qualified Archaeologist and monitoring during grading
activities, would reduce potential impacts to less than significant levels.

c) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique
geologic feature?

Less Than Significant With Mitigation. Based on the results of the NHMLAC records search,
there are no vertebrate fossil localities that lie directly within the proposed Project boundaries;
however, there are fossil vertebrate localities nearby from the same sedimentary deposits that
occur in the proposed Project area. Therefore, excavations exceeding eight feet in depth may
encounter sensitive fossils, thereby resulting in a potentially significant impact.

Based on this analysis, there is a potential for subsurface cultural deposits to be discovered during
grading activities, which would be considered a potentially significant impact. Implementation of
CULT-2, which requires retention of a qualified Paleontologist to be available “on-call” throughout
the duration of grading activities, would reduce potential impacts to less than significant levels.

d) Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of formal cemeteries?

Less Than Significant With Mitigation. There are no known formal cemeteries on the Project
site. However, this does not preclude the possibility that individual burial sites may be discovered
during grading activities. Implementation of CULT-3, which requires compliance with Section
7050.5 of the California Health and Safety Code and Section 5097.98 of the California Public
Resources Code would reduce potential impacts to less than significant levels.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-26 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-72



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

MITIGATION PROGRAM

Mitigation Measures

CULT-1

CULT-2

CULT-3

Archaeological Observation and Salvage. Prior to the initiation of construction,
IRWD shall retain a qualified Archaeologist to be available “on-call” throughout the
duration of the ground-disturbing activities. The Archaeologist shall be present at
the pre-grade conference; shall, in consultation with IRWD, establish procedures
for archaeological resource surveillance; and shall establish, in consultation with
IRWD, procedures for temporarily halting or redirecting work to permit the
sampling, identification, and evaluation of the artifacts as appropriate. If the
archaeological resources are found to be significant, the Archaeological Observer
shall determine appropriate actions, in consultation with IRWD, for exploration
and/or salvage. Following the completion of all earth-disturbance activities, the
Archaeologist’s Report will be provided to IRWD.

Paleontological Observation and Salvage. Prior to the initiation of construction,
IRWD shall retain a qualified Paleontologist to be available “on-call” throughout the
duration of grading activities. In the event that prehistoric or historic subsurface
cultural resources are discovered during ground-disturbing activities, all work
within 50 feet of the resources will be halted and IRWD will consult with the
gualified archaeologist to assess the significance of the find according to CEQA
Guidelines Section 15064.5. If any find is determined to be significant, IRWD and
the archaeologist will meet to determine the appropriate avoidance measures or
other appropriate mitigation. IRWD will make the final determination. All significant
cultural materials recovered will be, as necessary and at the discretion of the
consulting archaeologist, subject to scientific analysis, professional museum
curation, and documentation according to current professional standards. The
gualified paleontologist shall be retained to review project design plans and consult
with IRWD to when and where monitoring is required during construction. Based
on observations, monitoring may be reduced or discontinued if the qualified
paleontologist determines that the possibility of encountering fossiliferious
deposits is low. When onsite, the qualified paleontologist will prepare a final
monitoring report to be submitted to IRWD.

In the unlikely event that human remains are encountered, CA Health and Safety
Code Section 7050.5 states that no further disturbance shall occur until the county
coroner has made a determination of origin and disposition pursuant to CA Public
Resources Code Section 5097.98. The county coroner shall be notified
immediately if any human remains are found. If the remains are determined to be
prehistoric, the coroner will notify the Native American Heritage Commission,
which will determine and notify the most likely descendant. With the permission of
IRWD or an authorized representative, the most likely descendant may inspect the
site of the discovery. IRWD will meet and confer with the most likely descendant
regarding their recommendations prior to disturbing the site by further construction
activity.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-27 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-73



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

VI. GEOLOGY AND SOILS

Information in this section is derived from the Report of Geotechnical Investigation ILP North
Conversion Proposed Santiago Hills Zone C+ Reservoir Irvine Ranch Water District Project no.
30996 (5407), City of Orange, Orange County, California, Kleinfelder Project No. 20153742.001A
(Geotechnical Investigation) prepared by Kleinfelder and dated May 14, 2015. (Kleinfelder 2015;
Appendix E).

IMPACT ANALYSIS
Would the Project:

a) Expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects, including the
risk of loss, injury, or death involving:

i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the most recent Alquist-
Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area
or based on other substantial evidence of a known fault? Refer to Division of
Mines and Geology Special Publication 42.

ii) Strong seismic ground shaking?

Less than Significant With Mitigation. The Project sites, as with the entire Southern California
region, are subject to secondary effects from earthquakes, including ground shaking due to future
earthquakes on regionally active faults. According to the Geotechnical Investigation, the proposed
reservoir site is not located within a State-designated Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zone. The
nearest Alquist-Priolo zones to the proposed reservoir site are associated with the Whittier
Fault/Elsinore Fault zone (approximately 6.9 miles northeast of the site) and the Newport-
Inglewood Fault/Newport-Inglewood-Rose Canyon Fault zone (approximately 14.4 miles
southwest of the site). The Whittier Fault is a northern continuation of the Elsinore Fault Zone and
is capable of generating a 7.2 magnitude earthquake and the Newport-Inglewood Fault is capable
of generating a 7.4 magnitude earthquake. The faults mapped at the site are not designated as
active based on the Alquist-Priolo maps.

The two faults nearest the Project sites are El Modeno and Peralta Hills, which are located 0.5
miles west and 3 miles northwest of the proposed reservoir site, respectively. These two faults
are not designated as active based on the Alquist-Priolo maps, but have had Quaternary ruptures
(within the last 2 to 3 million years) and are suspected of having ruptured more recently; however,
there is insufficient evidence to zone them as “active”. Table 8, Significant Faults in the Project
Vicinity, identifies the name, approximate distance from fault rupture, fault length, maximum
earthquake magnitude, slip rate, and recurrence interval of the major faults that contribute to the
seismicity of the proposed reservoir site. Since the ILP North Alignment, the Rattlesnake
Complex, and the Orchard Hills Facility are all existing sites that would include improvements to
existing facilities, the fault-related discussion focuses on the proposed reservoir site only.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-28 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-74



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

TABLE 8
SIGNIFICANT FAULTS IN THE VICINITY OF THE PROPOSED RESERVOIR SITE
Approximate Fault Maximum Recurrence
Distance? Length Earthquake Slip Rate Interval
Fault Name (miles) (miles) Magnitude® (mm/yr) (years)
Peralta Hills Fault 2.8 6.2 N/A N/A N/A
Elsinor-Whittier Section (Whittier Fault) 6.8 24.8 7.2 2.50-3.00 unknown
Elsinore Fault 7.4 111.8 7.5 4.00 250
Chino Fault 9.6 13.0 7.0¢ 1.00 unknown
Newport-Inglewood Fault Zone 12.8 46.6 7.4 0.60 unknown
Sierra Madre Fault 234 34.1 7.0 0.36—4.00 unknown
Puente Hills Fault (Blind Thrust) 111 27.3 7.1 0.44-1.70 unknown
San Jose Fault 19.2 111 6.5 0.20-2.00 Unknown
Palos Verdes Fault 29.8 49.7 7.0 0.10-3.00 Unknown
Raymond Fault 29.9 16.1 7.0 0.10-0.22 ~4,500
gggtiﬂ)ar:cinto-San Bernardino Mountains 30.3 130.4 75 7 00-17.00 103(?0%nd
Crafton Hills Fault 33.8 12.4 N/A N/A N/A
oan Andreas-San Bemardino Section 37.2 341.7 8.0 20.00-35.00 | 140-300
Cucamonga Fault 42.8 18.6 7.0 5.00-14.00 600-700

mm/yr: millimeters per year; N/A — Not Available

a Closest distance to potential rupture

b Moment magnitude: an estimate of an earthquake’s magnitude based on the seismic moment
¢ Maximum Earthquake Magnitude is not well constrained

Source: Kleinfelder 2015

As shown in Table 8, potential surface rupture associated with the nearest significant faults would
not occur at the proposed reservoir site or any of the other Project sites. However, strong seismic
shaking would occur on the Project sites. The Geotechnical Investigation concludes that the
proposed reservoir site is suitable for development of the water storage tank from a geotechnical
standpoint, including the estimated seismic shaking hazard, provided that the recommendations
provided in the Geotechnical Investigation (refer to GEO-1) are incorporated into the Project.

Because the proposed improvements and Project actions at the other Project sites (ILP North
Alignment, Orchard Hills Facility, and Rattlesnake Complex) primarily involve modifications to
existing equipment to accommodate the ILP North Conversion, the potential for seismic ground
shaking would not represent a significant impact.

iii) Seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction?

Less Than Significant Impact. Soil liqguefaction occurs when saturated, cohesionless soils lose
their strength due to the buildup of excess pore water pressure during cycling loading, such as
that induced by earthquakes, causing it to behave as a liquid. The types of soils that are most
susceptible to liquefaction are clean, loose, and uniformly graded fine-grained sands and
saturated non-plastic silts. Based on the California Hazard Zones Map for the Orange
Quadrangle, the types of on-site soils, the depth to groundwater, and soil density, liquefaction is
not considered a hazard at the proposed reservaoir site.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-29 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-75



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

Lateral spreading is the horizontal displacement of the surficial soil layer that results from the
liquefaction of a subsurface granular deposit, and ground lurching occurs when soft, water-
saturated surface soils are agitated. As discussed previously, the subsurface units at the
Reservoir site are not considered liquefiable and are not in a saturated condition; therefore, the
potential for lateral spreading and ground lurching are also considered minimal.

Impacts related to seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction, would be less than
significant and no mitigation would be required.

Because the proposed improvements and Project actions at the other Project sites (ILP North
Alignment, Orchard Hills Facility, and Rattlesnake Complex) primarily involve modifications to
existing equipment to accommodate the ILP North Conversion, the potential for liquefaction would
not represent a significant impact.

iv) Landslides?

Less Than Significant With Mitigation. According to the Geotechnical Investigation, the majority
of the proposed reservoir site is located in an area defined as most susceptible to landsliding and,
based on evidence from published maps, aerial photography and field data reviewed and
compiled as part of the Geotechnical Investigation, the potential for earthquake-induced
landslides at the Reservoir site is considered to be high to very high. The Geotechnical
Investigation includes recommendations that the estimated landslide area not be disturbed during
construction and that the proposed reservoir be located away from the limits of the landslide area.
Additionally, temporary support of excavation is recommended to protect the existing Zone 5
reservoir during construction of the proposed reservoir. According to the Geotechnical
Investigation, placement of soil on or near the landslide area is not recommended as the load
could potentially activate movement of the landslide(s).

The Geotechnical Investigation concludes that the proposed reservoir site is suitable for
development from a geotechnical standpoint provided that the recommendations provided in the
Geotechnical Investigation are incorporated into the Project. There would be less than significant
impacts related to secondary seismic hazards with implementation of GEO-1, which would ensure
the specific recommendations of the Draft Geotechnical Investigation prepared for the Project are
fully incorporated in the design and construction of the Project.

Because the proposed improvements and Project actions at the other Project sites (ILP North
Alignment, Orchard Hills Facility, and Rattlesnake Complex) primarily involve modifications to
existing equipment to accommodate the ILP North Conversion, impacts related to seismically
induced landslides would not represent a significant impact.

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil?

Less Than Significant with Mitigation. The largest source of erosion and topsoil loss is
uncontrolled drainage during construction. As discussed in more detail in Section XI, Hydrology
and Water Quality, the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit program
controls water pollution by regulating point sources that discharge pollutants into “waters of the
U.S.”. Construction activities shall be conducted in compliance with the statewide NPDES General
Permit for Storm Water Discharges Associated with the Construction and Land Disturbance
Activities (Order No 2012-0006-DWQ, NPDES No. CAS000002), adopted by the State Water
Resources Control Board (SWRCB) on July 17, 2012. In compliance with the NPDES permit,
erosion potential during construction of the proposed Project would be managed with Best
Management Practices (BMPs) implemented on the Project site as part of a Storm Water Pollution
Prevention Plan (SWPPP) during construction activities in accordance with NPDES requirements.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-30 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-76



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

Implementation of the BMPs would reduce construction-related erosion impacts to less than
significant levels.

The Geotechnical Investigation recommends reducing deterioration of slope surfaces through
installing vegetative cover and implementing proper watering techniques and drainage control on
slope faces as soon as possible after completion of grading.

Therefore, compliance with NPDES Permit requirements and implementation of GEO-1 would
reduce impacts on soil erosion to less than significant levels.

c) Belocated on ageologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable
as a result of the project, and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral
spreading, subsidence, liquefaction or collapse?

Less Than Significant With Mitigation. According to the Geotechnical Investigation, there is
evidence of landslide activity near the southern property line of the proposed reservoir site and,
as discussed previously, the potential for earthquake-induced landslides at the proposed reservoir
site is considered to be high to very high. However, the proposed reservoir site is not located in
an area where subsidence has been recorded. Additionally, potential impacts related to
liquefaction and subsequent lateral spreading would be less than significant at the proposed
reservoir site as discussed previously in the Response to Question VI.a(iii).

The Geotechnical Investigation concludes that the proposed reservoir site is suitable for
development from a geotechnical standpoint provided that the recommendations provided in the
Geotechnical Investigation are incorporated into the Project. There would be less than significant
impacts related to development on an unstable geologic unit or soil with implementation of
GEO-1, which would ensure the specific recommendations of the Draft Geotechnical Investigation
prepared for the Project are fully incorporated in the design and construction of the Project.

Because the proposed improvements and Project actions at the other Project sites (ILP North
Alignment, Orchard Hills Facility, and Rattlesnake Complex) primarily involve modifications to
existing equipment to accommodate the ILP North Conversion, impacts related to unstable
geologic units or soils would not represent a significant impact.

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building
Code (1994), creating substantial risks to life or property?

Less Than Significant With Mitigation. According to the Geotechnical Investigation, the
Reservoir site is underlain by the Puente, Topanga, and Vaqueros/Sespe Formations, all of which
are known to contain expansive soils. Based on on-site testing, expansive materials were
encountered, thus making it likely that expansive bedrock exists on the site and resulting in a
potentially significant impact. However, implementation of GEO-1 would ensure the specific
recommendations of the Draft Geotechnical Investigation prepared for the Project and any future
geotechnical reporting are fully incorporated in the design and construction of the Project.

Because the proposed improvements and Project actions at the other Project sites (ILP North
Alignment, Orchard Hills Facility, and Rattlesnake Complex) primarily involve modifications to
existing equipment to accommodate the ILP North Conversion, impacts related to expansive soils
would not represent a significant impact.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-31 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-77



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative
wastewater disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of
wastewater?

No Impact. The proposed Project would not involve the use of septic tanks or alternative
wastewater disposal systems. No impacts would occur and no mitigation is required.

MITIGATION PROGRAM

Mitigation Measure

GEO-1 Prior to approval of final plans and specifications for the proposed Project, the
Engineer, or his/her designee, shall review the Project plans to confirm that all
recommendations in the Report of Geotechnical Investigation ILP North Conversion
Proposed Santiago Hills Zone C+ Reservoir Irvine Ranch Water District Project No.
30496 (5407), City of Orange, Orange County, California (dated May 14, 2015 and
prepared by Kleinfelder) and any future geotechnical reports have been fully and
appropriately incorporated.

VII. GREENHOUSE GASES

IMPACT ANALYSIS
Would the Project:

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a
significant impact on the environment?

No Impact. Climate change refers to any significant change in climate, such as the average
temperature, precipitation, or wind patterns over a period of time. Climate change may result from
natural factors, natural processes, and human activities that change the composition of the
atmosphere and alter the surface and features of the land. Significant changes in global climate
patterns have been associated with global warming, which is an average increase in the
temperature of the atmosphere near the Earth’s surface; this is attributed to an accumulation of
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions in the atmosphere. GHGs trap heat in the atmosphere, which
in turn increases the Earth’s surface temperature. Some GHGs occur naturally and are emitted
into the atmosphere through natural processes, while others are created and emitted solely
through human activities. The emission of GHGs through fossil fuel combustion, in conjunction
with other human activities, appears to be closely associated with global warming (OPR 2008).
Table 9 shows the magnitude of GHG emissions on the global, national, State, and regional
scales.!

1 GHG emissions for project-level analyses are commonly expressed in metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalent
(MTCOze). Larger quantities of emissions, such as on the State or world scale, as shown in Table 10, are
expressed in million metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalent (MMTCOze). (Metric tons may also be stated as
“tonnes”.) The CO:e for a gas is derived by multiplying the tons of the gas by the associated Global Warming
Potential (GWP) such that MMTCOze = (million metric tons of a GHG) x (GWP of the GHG). For example, the
GWP for CHas is 21. This means that emissions of 1 million metric tons of CH4 are equivalent to the emissions of
21 million metric tons of COze.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-32 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-78



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

TABLE 9
COMPARISON OF WORLDWIDE
GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS

Annual GHG Emissions
Area and Data Year (MMTCOz¢€)
World (2012) 46,049
United States (2013) 6,673
California (2012) 459
Orange County (2011) 21

GHG: greenhouse gas; MMTCOe: million metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalent

Source: WRI 2014; USEPA 2015; CARB 2014; SCAG 2011

GHGs, as defined under California’'s Assembly Bill (AB) 32, include carbon dioxide (COy),
methane (CHa4), nitrous oxide (N2O), hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs), perfluorocarbons (PFCs), and
sulfur hexafluoride (SFs). General discussions on climate change often include water vapor, Os,
and aerosols in the GHG category. Water vapor and atmospheric O3 are not gases that are formed
directly in the construction or operation of development projects, nor can they be controlled in
these projects. Aerosols are not gases. While these elements have a role in climate change, they
are not considered by regulatory bodies, such as CARB, or climate change groups, such as The
Climate Registry, as gases to be reported or analyzed for control. Therefore, no further discussion
of water vapor, Os, or aerosols is provided herein.

GHGs vary widely in the power of their climatic effects; therefore, climate scientists have
established a unit called global warming potential (GWP). The GWP of a gas is a measure of both
its potency and lifespan in the atmosphere as compared to CO,. For example, since CH4 and N.O
are approximately 21 and 310 times more powerful than CO-, respectively, in their ability to trap
heat in the atmosphere, they have GWPs of 21 and 310, respectively (CO, has a GWP of 1).
Carbon dioxide equivalent (CO.€) is a quantity that enables all GHG emissions to be considered
as a group despite their varying GWP. The GWP of each GHG is multiplied by the emission rate
of that gas to produce the COze emissions.

On June 1, 2005, Governor Arnold Schwarzenegger signed Executive Order S-3-05, which
proclaims that California is vulnerable to the impacts of climate change. It declares that increased
temperatures could reduce snowpack in the Sierra Nevada Mountains; could further exacerbate
California’s air quality problems; and could potentially cause a rise in sea levels. In an effort to
avoid or reduce the impacts of climate change, Executive Order S-3-05 calls for a reduction in
GHG emissions to the year 2000 level by 2010, to year 1990 levels by 2020, and to 80 percent
below 1990 levels by 2050.

AB 32, the California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006 (California Health and Safety Code
838501), recognizes that California is the source of substantial amounts of GHG emissions. The
statute states that:

Global warming poses a serious threat to the economic well-being, public health,
natural resources, and the environment of California. The potential adverse
impacts of global warming include the exacerbation of air quality problems, a
reduction in the quality and supply of water to the state from the Sierra snowpack,
a rise in sea levels resulting in the displacement of thousands of coastal
businesses and residences, damage to marine ecosystems and the natural

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-33 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-79



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

environment, and an increase in the incidences of infectious diseases, asthma,
and other human health-related problems.

In order to avert these consequences, AB 32 establishes a State goal of reducing GHG emissions
to 1990 levels by the year 2020, which is a reduction of approximately 16 percent from forecasted
emission levels, with further reductions to follow (CARB 2011). In an effort to help achieve this
reduction, on November 17, 2008, Governor Arnold Schwarzenegger signed Executive Order S-
14-08, raising California’s renewable energy goals to 33 percent by 2020.

California Executive Order B-30-15 (April 29, 2015) set an “interim” statewide emission target to
reduce GHG emissions to 40 percent below 1990 levels by 2030, and directed State agencies
with jurisdiction over GHG emissions to implement measures pursuant to statutory authority to
achieve this 2030 target and the 2050 target of 80 percent below 1990 levels.

Orange County has not formally adopted a quantitative GHG emissions significance criterion to
date. Beginning in April 2008, the SCAQMD convened a Working Group to provide guidance to
local lead agencies on determining significance for GHG emissions in their CEQA documents. On
December 5, 2008, the SCAQMD Governing Board adopted its staff proposal for an interim CEQA
GHG significance threshold of 10,000 metric tons of CO, equivalent per year (MTCO2elyr) for
projects where the SCAQMD is the lead agency (SCAQMD 2008). In September 2010, the
Working Group proposed that the 10,000 MTCO.e/yr threshold be expanded to apply to industrial
projects where SCAQMD is not the lead agency (SCAQMD 2010). The Working Group has not
convened since the fall of 2010. As of July 2015, the proposal has not been considered or
approved for use by the SCAQMD Board. However, this threshold is selected by IRWD as
appropriate for the proposed Project.

Proposed Project Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Construction

Construction GHG emissions are generated by vehicle engine exhaust from construction
equipment, on-road hauling trucks, vendor trips, and worker commuting trips. Construction
GHG emissions were calculated concurrently with air quality criteria pollutant emissions by using
CalEEMod Version 2013.2.2 and the Project information as described in Section 4.3, Air Quality.

Input details are provided in Appendix B. The results are output in MTCO.e for each year of
construction. The estimated construction GHG emissions for the Project are shown in Table 10.

TABLE 10
ESTIMATED ANNUAL GREENHOUSE GAS
EMISSIONS FROM CONSTRUCTION

Emissions
Year (MTCO2e)
2016 752
2017 153
Total 905
Annual Emissions” 30
MTCO,e: metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalent
Combined total amortized over 30 years
Source: CalEEMod data in Appendix B.
R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-34 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-80



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

GHG emissions generated from construction activities are finite and occur for a relatively short-
term period of time. Unlike the humerous opportunities available to reduce a project’s long-term
GHG emissions through design features, operational restrictions, use of green-building materials,
and other methods, GHG emissions-reduction measures for construction equipment are relatively
limited. Therefore, SCAQMD staff recommended that construction emissions be amortized over
a 30-year project lifetime, so that GHG reduction measures will address construction GHG
emissions as part of the operational GHG reduction strategies (SCAQMD 2008). As shown in
Table 10, Estimated Annual Greenhouse Gas Emissions from Construction, the 30-year
amortized construction emissions would be 30 MTCOzelyr.

Operations

Operational GHG emissions for the Project are estimated by including purchased electricity;
natural gas use for space and water heating; the electricity embodied in water consumption; the
energy associated with solid waste disposal; and mobile source emissions. The Project would not
require additional IRWD employees or generate regular vehicle trips, nor would it use natural gas.
Water consumption and solid waste generation would be negligible with respect to the generation
of GHGs. However, because the Project would provide recycled water to replace imported water,
the Project would reduce the amount of electricity used to import water and the associated GHG
emissions. The Project would require additional electricity to store and distribute the recycled
water. It is estimated that imported water reduction would be 3,450 acre-feet per year (afy), which
is equal to 1,124 million gallons per year. IRWD has estimated that the additional energy required
for the project would be approximately 3,000 kilowatt hours (kwh) per million gallons of water.
The GHG intensity factors for Southern California Edison, as used in CalEEMod, are as follows:

e CO3: 630.89 pounds per megawatt hour (Ib/MWh)
e CHa: 0.029 Ib/MWh
e N;O: 0.00617 Ib/MWh

Combining these data results in an increase of operational project-level GHG emissions of
approximately 970 MTCO.e/yr. Adding the amortized construction emissions of 30 MTCOze/yr
(Table 10) results in project-level GHG emissions of 1,000 MTCO.e/yr. However, GHG emissions
are not a local, or even regional issue. Considered in the statewide or larger context, the proposed
project would reduce the amount of imported water by approximately 3,450 afy per year. IRWD
estimates that the energy required to import water is approximately 6,000 kwh per million gallons
of water. Thus, using the GHG intensity factors above, the reduction of imported water would
result in a reduction of GHG emissions of approximately 1,940 MTCO2el/yr at the statewide or
larger level. The net result would be an overall reduction of 940 MTCO2e/yr (1,940 minus 1,000).
Because the Project would reduce overall GHG emissions and thus be beneficial, there would be
no impact and the proposed project would not generate GHGs that would have a significant impact
on the environment.

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of
reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases?

No Impact. As discussed above, the principal State plan and policy adopted for the purpose of
reducing GHG emissions is AB 32. The quantitative goal of AB 32 is to reduce GHG emissions to
1990 levels by 2020. The Project contributes to this goal by reducing the quantity of GHG
emissions resulting from electricity generation. Similarly, the Project supports the goals of
Executive Orders S-3-05 and B-30-15. Therefore, the Project does not conflict with these plans
and regulations.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-35 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-81



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

Senate Bill (SB) 375, signed in September 2008 (Chapter 728, Statutes of 2008), aligns regional
transportation planning efforts, regional GHG reduction targets, and land use and housing
allocations. SB 375 requires Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPOs) to adopt a Sustainable
Communities Strategy (SCS) or alternative planning strategy (APS) that will address land use
allocation in that Metropolitan Planning Organization’s Regional Transportation Plan (RTP). The
principles of SB 375 are incorporated in SCAG’s adopted 2012 RTP/SCS. The proposed ILP —
North Conversion Project is neither a housing development project nor a transportation project.
Therefore, the Project would not conflict with the goals of SB 375 or the SCAG RTP/SCS.

Implementation of the Project would not conflict with an applicable plan, policy, or regulation
adopted for the purpose of reducing GHG emissions. There would be no impact.

Vill.  HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

IMPACT ANALYSIS
Would the Project:

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine
transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials?

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably
foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous
materials into the environment?

Less than Significant Impact. Project construction activities would require the transport and use
of standard construction equipment and materials, some of which may include a hazardous
component such as transport and storage of fuels. These activities would be conducted in
compliance with existing federal, State, and local regulations.

Daily Project operations would not involve the use or transport of hazardous materials. The
Project sites are located near several major transportation facilities and arterials, including
Jamboree Road, Santiago Canyon Road/Chapman Avenue, State Route (SR) 241, and SR-261.
These roadways may be used to transport hazardous materials; however, the proposed Project
would neither increase the frequency of transport, nor would it introduce hazards that would
increase the likelihood for accidental release of hazardous materials into the environment.

Due to the storage of chemicals on site associated with the Zone 5 reservoir, the existing reservoir
has been operating under an approved Fire Master Plan from the City of Orange Fire Department.
No additional chemicals would be stored on the proposed reservoir site and no changes are
proposed to the existing site access road; therefore, it is not anticipated that an update to the
existing Fire Master Plan would be necessary (Kleinfelder PDR 2015). However, should storage
of additional chemicals be deemed necessary in the future, the Fire Master Plan would need to
be updated and storage of the additional chemicals would occur in accordance with applicable
regulations. Additionally, the proposed Project improvements associated with the ILP North
Alignment, the Orchard Hills Facility, and the Rattlesnake Complex would not require any new or
additional chemical storage or transport. As such, a less than significant impact related to the
transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials or the release of hazardous materials into the
environment would occur.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-36 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-82



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

c¢) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials,
substances, or waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school?

Less Than Significant Impact. The nearest schools to the proposed Project sites are Santiago
Canyon College, located less than 0.25 mile from the proposed ILP North Alignment along
Jamboree and Santiago Canyon Roads, and Northwood High School, located approximately
0.3 mile west of the Rattlesnake Complex. Additionally, there is a proposed Kindergarten through
eighth grade school that would be located approximately 0.75 mile west of the Rattlesnake
Complex. Although the new pipeline would be located less than 0.25 mile from Santiago Canyon
College, the pipeline would be constructed within the existing roadway right-of-way and would not
emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials that would
significantly impact students at Santiago Canyon College. Temporary construction activities may
require the use of materials listed as hazardous; however, these materials would be routine
construction materials and would not be required in large quantities. Therefore, the potential
impacts associated with the transport and use of hazardous materials during construction would
be less than significant, and no mitigation is required.

d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous materials sites
compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would it
create a significant hazard to the public or the environment?

No Impact. Two EDR Radius Map™ with Geocheck® Reports were prepared for the Project by
Environmental Data Resources, Inc. (EDR 2015a, 2015b). Search parameters were based on a
one-mile radius of the Project sites and consisted of a search of federal, State, local, tribal, and
other databases. The complete list of databases and additional information regarding the
identified sites can be found in Appendix F. According to the EDR Radius Maps, no hazardous
materials sites were identified within boundaries of any of the Project sites. The following two
listings were reported in the vicinity of the ILP North Alignment.

Santiago Hills Cleaners (8500 East Chapman Avenue, Orange). This site is identified
in the Dry Cleaners Database. According to the EDR Report, no violations have been
reported.

Irvine Regional Park (21501 Chapman Avenue, Irvine). This site is identified on the
following databases: “Cortese” List (HIST CORTESE), Leaking Underground Storage
Tank (LUST), Orange County Leaking Underground Storage Tank (ORANGE CO. LUST),
and Region 8 Leaking Underground Storage Tank. The EDR Report identifies a gasoline
leak affecting the soil that was reported in 1989. The site was subject clean up and the
case was closed in 1990.

The EDR Report also identifies Chevron (1409 Chapman Avenue) as being within 0.5 mile of the
proposed reservoir site. This address is incorrectly mapped and is actually located over four miles
east of any of the proposed Project sites. No hazardous materials sites were reported in the
vicinity of the other Project sites. Of the two hazardous materials sites identified, none of the sites
pose a hazard to the proposed Project. Based on a search of hazardous materials sites compiled
pursuant to Section 65962.5 of the California Government Code, no sites are identified within 0.5
mile of the Project. No impacts related to known hazardous materials sites would occur and no
mitigation is required.

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not
been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the
project result in a safety hazard for people residing or working in the Project area?

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-37 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-83



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would the Project result in a
safety hazard for people residing or working in the Project area?

No Impact. The Project sites are not located within an adopted Airport Land Use Plan or in the
vicinity of a private airstrip, heliport, or helistop. The nearest airport is John Wayne Airport, located
approximately seven miles southwest of the Rattlesnake Complex, which is the southernmost
Project site. The Project would be located outside the John Wayne Airport influence area and
would not expose additional people to safety hazards related to airport operations.
Implementation of the proposed Project would not impact the airport facilities or their operation;
no mitigation would be required.

g) Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency
response plan or emergency evacuation plan?

No Impact. Both the City of Orange and the City of Irvine have prepared and adopted a City
Emergency Management Plan for the protection of residents and properties (see City of Orange
Municipal Code, Chapter 2.68 and City of Irvine Municipal Code, Title 4, Division 9).
Implementation of the proposed Project would provide additional recycled water services to
IRWD'’s existing and future customers and would not alter traffic conditions or modify the local or
regional circulation system. Therefore, development of the Project would not interfere with the
implementation of either the City of Orange or City of Irvine Emergency Management Plans.
Additionally, should an emergency occur at any of the proposed Project sites, the internal street
systems would provide access to the outlying arterial roadway system. Therefore, no impacts
related to the adopted emergency response or evacuation plans would occur and no mitigation is
required.

h) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving
wildland fires, including where wildlands are adjacent to urbanized areas or where
residences are intermixed with wildlands?

Less Than Significant Impact. According to the City of Orange General Plan’s Public Safety
Element, the proposed reservoir site is located in close proximity to Very High Fire Hazard Areas.
However, the risk of injury or death at the site from a wildland fire is minimal because the Project
does not propose construction of any habitable structures. Additionally, the partially subterranean
design of the reservoir would minimize potential structural impacts from a wildland fire.

The ILP North Alignment would traverse areas that have been designated by the City of Orange
as Very High Fire Hazard Areas. However, due to the nature of the pipeline which is proposed to
be constructed below ground and would not be exposed to a wildland fire, potential impacts would
be less than significant.

The City of Irvine General Plan’s Safety Element designates high-risk fire areas as High Fire
Severity Rating and Open Space with Fire Potential. Neither of the two Project sites in the City of
Irvine (the Orchard Hills Facility and the Rattlesnake Complex) are located in or near designated
high-risk fire areas. However, due to limited development in the area, there is a potential for the
sites to be exposed to wildland fires. As proposed, the Project would not include construction of
habitable structures intended for human occupancy. Therefore, impacts would be less than
significant and no mitigation is required.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-38 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-84



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

IX. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY

IMPACT ANALYSIS
Would the Project:
a) Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements?
e) Create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the capacity of existing or
planned stormwater drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of
polluted runoff?

f) Otherwise substantially degrade water quality?

Short-Term Construction-Related Water Quality Impacts

Less Than Significant Impact. Potential impacts of construction activities on water quality focus
on sediments, turbidity, and pollutants associated with sediments. Construction-related activities
that are primarily responsible for sediment releases are related to exposing soils to potential
mobilization by rainfall, runoff, and wind. These activities include grading and other earth-
disturbance activities. Non-sediment-related pollutants that are also of concern during
construction include waste construction materials and chemicals, liquid products, and petroleum
products used in building construction or the maintenance of heavy equipment. Based on
HYDRO-1, stated below, construction impacts from implementation of the proposed Project would
be minimized through compliance with the Construction General Permit. This permit requires the
development and implementation of a SWPPP for each of the proposed Project sites, which must
include erosion- and sediment-control BMPs that meet or exceed measures required by the
NPDES Construction General Permit, as well as BMPs that control the other potential
construction-related pollutants. A SWPPP would be developed, as required by and in compliance
with, the NPDES Construction General Permit. Erosion-control BMPs are designed to prevent
erosion, whereas sediment controls are designed to trap sediment once it has been mobilized.
The NPDES Construction General Permit requires the SWPPP to include BMPs to be selected
and implemented based on the phase of construction and weather conditions.

The SWPPP would be designed and implemented to address site-specific conditions related to
Project construction. The SWPPP would identify and describe the sources of sediment and other
pollutants that may affect the quality of storm water discharges; it would also ensure the
implementation and maintenance of BMPs to reduce or eliminate sediment, pollutants adhering
to sediment, and other non-sediment pollutants in storm water and non-storm water discharges.

Compliance with the NPDES Construction General Permit and the preparation of a SWPPP would
ensure that any impacts to downstream waters resulting from construction activities on the Project
site would be less than significant. Erosion-control and treatment-control BMPs would be
implemented per NPDES requirements.

In addition to the requirements of the NPDES General Construction Permit, all areas of exposed
soils would be re-vegetated and/or watered to stabilize slopes and to reduce erosion as
recommended in the Geotechnical Investigation and discussed in the Response to Question VI.b.
Full compliance with applicable local, State, and federal regulations, including HYDRO-1 and
HYDRO-2, would ensure that water quality impacts associated with construction would be less
than significant.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-39 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-85



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

Long-Term Operational Water Quality Impacts

Less Than Significant Impact. Currently, the proposed reservoir site is partially undeveloped; a
portion of the site is developed with reservoir uses and the area designated for the proposed
reservoir is undeveloped and exists in a natural state with pervious surface area. Because the
majority of the Project site is currently developed with the Zone 5 reservoir and Santiago Hills
Pumping Station and because Project implementation would expand existing water infrastructure
uses rather than introducing new uses to the proposed reservoir site, development of the Project
would not introduce substantial amounts of urban pollutants to the storm water runoff beyond
existing conditions.

Because the proposed improvements and Project actions at the other Project sites (ILP North
Alignment, Orchard Hills Facility, and Rattlesnake Complex) primarily involve modifications to
existing equipment to accommodate the ILP North Conversion and would not substantially change
the nature of the existing facilities, impacts related to long-term operational water quality impacts
would not represent a significant impact.

b) Substantially deplete groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with
groundwater recharge such that there would be a net deficit in aquifer volume or a
lowering of the local groundwater table level (e.g., the production rate of pre-
existing nearby wells would drop to a level which would not support existing land
uses or planned uses for which permits have been granted)?

No Impact. The proposed Project would not deplete groundwater supplies or substantially
interfere with groundwater recharge. Project implementation would increase the amount
impervious surface area at the proposed reservoir site, which would limit the amount of runoff
infiltrating the ground surface and reaching the groundwater basin. However, according to the
City of Orange General Plan, the proposed reservoir site is not located in a groundwater recharge
area (Orange 2010). Because the proposed improvements and Project actions at the other Project
sites (ILP North Alignment, Orchard Hills Facility, and Rattlesnake Complex) primarily involve
modifications to existing equipment to accommodate the ILP North Conversion and would not
substantially change the nature of the existing facilities, impacts related to groundwater supplies
and groundwater recharge would not represent a significant impact. Additionally, implementation
of the Project would make recycled water supplies available to a greater number of existing and
future IRWD customers which would reduce demands for domestic water supplies, and thereby
reduce the dependence on groundwater sources. Therefore, no impacts would occur and no
mitigation is required.

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including
through the alteration of the course of a stream or river, in a manner which would
result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site?

d) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including
through the alteration of the course of a stream or river, or substantially increase
the rate or amount of surface runoff in a manner which would result in flooding on-
or off-site?

Less Than Significant Impact. Development of the proposed Project would involve modifications
to existing equipment to accommodate the ILP North Conversion as well as the construction of a
new partially buried recycled water reservoir. The proposed modifications to existing equipment
and infrastructure would occur within existing facility footprints; however, the proposed reservoir
would increase the impervious surface area on the proposed reservoir site. Because the proposed
Project would introduce impervious surfaces to a previously natural area, the post-development

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-40 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-86



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

runoff that would be generated on site would be slightly higher than the pre-development runoff.
Under existing conditions, drainage flows from the existing Zone 5 reservoir and access road
southeasterly of the Santiago Hills Pump Station (Kleinfelder PDR 2015) are directed into a
concrete-lined V-ditch on the southerly side of the access road and then conveyed off site through
a drainage easement located west of the access road. Drainage flows from the existing parking
area at the Zone 5 reservoir are currently directed along the lower portion of the site access to a
curb and gutter that discharges just outside the access gate into a drainage course flowing
westerly from the proposed reservoir site. As detailed in Section 3, Project Description, storm
water runoff from the proposed Reservoir site would be collected and conveyed to storm drain
pipes and ultimately discharged into the existing drainage channel located adjacent to Santiago
Canyon Road. Additionally, the proposed reservoir would have an overflow pipe, which would be
used in the event of an emergency and would outlet into the existing drainage channel. A less
than significant impact would occur related to changes in the drainage pattern.

g) Place housing within a 100-year flood hazard area as mapped on a federal Flood
Hazard Boundary or Flood Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard delineation
map?

h) Place within a 100-year flood hazard area structures which would impede or redirect
flood flows?

No Impact. According to the City of Orange General Plan (Figure PS-1, Environmental and
Natural Hazard Policy Map) and the City of Irvine General Plan (Figure J-3, Flood Hazard Areas),
the proposed Project sites are not located within the a 100-year flood hazard area, and the Project
would not expose people or structures to flood hazard conditions. No impact would occur and no
mitigation is required.

i) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving
flooding, including flooding as a result of the failure of a levee or dam?

No Impact. There are several dams present in the cities of Irvine and Orange. Specifically, the
Rattlesnake Reservoir and its associated earthfill dam is located approximately 0.13 mile east of
the Rattlesnake Complex; the Peter's Canyon Dam is located approximately 0.15 mile southwest
of the southernmost point of the ILP North Alignment (where it connects to the Baker RWPS); and
the Santiago Dam at Irvine Lake is located approximately 1.5 miles east of the proposed reservoir
site. The proposed Project would not introduce any new uses that would expose people or
structures to hazards associated with the failure of this dam; therefore, no impacts would occur.

j) Inundation by seiche or mudflow?

No Impact. There are several large bodies of water near the Project sites. Consistent with the
previous discussion, Irvine Lake is located approximately 1.5 miles east of the proposed reservoir,
Peters Canyon Reservoir is located approximately 0.15 mile southwest of the southernmost point
of the ILP North Alignment, and Rattlesnake Reservoir is located approximately 0.13 mile east of
the Rattlesnake Complex. While a seiche, or standing wave, is possible within any of these water
bodies, the likelihood of the seiche effects reaching one of the Project sites is low due to
intervening topography and physical distance.

Two of the Project sites (Rattlesnake Complex and the ILP North Alignment) are located within
developed areas and would not be subject to mudflow. The proposed reservoir site and the
Orchard Hills Facility are both located adjacent to undeveloped areas; however, the vegetation
cover of the surrounding areas would reduce the risk of mudflows on the Project sites.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-41 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-87



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

Additionally, the proposed Project would not introduce any uses that would expose people or
structures to hazards associated with a seiche or mudflows. Consequently, no impacts are
anticipated and no mitigation is required.

MITIGATION PROGRAM

Requlatory Requirements

HYDRO-1 Prior to initiation of construction, IRWD shall ensure that a Notice of Intent with the
State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) has been filed in order to obtain
coverage under the Construction General Permit. Pursuant to the permit
requirements, the construction contractor shall develop a Storm Water Pollution
Prevention Plan (SWPPP) that incorporates Best Management Practices for
reducing or eliminating construction-related pollutants in the site runoff.

HYDRO-2 Prior to initiation of construction, IRWD shall verify that the General Waste
Discharge Requirements issued by the Santa Ana Regional Water Quality Control
Board (R8-2015-0004, NPDES No. CAG998001, General Waste Discharge
Requirements for Discharges to Surface Waters that Pose an Insignificant [De
Minimis] Threat to Water Quality) are in effect and shall govern discharges from
construction dewatering and water line/sprinkler line testing should they occur
during construction. The property owner/developer shall comply with these
regulations, including provisions requiring notification, testing, and reporting of
dewatering and testing-related discharges, which shall mitigate any impacts of
such discharges.

X. LAND USE AND PLANNING

IMPACT ANALYSIS
Would the Project:
a) Physically divide an established community?

No Impact. The proposed reservoir would be located on a vacant and undeveloped site adjacent
to the existing Zone 5 reservoir, with the nearest established community located approximately
0.25 mile to the west. Construction of the ILP North recycled water pipeline would occur entirely
within existing roadway rights-of-way. There are no existing communities at any of the Project
sites; therefore, implementation of the proposed Project components would not divide an
established community. Both the Orchard Hills Facility and the Rattlesnake Complex are existing
utilities, and the proposed modifications to existing equipment would be limited to the existing
development footprints associated with these utilities; no new structures would be constructed.
The proposed modifications at the Orchard Hills Facility and Rattlesnake Complex would not
physically divide an established community.

No impact would occur and no mitigation is required.

b) Conflict with any applicable land use plan, policy, or regulation of an agency with
jurisdiction over the Project (including, but not limited to the general plan, specific
plan or zoning ordinance) adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an
environmental effect?

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-42 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-88



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

No Impact. The proposed reservoir site and the ILP North Alignment are located in City of
Orange. The reservaoir site is currently zoned Planned Community and the General Plan land use
designation is Open Space. The proposed reservoir would be a conditionally permitted use
according to the City’s zoning code. The ILP North Alignment extends through multiple
City of Orange land use designations (Open Space; Open Space Park; Low Density Residential
2—6 dwelling unit per acre; and Public Facilities Max. 0.5 Floor Area Ratio [FAR] and Institutions
Max. 2.0 FAR) and multiple land use zones (P-C/Planned Community, R-O/Recreation Open
Space, P-I/Public Institution, and R-1-15/Single Family Residential 15,000 square feet). The
Orchard Hills Facility and the Rattlesnake Complex are located in the City of Irvine. The Orchard
Hills Facility site is currently zoned 2.2D/Low Density Residential and the General Plan land use
designation is Low Density Residential; the Rattlesnake Complex is zoned 6.1/Institutional with
the land use designation Public Facilities. The Project does not propose to change the existing
land use designations of these sites, and, pursuant to Government Code Section 53091(e), the
proposed Project would be exempt from city zoning ordinances because it involves the
construction of facilities for the production, generation, storage, treatment, or transmission of
water. Implementation of the proposed Project would not conflict with applicable plans, policies,
and regulations. Therefore, no impacts would occur and no mitigation is required.

c) Conflict with any applicable habitat conservation plan or natural community
conservation plan?

No Impact. As discussed previously in Section 1V, Biological Resources, the Project is consistent
with provisions in the NCCP/HCP. Although the proposed reservoir site is excluded from
coverage, no take authorization is needed for this area because it was not occupied by coastal
California gnatcatcher during focused surveys.

XI. MINERAL RESOURCES

IMPACT ANALYSIS
Would the Project:

a) Resultin the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value
to the region and the residents of the state?

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally-important mineral resource recovery
site delineated on alocal general plan, specific plan or other land use plan?

No Impact. According to the City of Orange General Plan’s Natural Resources Element, mineral
resource deposits in the City are primarily limited to the sand and gravel resources contained in
and along the Santa Ana River and Santiago Creek (City of Orange 2010). Neither the proposed
reservoir site nor the ILP North Alignment are located in the vicinity of these known resources;
thus, no impact would occur related to the loss of availability of mineral resources at these sites.

The Orchard Hills Facility is designated as MRZ-1 by the State Mining and Geology Board and is
defined as an area where adequate information indicates that no significant mineral deposits are
present or where it is judged that little likelihood exists for their presence (Irvine 2012). The
Rattlesnake Complex is designated as MRZ-3, defined as areas containing mineral deposits the
significance of which cannot be evaluated from available date (Irvine 2012). Neither site is
designated as MRZ-2, which indicates the presence of significant mineral resources. Additionally,
proposed Project actions at the existing Orchard Hills Facility and the existing Rattlesnake
Complex would be limited to modifications to existing utility equipment and would not involve

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-43 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-89



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

construction outside the existing facility footprints. No impacts would occur and no mitigation is
required.

XIl. NOISE

IMPACT ANALYSIS
Would the Project:

a) Expose persons to or generate noise levels in excess of standards established in a
local general plan or noise ordinance or applicable standards of other agencies?

Less than Significant With Mitigation. Construction and operational noise associated with the
Project would result in impacts that are less than significant, as described below.

Noise-Sensitive Receptors and Existing Conditions at the Project Sites

Noise-sensitive land uses typically include residences, hospitals, convalescent and day care
facilities, schools and libraries, which could all be adversely affected by an increase in noise
levels.

The reservoir site is located in an undeveloped area; there are no sensitive receptors near the
reservoir site. Noise at the reservoir site is limited to background sounds of distant traffic.

The sensitive receptors near other Project sites are:

e Single-family residences and Santiago Canyon College adjacent to the ILP North
Alignment on East Santiago Canyon Road and Jamboree Road. The dominant noise
along the alignment is vehicle traffic on the roads.

e The Northwood Point Community (single-family residential) within 165 feet of the
Rattlesnake Complex portion of the Project. The dominant noise source at the site is traffic
on Portola Parkway.

e Additionally, there are residences under construction, within approximately 850 feet of the
Orchard Hills Facility boundary. The site is relatively quiet with the exception of noise from
ongoing construction.

Requlatory Background

For the evaluation of potential noise impacts, IRWD complies with the Cities of Orange and Irvine
Noise Ordinances

City of Orange Noise Standards

The City of Orange Municipal Code (Chapter 8.24, Noise Control) contains the City of Orange
Noise Ordinance. It is designed to protect residential land uses from unnecessary, excessive and
annoying sounds. Table 11, Exterior Noise Standards in the City of Orange, establishes the
following standards on fixed noise sources, which is defined as a stationary noise source which
creates sounds while fixed or motionless, including but not limited to construction equipment,
industrial and commercial machinery and equipment, pumps, fans, compressors, generators, air
conditioners and refrigeration equipment.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-44 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-90



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

TABLE 11
EXTERIOR NOISE STANDARDS IN THE
CITY OF ORANGE

Table 8.24.040 Exterior Noise Standards
Noise Level Time Period
Hourly Average (Leq) 55 dB(A) 7:00 AM- 10:00 PM
50 dB(A) 10:00 PM- 7:00 AM
Maximum Level 70 dB(A) 7:00 AM-10:00 PM
65 dB(A) 10:00 PM- 7:00 AM

Section 8.24.050, Exemptions from Chapter Provisions includes the following:

E. Noise sources associated with construction, repair, remodeling, or grading of any real
property, provided said activities take place between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m.
on any day except for Sunday or a Federal holiday, or between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and
8:00 p.m. on Sunday or a Federal holiday. Noise generated outside of the hours specified
are subject to the noise standards identified in Table 8.24.040.

K. Any maintenance or construction activity undertaken by a public agency or utility within
street right of way.

City of Irvine Municipal Code

The City of Irvine Municipal Code (Title 6, Division 8, Chapter 2) contains the City of Irvine Noise
Ordinance. The Noise Ordinance is designed to control unnecessary, excessive, and annoying
sounds from sources on private property by setting limits that cannot be exceeded at adjacent
properties. Noise Ordinance requirements cannot be applied to mobile noise sources (e.g., heavy
trucks traveling on public roadways, trains, or aircraft). Control of noise generated by these
transportation sources is preempted by federal and State laws, and is therefore not subject to the
provisions of the Noise Ordinance. However, the Noise Ordinance does apply to vehicles while
they are on private property. All activities within the City are subject to the Noise Ordinance unless
specifically exempted. All new development must implement measures to ensure that activities at
the new development do not violate the Noise Ordinance.

The Noise Ordinance specifies that noise generated on a site cannot exceed defined noise levels
at adjacent properties for a specified period of time as shown in Table 12, City of Irvine Noise
Ordinance Standards for Zones 1 Through 4. Both interior and exterior noise level limits are
specified by noise zones. The applicable noise zone is based on the land use being exposed to
the noise. The residential units east and west of East Santiago Canyon Road, east of Jamboree
Road, and are in Zone 1. Noise levels at residences near the Rattlesnake Complex would be
partially masked by traffic noise from Portola Parkway.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-45 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-91



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

TABLE 12
CITY OF IRVINE NOISE ORDINANCE STANDARDS FOR
ZONES 1 THROUGH 4

Noise Levels for a Period Not Exceeding (minutes/hour)
Minutes
0
30 15 5 1 (anytime)
Noise Zone? Time Period Noise Level — dBA
. 7:00 AM-10:00 PM 55 60 65° 70 75
Exterior
1 10:00 PM-7:00 AM 50 55 60 65° 70
. 7:00 AM-10:00 PM - - 55 60 65
Interior
10:00 PM-7:00 AM - - 45 50 55
5 Exterior Any time 55 60 65 70 75
Interior Any time - - 55 60 65
. Exterior Any time 60 65 70 75 80
Interior Any time -- -- 55 60 65
4 Exterior Any time 70 75 80 85 90
Interior Any time -- -- 55 60 65
dBA: A-weighted decibel(s)
& Noise zone 1: All hospitals, libraries, churches, schools and residential properties.
Noise zone 2: All professional office and public institutional properties.
Noise zone 3: All commercial properties excluding professional office properties.
Noise zone 4: All industrial properties.

b This standard does not apply to multi-family residence private balconies. Multi-family developments with balconies
that do not meet the 65 CNEL are required to provide occupancy disclosure notices to all future tenants regarding
potential noise impacts.

Source: City of Irvine 2015.

Section 6-8-205, Special provisions, of the City of Irvine municipal code limits construction
activities to between the hours of 7:00 AM and 7:00 PM Mondays through Fridays, and 9:00 AM
and 6:00 PM on Saturdays, with no construction activities permitted outside of the hours listed
above or on Sundays or federal holidays unless a temporary waiver is granted by the Chief
Building Official or his or her authorized representative. Any waiver granted shall take impact upon
the community into consideration.

Construction Noise

Project construction would generally not occur between 7:00 PM and 7:00 AM on weekdays or
before 9:00 AM or after 6:00 PM Saturdays, or at any time on Sundays or federal holidays,
consistent with the Cities or Irvine and Orange standards. However, to avoid or minimize
undesirable traffic impacts, night work may be required for pipeline installation or similar activities
that would occur in roadways. Should night work be required for this Project in the City of Irvine,
IRWD would obtain a temporary waiver, per Section 6-8-205 of the Irvine municipal code;
compliance with the code is required by NOISE-1. If night work should be required in the portions
of the Project in the City of Orange, no waiver is required because construction activity undertaken
by a public agency in a street right of way is exempt from the City of Orange noise ordinance.

Noise would be generated by construction equipment at each of the Project sites. Construction
activities may require use of a variety of equipment including, but not limited to bulldozers,
excavators, dump trucks, front-end loaders, backhoes, welders, forklifts, cranes, and similar

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-46 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-92



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

equipment. No pile driving, blasting, or high-impact demolition is anticipated. Based on this list of
equipment, maximum noise levels (Lmax) Mmeasured at a distance of 50 feet from a piece of
equipment can reach as high as 85 dBA. Because the equipment power levels vary during
operation, maximum noise levels would occur intermittently. Construction equipment of the types
mentioned are typically at full power approximately 40 percent of their operating time; thus,
average noise levels are less than maximum noise levels. During construction of the Project, it is
likely that two or three pieces of equipment would be operating at one time. With multiple pieces
of equipment, noise levels are analyzed from the center of the construction area. Average noise
levels at a distance of 100 feet would be approximately 80 dBA. Noise would be reduced between
6.0 and 7.5 dBA per doubling of distance, depending on the nature of the ground surface. Thus,
80.0 dBA at 100 feet would be 72.5 to 74.0 dBA at 200 feet and would be 65.0 to 68.0 dBA at
400 feet from the center of the working area.

Construction noise could be heard intermittently at residences and at Santiago Canyon College
adjacent to East Santiago Canyon Road and Jamboree Road. While traffic noise may be have
similar noise levels as the construction noise, the character of the two noises is different, allowing
the receptor to hear the two noises separately. Because the ILP North Alignment is a linear
Project, construction noise impacts at any individual receptor would be anticipated to occur for
less than a full day on any given day and for relatively few of the days during the five-month
pipeline installation effort. Noise levels at residences near the Rattlesnake Complex would be
partially masked by traffic noise from Portola Parkway.

If construction is required at night on the pipeline alignment, construction noise may be
substantially greater than the ambient noise level at receptors near the work areas. Therefore
NOISE-1 would be incorporated into the project.

Additionally, there is a possibility that lighted warning signs could be required at night or on
weekends to alert motorists to detours or road hazards during pipeline installation, and that the
signs could be powered by internal combustion engines. To avoid exceeding the noise level limits
of the Orange and Irvine noise ordinances, as described above, NOISE-2 would be incorporated
into the Project.

With implementation of NOISE-1, and NOISE-2, the Project would not expose persons to or
generate noise levels in excess of the applicable standards. The impact would be less than
significant.

Blasting

While not currently anticipated, there is a possibility that blasting may be required for either some
sections of one of the roads or the water storage tank pad and foundation. However, compliance
with NOISE-3, which prescribes a program (which includes but is not limited to pre-blast survey,
blast design, and blast monitoring) would be implemented, would ensure a less than significant
impact.

Operational Noise

The proposed reservoir, pipelines, and other Project elements are not noise-generating facilities.
The Project would not require additional IRWD employees, nor would it generate regular vehicle
trips. IRWD staff would periodically visit the proposed reservoir, the Orchard Hills Facility, and the
Rattlesnake Complex for routine inspection and maintenance activities similar to current
operations. Operational noise would be negligible; the impact would be less than significant and
no mitigation is required.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-47 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-93



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

b) Expose persons to or generation of excessive ground borne vibration or ground
borne noise levels?

Less than Significant Impact. Vibration affects structures and persons located relatively close
to the source of the vibration. There would be no pile driving, which is one of the more severe
sources of construction vibration. Blasting can also be a source of vibration to more distant
receptors. Blasting is discussed under Question Xll.a above. Vibration impacts from blasting
would be less than significant with compliance with NOISE-3.

Jackhammers may be used to remove roadway pavement for pipeline installation; however,
jackhammer vibration is barely perceptible at a distance of 25 feet. It is also noted that
jackhammer vibration is approximately /5 of the magnitude of the vibration of heavy trucks. There
are no sensitive structures or residences near the proposed reservoir site. Vibration impacts
would be less than significant; no mitigation is required.

c) Result in a substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the Project
vicinity above levels existing without the Project?

Less than Significant. As discussed in response to impact Question Xll.a above, permanent,
operational noise levels would be negligible and therefore would not be substantial. The impact
would be less than significant; no mitigation is required.

d) Resultin asubstantial temporary or periodic increase in ambient noise levels in the
Project vicinity above levels existing without the Project?

Less than Significant Impact. As discussed in response to impact Question Xll.a above,
construction activities would cause temporary noise increases. Although daytime construction
noise levels at residences adjacent to the pipeline alignment and near the Rattlesnake Complex
would be heard above ambient traffic noise, neither the magnitude nor the duration of the noise
would be substantial. Potential substantial noise increases from nighttime construction would be
reduced to less than significant by implementation of NOISE-1 and NOISE-2. Potential substantial
noise increases from blasting would be reduced to less than significant by implementation of
NOISE-3. The impact would be less than significant; no mitigation is required.

e) For a Project located within an airport land use plan or, where such plan has not
been adopted, within two miles of a private or public airport or public use airport,
would the Project expose people residing or working in the Project area to
excessive noise levels?

f) For aProject within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would the Project expose people
residing or working in the Project area to excessive noise levels?

No Impact. The Project is not located in an airport land use plan or in the vicinity of a private
airstrip or heliport, and it would not expose people to excessive noise levels associated with airport
operations or aircraft travel. The closest airport to the Project site is John Wayne Airport, located
more than seven miles southwest of the existing Rattlesnake Complex. No impacts would result,
and no mitigation is required.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-48 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-94



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

MITIGATION PROGRAM

Mitigation Measures

NOISE-1 Project construction activities shall comply with the noise ordinances of the City of
Irvine and the City of Orange, including any daily restrictions on construction hours.

NOISE-2 If warning signs and similar devices are required to operate between the hours of
8:00 PM and 7:00 AM on weekdays or Saturdays or at any time on Sunday or a
federal holiday, IRWD and its contractors shall limit the noise from these devices
such that it complies with the City noise ordinances.

NOISE-3 In the event that blasting activities are required and IRWD shall ensure that a
blasting plan is prepared and submitted to the City of Orange for review and
approval. The blasting plan shall be prepared in accordance with the United States
Department of Interior, Office of Surface Mining (USOSM) standards.

Xlll.  POPULATION AND HOUSING

IMPACT ANALYSIS
Would the Project:

a) Induce substantial population growth in an area, either directly (for example, by
proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, through
extension of roads or other infrastructure)?

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing housing, necessitating the construction
of replacement housing elsewhere?

c) Displace substantial numbers of people, necessitating the construction of
replacement housing elsewhere?

No Impact. The proposed Project involves the conversion of the northern section of the ILP’s
non-potable water system from an untreated water system to a recycled water system to provide
recycled water to a larger number of existing and future IRWD customers. Implementation of the
Project would not increase employment and population in the area and, because the Project is
intended to serve existing IRWD customers or new customers within established or planned areas
of the cities of Orange and Irvine. The Project would not extend recycled water service into an
area that is not currently developed or approved for future development; therefore, the Project
would not result in either direct or indirect population growth. Additionally, as described in Section
X, Land Use and Planning, the Project would not displace existing housing or population, resulting
in construction of replacement housing elsewhere. Therefore, no impacts would occur and no
mitigation is required.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-49 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-95



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

XIV. PUBLIC SERVICES

IMPACT ANALYSIS

a) Would the Project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with
the provision of new or physically altered governmental facilities, need for new or
physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause
significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios,
response times or other performance objectives for any of the public services: fire
protection, police protection, schools, parks, and other public facilities?

No Impact. Due to the nature of the proposed Project, no new demand for public services such
as fire protection, police protection, schools, parks, libraries, or other public facilities would occur.
Any increase in maintenance of the proposed facilities would be the responsibility of the IRWD.
No impact would occur, and no mitigation is required.

XV. RECREATION

IMPACT ANALYSIS
Would the Project:

a) Increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational
facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or
be accelerated?

b) Include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of
recreational facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the
environment?

No Impact. The proposed Project involves the conversion of the northern section of the ILP’s
non-potable water system from an untreated water system to a recycled water system. As
mentioned previously, the Project is not anticipated to induce population growth; therefore it would
not directly or indirectly impact any local recreational facilities through increase of use.
Additionally, the ILP North Alignment would be located adjacent to the existing Peters Canyon
Regional Park and a minor easement would be required to connect the pipeline within the roadway
right-of-way to the Baker RWPS; the Project would not impact the existing park. No impacts
related to demand or use of recreational facilities would occur and no mitigation is required.

XVI. TRANSPORTATION/TRAFFIC

IMPACT ANALYSIS
Would the Project:

a) Conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance or policy establishing measures of
effectiveness for the performance of the circulation system, taking into account all
modes of transportation including mass transit and non-motorized travel and
relevant components of the circulation system, including but not limited to
intersections, streets, highways and freeways, pedestrian and bicycle paths, and
mass transit?

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-50 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-96



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

Less Than Significant Impact. Implementation of the proposed Project is expected to generate
short-term traffic impacts generated during the construction period. Vehicle trips would be
generated by trucks hauling materials and supplies to the sites and workers commuting to and
from the Project sites. As discussed previously in Section Ill, Air Quality, it is anticipated that an
average of 27 heavy truck round trips (54 one-way trips) would occur per day related to excavation
for the reservoir. An additional approximately 10 heavy truck round trips (20 one-way trips) per
day would occur related to ILP North Alignment pipeline installation. It is anticipated that these
trips would occur throughout the day and would not be concentrated during traffic peak hours.
Therefore, short-term construction-related impacts would be less than significant.

Under existing conditions, a small number of vehicle trips are associated with routine inspection
and maintenance at the existing Zone 5 reservoir and Santiago Hills Pumping Station site, the
Orchard Hills Facility, and the Rattlesnake Complex. Because the Project components are located
either on or near existing IRWD utility sites, it is anticipated that routine inspection and
maintenance trips would continue and no new operational trips would occur with implementation
of the proposed Project. Therefore, because there would be no increase in daily trips associated
with daily operation of the Project components, no Project-related traffic impacts are anticipated.

b) Conflict with an applicable congestion management program, including, but not
limited to level of service standards and travel demand measures, or other
standards established by the county congestion management agency for
designated roads or highways?

No Impact. The nearest intersection to the proposed Project that has been designated by the
Orange County Transportation Authority as a Congestion Management Program intersection is
Irvine Boulevard and Culver Drive. This intersection is approximately 1.5 miles southwest of the
Rattlesnake Complex. Due to the nominal amount of traffic generated by the proposed Project
and its distance from the designated intersection, no impact would occur at the intersection and
no mitigation is required.

¢) Resultin achangein air traffic patterns, including either an increase in traffic levels
or a change in location that results in substantial safety risks?

No Impact. The proposed Project involves the conversion of a non-potable water system from an
untreated water system to a recycled water system and would have no effect on air travel
volumes, nor would it impact air traffic patterns. No impact would occur and no mitigation is
required.

d) Substantially increase hazards due to a design feature (e.g., sharp curves or
dangerous intersections) or incompatible uses?

No Impact. The Project does not propose any modifications to the existing circulation system in
the Project’s vicinity. Further, traffic patterns and the types of vehicles traveling along the roads
near the proposed reservoir, the Orchard Hills Facility, and the Rattlesnake Complex would not
be affected. Therefore, no impact would occur related to hazards due to a design feature or
incompatible uses. No impact would occur and no mitigation is required.

e) Resultin inadequate emergency access?

Less Than Significant Impact. The proposed Project would involve modifications to existing
facilities; installation of a pipeline along existing roadway rights-of-way; and construction of a new
reservoir adjacent to an existing IRWD facility. During construction, existing access routes would
be maintained at the three existing Project sites (the proposed reservoir site, the Orchard Hills

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-51 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-97



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

Facility, and the Rattlesnake Complex). Construction of the ILP North Alignment would require
temporary lane closures along the alignment, including Santiago Canyon Road/Chapman Avenue
and Jamboree Road. It is anticipated that at least one lane of through traffic in each direction
would be maintained, thus allowing for adequate emergency access.

As noted previously, the Project would involve modifications to existing facilities and construction
of a reservoir adjacent to an existing facility. Emergency access routes are already in place at
each of these Project sites, and proposed Project actions would not alter access. Therefore, no
impact to local or regional emergency access routes would occur and no mitigation is required.

f) Conflict with adopted policies, plans, or programs regarding public transit, bicycle,
or pedestrian facilities, or otherwise decrease the performance or safety of such
facilities?

No Impact. Access to the reservoir site would be provided by East Santiago Canyon Road, which
includes a Class Il bicycle route. The City of Orange defines Class Il bicycle routes as those that
are located along arterial roadways and are delineated by painted stripes and other features. The
segment of Portola Parkway adjacent to Rattlesnake Complex includes both a Class | trail (off-
street) and a Class Il trail (on-street). Due to the nature of the Project, no impacts related to
adopted policies, plans, or programs regarding public transit, bicycle, or pedestrian facilities, or
the performance or safety of such facilities would occur and no mitigation is required.

XVII.  UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS

IMPACT ANALYSIS
Would the Project:

a) Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of the applicable Regional Water
Quality Control Board?

e) Resultin adetermination by the wastewater treatment provider which serves or may
serve the Project that it has adequate capacity to serve the Project's projected
demand in addition to the provider's existing commitments?

No Impact. The Project would involve construction of a recycled water reservoir, the conversion
of the ILP North Alignment to recycled water, and related facility improvements. Minor amounts
of water would be generated on an irregular basis during backwash and strainer cleanouts at the
proposed reservoir site; however, this water would be recycled back into the untreated system.
The Project would require connection to IRWD’s sewer system; however, no impacts would occur
related to capacity of wastewater infrastructure or wastewater treatment facilities. Further, the
Project would not exceed wastewater treatment requirements.

b) Require or resultin the construction of new water or wastewater treatment facilities
or expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant
environmental effects?

Water

No Impact. Development of the proposed Project would serve to enhance the water supply and
distribution system by improving the reliability of IRWD’s water supply by decreasing the reliance
on domestic water sources. No additional impacts related to water-related facilities are anticipated
and no mitigation is required.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-52 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-98



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

Wastewater

No Impact. As noted previously in the responses to Questions XVIl.a and XVll.e, the Project
would involve construction of a recycled water reservoir and related facilities and would generate
minor amounts of backwash water on an irregular basis. No impacts would occur related to
capacity of wastewater infrastructure or wastewater treatment facilities.

c) Require or result in the construction of new storm water drainage facilities or
expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant
environmental effects?

Less Than Significant Impact. Development of the proposed Project would involve modifications
to existing equipment to accommodate the ILP — North Conversion and the construction of a new
partially buried recycled water reservoir. The proposed modifications to existing equipment and
infrastructure would occur within existing facility footprints and would not impact storm water
drainage facilities.

As discussed previously in Subsection 1X, Hydrology and Water Quality, storm water runoff from
the proposed reservoir site would be collected and conveyed to storm drain pipes that ultimately
discharge into the existing drainage channel located adjacent to Santiago Canyon Road.
Additionally, the proposed reservoir would have an overflow pipe, which would be used in the
event of an emergency and which would also outlet into the existing drainage channel. The
anticipated volume of flows entering the drainage channel would be insignificant and, under
normal operating conditions, would not substantially alter drainage patterns or exceed the
capacity of the channel. Therefore, the Project would not require the expansion of existing storm
drain facilities, and impacts would be less than significant.

d) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the Project from existing
entitlements and resources, or are new or expanded entitlements needed?

No Impact. As discussed previously under response to Question XVIl.b, development of the
proposed Project would serve to enhance the water supply and distribution system by improving
the reliability of IRWD’s water supply by decreasing the reliance on domestic water sources. No
additional impacts related to utilities and service systems are anticipated and no mitigation is
required.

f) Be served by a landfill with sufficient permitted capacity to accommodate the
Project's solid waste disposal needs?

Less Than Significant Impact. Solid waste generated from the Project site would most likely be
disposed of at the Frank R. Bowerman Landfill, which is part of the Orange County landfill system
operated by OC Waste & Recycling. The landfill is permitted to receive a maximum of 11,500 tons
per day (tpd). The Frank R. Bowerman Landfill is approximately 725 acres with 530 acres
permitted for refuse disposal. The landfill opened in 1990 and is scheduled to close in
approximately 2053 (OCWaste 2015). The increase in solid waste disposal resulting from
implementation of the Project could be accommodated within the permitted capacity of the
County’s overall landfill system, which includes the Frank R. Bowerman Landfill (Arnau 2015). A
less than significant impact related to landfill capacity would occur from implementation of the
proposed Project and no mitigation is required.

g) Comply with Federal, State, and local statutes and regulations related to solid
waste?

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-53 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-99



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

No Impact. Solid waste practices in California are governed by multiple federal, State, and local
agencies that enforce legislation and regulations to ensure landfill operations minimize impacts
to public health and safety and the environment. OC Waste & Recycling is obligated to obtain a
Solid Waste Facilities Permit, a Storm Water Discharge Permit, and a permit to construct and
operate gas management systems and to meet Waste Discharge Requirements. The Local
Enforcement Agency (the SCAQMD) and the SWRCB enforce landfill regulations related to
health, air quality, and water quality, respectively. The proposed Project would not inhibit OC
Waste & Recycling’s compliance with the requirements of each of these governing bodies. No
impact would occur and no mitigation is required.

XVIIl. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE

IMPACT ANALYSIS
Does the Project:

a) Have the potential to degrade the quality of the environment, substantially reduce
the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop
below self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community,
reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal or
eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history or
prehistory?

Less Than Significant With Mitigation. As described throughout the analysis in Section 5.0,
with the incorporation of the identified mitigation measures, implementation of the proposed
Project would not degrade the quality of the environment; would not substantially reduce the
habitats of fish or wildlife species; would not cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below self-
sustaining levels; would not threaten to eliminate a plant or animal; and would not eliminate
important examples of major periods of California history or prehistory. With respect to the quality
of the environment, the Project would not preclude the ability to achieve long-term environmental
goals.

b) Have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable?
(“Cumulatively considerable” means that the incremental efforts of a project are
considerable when viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the
effects of other current projects, and the effects of probably future projects)?

Less Than Significant With Mitigation. While the Project may have the potential to impact the
environment, specific regulatory requirements and mitigation measures would be implemented to
reduce these impacts to a less than significant level.

c) Have environmental effects which will cause substantial adverse effects on human
beings, either directly or indirectly?

Less Than Significant With Mitigation. Based on the analysis of the above-listed topics, the
proposed project could have the potential to impact human beings, either directly or indirectly;
however, the implementation of the mitigation measures described throughout this document
would reduce all potential impacts to less than significant levels.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 5-54 Discussion of Environmental Checklist Questions

C-100



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

SECTION 6.0 REPORT PREPARERS

6.1 IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

Lo 3N o O] =Y R Engineering Technician 11l
Kellie WEICK ..ot Water Resources Manager
Fiona SanChez..........ccoooiiiii Director of Water Resources
RIChArd MOFI.......co oo Principal Engineer
JOSEPN MCGERNEE... .. e e Associate Engineer
B T Tt o T 1, o =0 = TR Engineer

6.2 CONSULTANTS

BonTerra Psomas

Principal ... Joan Patronite Kelly, AICP
SeNIOr ProjeCt MANAGET .........uviiiiiiiiee ettt e e e e e e e e Jennifer Marks
ProjeCt MaNAQeT .......coo oo Alia Hokuki
Environmental ANGlYSt ........o oo aane Jeffrey Gershon
Environmental Analyst ..., Megan Larum
Y= 1 (o] g = To] (oo L= PN Amber O. Heredia
2 o] (oo | £ Courtney Rose
BIOIOGISt .o lan Cain
ATCNACOIOGIST ...ttt e e e e e e e e e s e e e e e e e e e aane David Smith
Air Quality/Greenhouse Gas Emissions/Acoustical AnalysiS..........cccccceveeeii e, Jim Kurtz
Air Quality/Greenhouse Gas Emissions Analyst.........cccccoceiiiiieeeeeee e, Daria Sarraf
GISIGIaPICS ...ttt e e e e e e e e e e e e s Jon Zimmer
JLIC=T0d 11 0= U =T 11 o] Julia Black
SENION WOIT PrOCESSON .....eeviviiiieeieeiieesseeessssssssssessssssrsssrsesreserrrrrrrrrarrr. Sheryl Kristal
R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 6-1 Report Preparers

C-101



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

This page intentionally left blank

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 6-2 Report Preparers

C-102



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

SECTION 7.0 REFERENCES

Arnau, J. 2015 (July 16). Personal Communication Email Between J. Arnau (OC Waste and
Recycling) and J. Gershon.

BonTerra Psomas 2015 (October). Biological Resources Report, Irvine Ranch Water District,
Irvine Lake Pipeline — North Conversion Project, City of Irvine, Orange County, California.

. 2015 (October). Phase | Cultural Resources Assessment, Irvine Lake Pipeline-North
Conversion Project, Irvine and Orange, California.

California Air Resources Board (CARB). 2015 (January 9, last reviewed). Air Quality Standards
and Area Designations. Sacramento, CA: CARB. http://www.arb.ca.gov/desig/desig.htm.

—— 2013 (June 4). Ambient Air Quality Standards. Sacramento, CA: CARB.
http://lwww.arb.ca.gov/research/aaqs/aaqs2.pdf.

California Air Resources Board (CARB). 2014 (March 24, last updated). California Greenhouse
Gas Inventory for 20002012 — by Category, as Defined in the 2008 Scoping Plan.
Sacramento, CA: CARB. http://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/inventory/data/tables/ghg_inventory
scopingplan_00-12_2014-03-24.pdf.

. 2011 (August 19). Final Supplement to the AB 32 Scoping Plan Functional Equivalent
Document. Sacramento, CA: CARB. http://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/scopingplan/document/
final_supplement _to_sp_fed.pdf.

California Governor's Office of Planning and Research (OPR). 2008 (June 18). CEQA and
Climate Change: Addressing Climate Change through California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA) Review. Sacramento, CA: OPR. http://www.opr.ca.gov/ceqa/pdfs/june08-
ceqa.pdf.

California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection. Fire Hazard Severity Zoning and New
Building Codes for California’s Wildland-Urban Interface. http://www.fire.ca.gov/
fire_prevention/downloads/Doc_7_ FAQs_ALL.pdf.

California Department of Transportation. 2007. California Scenic Highway Mapping System.
http://lwww.dot.ca.gov/hg/LandArch/scenic_highways

Environmental Data Resources, Inc. (EDR). 2015 (June 18). The EDR Radius Map™ Report with
GeoCheck®: ILP North Conversion Project, Jamboree Road, Orange, California 92869
(Inquiry Number 4330930.2s). Shelton, CT: EDR.

. 2015 (June 18). The EDR Radius Map™ Report with GeoCheck®: ILP North Conversion
Project, Culver Drive, Irvine, California 92602 (Inquiry Number 4330923.2s). Shelton, CT:
EDR

Irvine, City of. 2015. Municipal Code, City of Irvine, California (. Tallahassee, FL: Municipal Code
Corporation for the City.

_ 2013 (December). City of Irvine: Zoning Map.
http://legacy.cityofirvine.org/civica/filebank/blobdload.asp?BlobID=13672

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 7-1 References

C-103



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

_ 2012 (June). City of Irvine General Plan.
http://www.cityofirvine.org/civica/filebank/blobdload.asp?BlobID=20686.

—— 2012 (May). City of Irvine CEQA Manual, Volume 2: Technical Guidelines.
http://legacy.cityofirvine.org/civica/filebank/blobdload.asp?BlobID=21575.

Kleinfelder. 2015 (May). Report of Geotechnical Investigation ILP North Conversion Proposed
Santiago Hills Zone C+ Reservoir Irvine Ranch Water District Project no. 30996 (5407),
City of Orange, Orange County, California, Kleinfelder Project No. 20153742.001A
(Geotechnical Investigation)

. 2015 (May). Santiago Hills Site Master Plan. Irvine Ranch Water District.Orange, City of.
2015. Municipal Code, City of Orange, California (Title 8, Health and Safety, Chapter
8.24, Noise control). Tallahassee, FL: Municipal Code Corporation for the City.

Orange, City of. 2015 (March). Municipal Code, City of Orange.
https://www.municode.com/library/ca/orange/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeld=ORAN
GEMUCO.

. 2010 (March). City of Orange General Plan: Program Environmental Impact Report.
http://www.cityoforange.org/civicax/filebank/blobdload.aspx?blobid=8417.

——— 2010 (March). City of Orange General Plan. http://www.cityoforange.org/
civicax/filebank/blobdload.aspx?blobid=9420

Orange, County of. 2015 (Codified through February 10). Orange County, California — Code of
Ordinances, Supplement 125. https://www.municode.com/library/ca/orange_county/
codes/code_of ordinances?nodeld=11378

South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD). 2015 (March). SCAQMD Air Quality
Significance Thresholds. Diamond Bar, CA: SCAQMD.
http://www.agmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/handbook/scagmad-air-quality-
significance-thresholds.pdf?sfvrsn=2

. 2013. California Emission Estimator Model (CalEEMod)TM Version 2013.2.2 (Developed
by Environ International Corporation in Collaboration with SCAQMD and other California
Air Districts). Diamond Bar, CA: SCAQMD.

. 2010 (September 28). Greenhouse Gas CEQA Significance Threshold Stakeholder
Working Group #15 (slide presentation). Diamond Bar, CA. SCAQMD.
http://lwww.agmd.gov/cega/handbook/GHG/2010/ sept28mtg/ghgmtgl5-web.pdf.

. 2009. (October 29, revised). Table C-1: 2006-2008 Thresholds for Construction and
Operation with Gradual Conversion of NOx to NO,. Diamond Bar, CA: SCAQMD.
http://www.agmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/handbook/localized-significance-
thresholds/appendix-c-mass-rate-Ist-look-up-tables.pdf?sfvrsn=2.

. 2008 (July, as revised). Final Localized Significance Threshold Methodology. Diamond
Bar, CA: SCAQMD. http://www.agmd.gov/ceqa/handbook/LST/ Method_final.pdf.

. 1993 (as amended). CEQA Air Quality Handbook. Diamond Bar, CA: SCAQMD.

Stantec. 2014 (July). ILP-North Conversion Study. Irvine Ranch Water District.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 7-2 References

C-104



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA). 2015a (April 15). Inventory of U.S. Greenhouse
Gas Emissions and Sinks: 1990-2013. Washington, D.C.: USEPA.
http://lwww.epa.gov/climatechange/Downloads/ghgemissions/US-GHG-Inventory-2015-
Main-Text.pdf.

World Resources Institute (WRI). 2014. Climate Analysis Indicators Tool (CAIT) version 9.0.
Washington, D.C.: WRI. http://cait.wri.org/.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 7-3 References

C-105



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

This page intentionally left blank

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 7-4 References

C-106



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

SECTION 8.0 INTRODUCTION TO RESPONSES TO COMMENTS

The IS/IMND was released for public review and comment by IRWD on November 4, 2015. The
public review period ended on December 3, 2015.

IRWD, as the lead agency, has evaluated all substantive comments received on the IS/MND, and
has prepared written responses to these comments. In accordance with the CEQA Guidelines
(14 California Code of Regulations [CCR] 815074[b]), the decision-making body of the lead
agency must consider the IS/MND and comments received before approving the project. This
document, which will be provided to the IRWD Board of Directors, as the decision-making body,
has been prepared in accordance with CEQA and represents the independent judgment of the
lead agency.

This Response to Comments document is organized as follows:
Section 8 provides a brief introduction to this document.
Section 9 identifies the IS/MND respondents.
Section 10 provides responses to comments received on the IS/IMND. Responses are

provided in the form of individual responses to comment letters received. Comment letters
are followed immediately by the responses to each letter.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 8-1 Introduction to Responses to Comments

C-107



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

This page intentionally left blank

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 8-2 Introduction to Responses to Comments

C-108



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

SECTION 9.0

LIST OF RESPONDENTS

The following is a list of persons, organizations, and public agencies that submitted comments on
the IS/IMND that were received by December 3, 2015 (the end of the public review period).
Comments have been numbered and responses have been developed with corresponding

numbers.

Letter Respondent
No.

State Agencies

1 California Department of Transportation

2 Governor’s Office of Planning and Research

Regional Agencies

3 Metropolitan Water District of Southern California

Local Agencies

4 City of Irvine
5 City of Orange

Date of Page No.
Correspondence

December 2, 2015 ............... 10-2
December 4, 2015 ............... 10-4
December 2, 2015 ............... 10-9
December 2, 2015 ............. 10-32
December 3, 2015 ............. 10-34

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx

9-1

C-109

List of Respondents



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

This page intentionally left blank

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 9-2 List of Respondents

C-110



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

SECTION 10.0 RESPONSES TO ENVIRONMENTAL COMMENTS

This section includes responses to all substantive environmental issues raised in comments
received on the IS/MND. When comments did not address the completeness or adequacy of the
environmental documentation or when they did not raise environmental issues, the receipt of the
comment is noted; no further response is provided as CEQA does not require a response in these
instances.

This section is formatted so that each comment letter is followed immediately by the
corresponding responses.

R:\Projects\IRW_IRWD\3IRW000701\MND\Final_ILP North_MND-122115.docx 10-1 Responses to Environmental Comments

C-111



ILP North Conversion Project
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration

- STATE OF CAUFORNIA—CALIFORKIA STATE TRANSPORTATION AGENCY Lo £rA® SR ERMUND G, BROWK Jr,, Goveraol
. . 315
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 1273 Letter 1
DISTRICT 12 {'/
1347 MICHELSON DRIVE, SUITE 100
IRVINE, CA 92612-8804 Y
” Serions Drowghi.
PHONE (949} 724-2000 Serious drought,
FAX (949) 724-2019 Help save yvater!

TTY 711
www.dot.ca.gov

RECEIVED
DEC 0 8 2018

December 2, 2015 c
STATE GLEARIT\EE@(}EE

Ms. Jo Ann Corey File: IGR/CEQA
Irvine Ranch Water District SCH#: 2015111011
15600 Sand Canyon Avenue Lo